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The Travers Block
170-184 Bellevue Avenue

Designed by Richard Morris Hunt and built in 1870-1871 for William R. Travers,
this is a brick building with an applied half-timber pattern made up of heavy
chamfered members. The rectangular plan contains ten adjoining shops, each

16 feet wide. The building is two-and-a-half stories high within a mansard
roof. The simple rectangular plan is broken by projecting bays at the center
and by a diagonally placed bay at the exposed corner of Bellevue Avenue and
Memorial Boulevard. The simple volume of the mansard roof is broken by
projecting gables and dormers. The gables have sawn and shaped wood decoration,
and the eaves of the mansard have strong chamfered brackets which, with the
window frames of the upper floor, are worked into the vigoreus rhythm of the
half-timber pattern. Damaged by fire in 1972, now being restored.

The interiors on the ground floor, which is 10 feet high, have undergone
numerous alterations to accommodate the various shops and businesses renting
space in the building. At its south end the Travers Block abuts the Casino
building.

The Newport Casino
186-202 Bellevue Avenue

The Casino building has a ground floor divided by smooth brick piers into nine
bays which contain an arched central portal and four shop-fronts on either side
of it. Across these piers the long, shingled frontage of the second floor is
slightly corbelled out; at its center this front contains a recessed porch
below a high gable containing a Palladian-window motif. Two other high frontal
gables occur near the ends of the high, pitched roof which crowns the street
frontage, and each has a smaller, asymmetrically placed gable treatment applied
against it. Patterned shingles, small and large window panes, slight advances
and recessions in the facade's plane combine with the gable accents to produce
a lively but consistent and symmetrical rhythm across the nine bays. Behind
this front exist complex arrangements for the accommodation of sporting and
social activities. McKim, Mead and White 1879-1881. One of the first "country
clubs" on the East Coast.

The King Block
204-214 Bellevue Avenue

South, and also abutting the Casino, is this rectangular building built for
Leroy King of Newport and designed by the Boston architects Perkins and Betton;
it was built in 1893-1894. Divided into six bays (about 130 feet in total
length) and containing six adjoining shops, the building is made of brown pressed
brick with very simple ornament of stepped brick courses.

1 (Continued)
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The Audrain Building
220-230 Bellevue Avenue

This last building in the row was built in 1902-1903 from the designs of the

New York architect Bruce Price for Adolf L. Audrain and is of masonry construc-
tion, two stories high, with a flat roof. The rectangular plan, 110 feet by

73.5 feet, contains six adjoining shops. The 110-foot facade is divided into
six bays defined by tall arches, one bay for each shop, with a richly-embellished
doorway at the center leading to a stairway to the upper floor. The second
floor was designed to contain six offices in the front and five in the rear.

Beau iful terracotta trim.

Kingscote
NW corner of Bellevue Avenue and Bowery Street

Richard Upjohn was commissioned in 1839 to design this house for George Noble
Jones, a Savannah merchant. During the Civil War the house was tended by
William Henry King, who acquired it from Jones in 1864, giving the present
house its name. (The nearby Italian villa was designed by Upjohn as well).
Kingscote is a fine "gothick-rustick" in the style of A. J. Davis, Downing
and Vaux. It is small in scale, asymmetrical and has the typical projecting
and receding planes that give the house variety of light and shadow--one of
the best examples of the Gothic taste.

There is the additional importance of the celebrated McKim, Mead & White dining
room added in 1880-1881. Here is an early example of the inventive decorative
talent of this famous firm, which was to influence American house interiors for
decades to come. Of particular note in this room are its qual ites of being
light and airy while at the same timerrich; there is new handling of old
materials--wood and marble--and imaginative employment of new ones--Tiffany
glass and cork. Also notable about the house in general are its immaculate
state of preservation and the important and handsome accumulation of family
furniture, rugs, porcelains, paintings, silver, objects de vertu, etc. which
fill its rooms.

Bellevue Avenue

The Bellevue Avenue Historic District has as its spine a stretch of about two
miles of this avenue, commencing where it is crossed by Bowery Street and
continuing south and then, near the end, a short distance west, until the
avenue's termination at the beginning of Ocean Avenue and just above Bailey's
Beach. Forming the District, on either side of this extend of the avenue and
on Ledge Road near its end, is a long succession of residential properties.

(continued)
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Elm Court, 1853. Italian Villa style; two stories with varied roof
silhouette; hipped roofs; brick wall cover; regularly spaced--some
grouped -- windows; entrance in center of east side; two story
stable building at northeast part of property in conforming style.

Berkeley Villa, by Ogden Codman, Jr., 1910. Colonial Revival style;
two-and-one-half stories with hipped roof; clapboard wall cover;
central entrance pavilion on west recessed between engaged two-story
columns; regularly-spaced windows; garden ar rear with summer-
houses; surrounding high brick wall.

Edna Villa (lsaac Bell house), by McKim, Mead & White, 1882-1883.
Queen Annebhingle style; two-and-one half stories; cross-gabled
roof; shingle wall cover; varied window size and placement; entrance
in porch on south side; turreted bay on south side; partially-
surrounding porch with two-story bowed extension at north-east and
one-story gabled extension at south-east. HABS, NR.

Berkeley House, by McKim, Mead & White, 1884-1885. Queen Anne style;
two-and-one-half stories under a cross-gabled roof; wall cover of
brick with wood trim and timbering; entrance on north side in re-
cessed porch; varied window placement; trees and shrubs within a

high brick wall.

Eastcourt, c.1865-1880. ''Carpenter Gothic'' style; two-and-one-half
stories; parallel gabled roofs (house probably built in two stages)
with small frontal intersecting gable at south end; clapboard wall
cover; sawn bargeboards and porch piers; regularly-spaced, plain
windows; entrance in wide one-story porch on south side.

Perrywinkle, c.1870. Nondescript style, remodelled; one-and-one
half stories; gable roof with frontal mansard extension, some shed
dormers in gabled section and dormers in mansard; regularly-spaced
windows; clapboard wall cover; entrance in columned porch under
frontal (south) mansard extension.

House, ¢.1895. Shingle and Colonial Revival styles; two-and-one-half
stories gable roof with frontal gabled projection at one side; shngle
wall cover; regularly-spaced windows; entrance within one-story
columned porch.

|25
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C. H. Baldwin house, by Potter & Robinson, 1877-1878. Queen Anne
style; two-and-one-half stories under high cross-gabled roof; wall
cover of brick, clapboards, shingles, panels, timbering; entrance
in porte-cochere at west; windows varied and grouped; service
building at rear. HABS, NR.

The Elms, by Horace Trumbauer, 1900-1902. Academic French Louis XV
style; two stories and penthouse; flat roof behind parapet with
statuary at angles; limestone wall cover; tall segmental and flat-
headed French windows withwrought=iron guard rails; triple arched
entrances of wrought iron and glass in center of east facade; bal-
ustraded terraces with sculpture; imposing iron fence and gates on
avenue frontage; extensive lawn, trees; formal sunken garden with
pavilions at rear designed by Miller and Bowditch; paired formal
stable buildings with iron clairvoyee=-between at northwest. NR.

De Rham House, 1856. Mansard style; three stories within a clapboard
wall cover and mansard roof; one-story surrounding porch with
entrance on west side; plain, regularly-spaced windows; set back on

a flat lawn.

William G. Weld house, by Dudley Newton, 1882-1884. Queen Anne-
Romanesque styles; two-and-one-half stories with cross-gabled roof
and turreted angle bay; faced in rough tan ashlar; plain, regularly-
spaced windows; entrance in porte-cochere on west front; set back on
a flat lawn; annexes at rear made during school use.

House, c.1840-1845. Greek Revival style; two-and-one-half stories;
gable roof; clapboard wall cover; regularly-spaced windows; entrance
within one-story Doric-columned porch.

Apartment building, c.1950-1960. ''Moderne' style; three stories;
flat roof; brick wall cover (buff color); grouped windows.

Apartment building, 1973; four stories high with a flat roof; interiof
open galleries; brick wall cover with cement trim; grouped windows.

tiouse, ¢.1895-1900. Colonial Revival style; two-and-one-half stories;
hip roof; buff brick wall cover with stone trim; entrance within
colomned porte-cochere on west side; regularly-spaced windows.

House, c¢.1870-1875. Mansard style; three stories within a mansard
roof; clapboard wall cover; regularly-spaced windows; entrance
within a full-width columned Colonial Revival porch on west side.

8¢
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Chateau-Nooga, by George Post, 1880-1881. Queen Anne-cum-Tudor styles;

two-and-one-half stories; cross-gabled roof; brick stone, shingle
wall cover with timber trim; grouped windows; recessed entrance
porch on west side.

Rockry Hall, 1848, enlarged c.1880's. Gothic villa style; two-and-
one-half stories; cross-gabled roof; stone and shingle wall cover;
plain, widely-spaced windows; entrance in vestibule-porch on north
side.

William Osgood house, 1887. Romanesque style; two-and-one-half
stories; mansard roof; rough stone wall cover; regularly-spaced,
plain windows; entrance within full width arcaded stone porch across
west side, subsidiary entrance on north side.

House, c.1885. Queen Anne-Shingle Style; two-and-one-half stories;
hipped roof; cut-shingle wall cover; varied size and placement of
windows; porches, of which the entrance is in a north one.

House, c.1890. Chateau style; two-and-one-half stories; high, .sloping
mansard roof; walls of brick (now and perhaps originally painted);
wood architectural trim; entrance recessed in lower part of two-story
loggie on west.

The Villa, c.1870. Mansard style; two-and-one-half stories; mansard
roof; clapboard wall cover; regularly-spaced windows; bay at east
end; entrance on north side.

Swanhurst, by Alexander McGregor, 1851. Italianate style; two-and-
one-half stories; gable roof with eaves brackets, intruded by
frontal pediment on north side; wall cover presently stucco over
stone, wood trim including hoods, balconies; polygonal tower on
west side, one-story porch on east side; entrance under hood in
center of north side. Carriage house to the south.

House, c.1890-1900. Colonial Revival style; two-and-one-half stories
under a cross-gabled roof; clapboard wall cover; regularly-spaced,
plain windows; entrance within one-story porch on west side.

House, c.1880-1885. Queen Anne style; two-and-one-half stories;
gable roof with dormers; cut-shingle wall cover; various size and
placement of windows; entrance within porch; stone and brick stable
accompanying.

Loy
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Wysteria Lodge, c.1870-1875. Remodelled in Colonial Revival style;
two-and-one-half stories; mansard roof clapboard wall cover;
regularly-spaced windows; entrance within one-story porch.

Harold Brown house, by Dudley Newton, 1894. Gothic manor style; two-
and-one-half stories; gabled roof; rough beige stone wall cover;
regularly-spaced and grouped windows; entrance in north-east angle;
stables in conforming style at rear of property.

The Flower Cottage, c.1870-1875. Stick Style with Colonial Revival
remodelling; small structure of one-and-one-half stories under a
gable roof; clapboarded; simple window treatment; entrance within
porch on south side.

Service buildings belonging to Harold Brown House, now residences.

John Carter Brown house, c.1865. Mid-Victorian in style--mansard,
bracketed. Two-and-one-half stories; mansard roof with cupola;
clapboard wall cover; regularly-spaced windows; entrance within
porch on three-bay frontal elevation.

Chateau sur-Mer, by Seth Bradford, 1851, enlarged by Richard M.
Hunt, 1872-1876. Mansard style; three stories under a high, angular
mansard roof; rough tan granite ashlar wall cover with lighter-
coloured stone trim; regularly spaced flat-headed windows and
angular bay-windows; two towers; one-story porch around southern
end; entrance in porte-cochere on north side; flat, grassed grounds
contain numerous old trees and shrubbery plantings, stable, entrance
lodge and entrance archway; low granite wall of rough stone with

smooth stone gate piers and wrought-irongates surrounds property.
HABS, NR.

Stonor Lodge, c.1870-1880. Stick style; two-and-one-half-stories;
cross~-gabled roof; clapboard wall cover; entrance in porch on east
side; regularly-spaced plain windows.

Vernon Court, by Carrere & Hastings, 1900-1901. XVIII-Century French
chateau style; two-and-one-half stories under a high hipped roof;
stucco wall cover with ornament of swags; regularly-placed tall

French windows with wrought-iron guard-rails; wrought-iron entrance
gates at north and south for drive passing uncovered eastern entrance;
formal high-walled garden at west designed by Wadley & Smythe; acc-

essory buildings at east side of the property.

18e
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34 House (remodelled stable? n.d.). One-and-one half stories; gable

roof; shingle wall cover.

35 Stable of the demolished W. G. Loew house, c.1890. Queen Anne style;
rectangular structure of two-and-one-half stories with shingle and
wood-panelled wall cover below a gable roof with round, domed cupola.

36 Stables of Chetwode, the main house now destroyed.

37 Fairlawn, 1852, Victorian Tudor-manor style; enlarged and extended
in 1883 from designs of William A. Potter; two-and-one-half stories
below cross-gabled roof; brick wall cover with timber trim
(originally); grouped transomed windows; entrance within porte-
cochere on west side; set upon flat lawns with some trees; stables
at the rear to the north-east.

38 Belmead, c.1900. Colonial Revival-cum-ltalianate styles; three
stories; hipped roof; wall cover of brick (now stuccoed) with stone
trim; regularly-spaced windows; entrance on east side in elliptical,
columned one-story porch. Stables located on Coggeshall Avenue,
now residence.

39 lvy Tower, 1883. Queen Anne style; two-and-one-half stories, round
tower in angle; stone, stucco, shingle and timber wall cover;
grouped windows; entrance in recessed porch on east front.

4o Sunnylea, c.1880. Queen Anne style; two-and-one-half stories; cross-
gabled roof; shingle wall cover; variously-placed windows; entrance
in surrounding porch and southern porte-cochere.

4 Rosecliff, by McKim, Mead & White, 1900-1902. French XVII-Century
style (adapted from the Grand Trianon); three stories; including
penthouse concealed behind eaves balustrade; white terra-cotta wall
cover forming both plain surfaces and elaborate trim; round-and-flat-
headed French windows plain surfaces and elaboarte trim; round-and
flat-headed French windows, plain surfaces and elaborate trim; round
and flat-headed French windows with wrought-iron guard-rails; entrance
at south end of west front under iron and glass '"marquise;"
balustraded terrace on east side; flat, grassed area at west. NR.

42 Sherwood, by Hoppin, Koen & Huntington, 1904. Georgian-Palladian
style; three stories; low hipped roof behind balustrade; two-story
columned portico at front, two-story columned elliptical portico
at rear; stucco wall cover; regularly-spaced windows; entrance within

eastern portico; sloping lawn at rear with high-gabled Victorian |Q§H
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stable surviving from previous house on the site, at north-west
rear.

Sea Cliff, by Frederick Rhinelander King, 1953. Informal,
picturesque style with some Georgian Revival detailing; two-and-
one-half stories; cross-gabled roof; brick wall cover; varied place-
ment of windows; entrance on west side; placed on the down-slope

at the end of a long lawn.

Beechwood, by Downing & Vaux, 1851-1852. Italianate style still,
but lost porches and had walls stuccoed in 1930's remodelling; two-
and-one-half stories under a hipped roof with central frontal
pediment; original wall cover of brick with brownstone and wood
trim; flat- and round-headed large windows, regularly-spaced;

entrance in western porte-cochere; gate-house and greenhouse to west,

on flat, grassed lot with large trees.

House, c.1870-1880. Stick Style; two-and-one-half stories; mansard
roof with turret; clapboard wall cover; regularly-spaced windows;
entrance in polygonal porch on east side.

Marble House, by Richard M. Hunt, 1888-1892. French neo-classic
style; two stories and penthouse; flat-roofed behind balustrade;
marble wall cover with pilasters; round- and flat-headed windows
regularly spaced; wrought-iron and glass portal within colossal
Corinthian portico on west side; imposing entrance drive with
torcheres; elaborate wrought-iron fence and gates; oriental tea-
house above the ocean, by Hunt & Hunt, 1913. NR.

Champ Soleil, by Polhemus & Coffin, 1929. French XVII|-Century
manoir style; two-and-one-half stories; three-part composition with
wings slightly brought forward; high, hipped roof; stucco wall
cover with stone trim; regularly-spaced windows; uncovered entrance
in center of east facade; service buildings on Coggeshall Avenue.

Former stable of Beaulieu, 1856-1859, now remodelled as a dwelling.
Mansard style with recent alterations and additions; two stories;
mansard roof; regularly-spaced windows; entrance in one-story peak-
roofed vestibule projection added on south side.

|90
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Beaulieu, 1856-1859. Mansard style; three stories under a concave
mansard roof; much remodelled: originally had tower over entrance,
surrounding porches; original wall cover of brick with "olive stone"
and wood trim, now stuccoed; regularly-spaced windows; entrance in
projecting bay of west front; unchanged gate-house at south-west
corner of property shows original character of main house; low brick
wall with 'olive stone'' capping along western frontage.

Rovensky Park, c.1960. Flat landscaped area with green planting,
gravel paths, benches.

Clarendon Court, by Horace Trumbauer, 1904. Academic Georgian style;
two stories beneath low hipped roof concealed by balustrade with urns
one-story flanking wings projecting at front; regularly-spaced win-
dows; entrance in pedimented enframement at center of west front;
smooth limestone wall cover; limestone wall with wrought-iron gate
across property at west.

Thayer Cottage, 1870. Stick style; two-and-one-half stories; cross-
gabled; turreted roof; clapboard wall cover; irregularly-placed
windows; entrance in porch on east side.

Large garage and chauffeur's quarters now used as a dwelling or
apartments, c.1915. French Louis XII| style; two stories; mansard
roof with dormers; brick wall cover with stone trim and quoins;
regularly-spaced windows; four large portals on north side.

Vladania, c.1870. Stick Style; three stories; high, angular mansard
roof; clapboarded and panelled wall cover; irregular-spaced windows,
some with hoods; entrance within one-story eastern porch with pro-
jecting hood over steps.

Miramar, by Horace Trumbauer, 1912-1915. French Louis XV style; two-
and-one-half stories with mansard roof behind a balustrade; wall
cover of smooth stone with carved panels of trophies; regularly
spaced round-and flat-headed French windows; triple portals of
wrought-iron and glass at center of west facade; balustraded terrace
on ocean side; formerly elaborate-planted parterres by Jacques
Grebert on west frontage; one-and-one-half-story garage of long,
elegant ''pavillion' design on north-west part of property; elaborate
gilded wrought-iron fence across west side of property.

The Beeches, 1871. Mid-Victorian style with later Colonial Revival
applications; two-and-one-half stories; mansard roof; clapboard
wall cover; plain windows; entrance in porch on east side.
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57 Ocean View, by William R. Walker, 1866. Mansard style; three stories
under a concave mansard roof (its dormers now removed and their
places filled-in); clapboard wall cover; regularly-spaced plain win-
dows; porches; entrance on west side; set back on a flat lawn with
trees; stable and gate-lodge on western part of property.

58 Belcourt, by Richard M. Hunt, 1892. Large residence and stable
complex in Louis XII| chateau style; three stories; mansard roof
with bull's-eye dormers; stucco wall cover with brick trim on main
house, timbering on stable walls; regularly-spaced small grilled
windows and large, round-headed French windows; entrance in enclosed
one-story vestibule on west.

59 House, c.1860-1870. Stick Style; two-and-one-half stories; cross-
gabled roof; clapboard wall cover; regularly-spaced windows;
entrance in one-story porch across east front.

60 Cottage, c.1890-1900. Nondescript style; one-and-one-half stories;
cross-gabled roof; asphalt-shingle wall covering; regularly-spaced
windows; entrance in one-story corner porch.

61 Barn (and smaller autbuildings) belonging to Belcourt, c.1892.
Non-descript style; barn two-and-one-half stories; gable roof;
shingle wall covering; few window openings; modern entrance on
west side.

62 Rock Cl1iff, by George C. Mason, 1869, completely remodelled and
re-cased, c.1912. Georgian style; two-and-one-half stories; hipped
roof with dormers; stucco wall cover; regularly-spaced windows;
central entrance in west side; gate-lodge at west part of property.

63 Quatrel, c.1870. Mansard and Stick Style; two-and-one-half stories;
mansard roof; wall now stuccoed; regularly-spaced windows; entrance
in arcaded one-story porch on east front.

64 Ranch house, c.1960-1965. One-story frame structure.

65. Rough Point, by Peabody & Stearns, 1888-1891. Tudor manor-house

style on a large, long scale; two-and-one-half stories; cross-gabled

roof; wall cover of rough sandstone ashlar; large and small grouped
windows of leaded glass; entrance in west side.

192
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66 Roselawn, c.1850-1860 ff. Carpenter Gothic and Stick styles; two=
and-one-half stories; cross-gabled roof; clapboard wall cover;
regularly-spaced flat-headed windows; entrance at south in partially-
surrounding one-story porch.

67 Rockhurst gate-iodge, c.1880-1890. Queen Anne style; small,
intentionally picturesque structure of one-and-one-~half stories;
steep hipped roof with cross-gables and conical turrets; varied
window size and placement; entrance on east; wall cover of stone and
shingling.

68 Two ranch-style houses, c.1950-1960. One-and-one-half stories;
shingled walls.

69. Inchiquin, c.1880-1885. French chateau style; three stories; high
mansard roof with prominent dormers; rough granite ashlar wall cover;
regularly-spaced and grouped windows; one-story porch on two sides;
entrances within porch at south and within porte-cochere at east.

70 Beachmound, by Henry lves Cobb, 1897. Colonial (Southern) Revival;
two-and-one-half stories; gable roof; clapboard wall cover; colossal
lonic porticos on east and west sides; regularly-spaced windows;
entrance within west portico.

71 House, 1974. Two-and-one-half stories; gable roof.

72 Mailands, c.1850-1860. Italianate style with Colonial Revival
renovations; two houses moved together; two-and-one-half stories;
hip roof; clapboard walls; regularly-spaced windows; entrance on
north side in one-story columned porch.

73 Seaweed, c.1870-1880(?). Colonial Revival style now; two-and-one-
half stories; gable roof; clapboard wall cover; regularly-spaced
windows; entrance in wide porch on north side.

74 Stable formerly belonging to Mailands, now remodelled as a dwelling,
c.1875-1880. Mansard style; mansard and hip roofs; one-and-one-half
stories; stucco and shingle wall covering.

75 House, ¢.1965-1970. Nondescript modern style; two stories; hip roof;

brick wall cover; large picture windows, uncovered entrance in center
of V-shaped house plan.
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76

77

78

79

80

81

82.

Property

Plaisance, 1853 and remodelled. Mansard style now altered to
""Normandy manoir:'' one-and*one-half stories; mansard roof, wall
cover of whitewashed brick; regularly-spaced windows; unsheltered
entrance in angle of L-plan.

House, probably also a subsidiary of Mailands, c¢.1870-1880. Mansard
style; two stories; mansard roof; walls now stuccoed; regularly-
spaced windows; entrances in small shed-roofed porches on east and
south sides.

Pelican Lodge, by Claiborne Pell, 1950. Cape Cod cottage style;
one-and-one-half stories; gable roof, shingle wall cover, regularly-

spaced windows; unsheltered entrance on east side.

Former gate-lodge, c.1880-1885. Queen Anne style; one-and-one-half

stories; cross-gabled roof with extinguisher tower; stone and shingle

wall cover; irregularly-placed windows; entrance in gabled corner
porch.

House, c.1950-1960. Colonial Revival style; two-and-one-half stories,

including large north wing; gable roofs; clapboard wall cover;
regularly-spaced windows; unsheltered entrances.

Land's End, 1870. Mansard style; one-and-one-half stories with
higher central pavilion; mansard, hip and gambrel roofs; clapboard
wall cover now stuccoed; regularly-spaced windows; entrance at
center of west elevation.

The Waves, by John Russell Pope, 1927. Normandy manoir style; two-

and-one-half stories; hipped roofs; brick, stucco and timbered wall
covering; irregularly-placed windows; entrance at north in center
of U-plan.
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Ochre Points-Cl1iffs Area

Ochre Point is a residential area about 230 acres in extent projecting into
the ocean, near the middle of the east side of Newport including the area
known as the Cliffs.

This area also contains a textbook of architectural styles from the 1850's
to the 20th century. Most significant are the opulent pre-depression (1929)
palaces (Ochre Court, The Breakers) that imitated European estates. This
district maintains its quality today in a quiet fashion.

Map Street
No. Address Property

1. Cliff Ave. "Cliff Lawn,'" c.1870, remodelled c.1890-1900. Originally
in the Stick Style, later given Colonial Revival trim; two-
and-one-half stories; mansard roof; stucco wall cover with
wood trim; entrance on west side, bay on north side; origin-
ally had surrounding porches. ##*

2. Cliff Ave. ""John Easton Farm,' c.1700 ff. Two-and-one-half stories
under a gambrel roof; additions at north and south ends;
regularly-spaced windows; central entrance on west side;
small one-and-one-half story gambrel-roofed Colonial Revival
stable to northwest. **

3. Cliff Ave., Approximately 23 houses on these three streets and running

Cliff Terrace south from the east end of Seaview Avenue. About half

and Seaview date from the 1870's-1880's and are in the Stick and mansard

Avenue styles, generally heavily remodelled; they are of modest
size and of one-and-one-half or two stories. The remainder
are cottages and ranch houses of c.1945-1955. All are of
frame construction, clapboarded or shingled.

4, 29 Cliff House, ¢.1885-1890. Queen Anne style; two-and-one-half

Avenue stories with cross-gabled roof and turret; shingled;
variously-placed windows; porches, entrance on west side. **

5. Cliff Ave. Four one-story frame ranch houses, c.1945-1955,

and Barclay
Square
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6. Cliff Ave. 'Hopedene," by Peabody & Stearns, 1902. Georgian Revival
style; two-and-one-half stories under a hipped roof; brick
wall cover with stone trim; regularly-spaced flat- and
round-headed windows; entrance at south end; garage to the
north of the house. #*%

7. Cliff Ave. ""Seaward,' by John W. Richmond, 1948. Georgian Revival
style; two stories; low hipped roof; brick wall cover;
regularly-spaced windows; entrance on west side., *

8. Cliff Ave. 'Ocean Lawn,' by Peabody & Stearns, 1888-1889. Queen Anne
and Tudor.styles. Two-and-one-half stories under cross-
gabled and hipped roofs with bargeboards; irregular rough-
faced ashlar wall cover with timbering; grouped and
irregularly-spaced windows; entrance at south between
wings. %%

9. Narragansett House, c.1850-1860. Rectangular structure in the

Avenue Italianate bracketed style; cross-gabled roof; clap-
boarded wall cover above a stone foundation; central
entrance within a triple-arcaded loggia-porte-cochere;
windows surmounted by low pediments on brackets. #¥*

10. Narragansett House, c;1850-1860. ltalianate in style but with a mansard

Avenue roof above two stories covered by clapboards; entrance in
central porch; round- and segmental-headed windows, bay
window~to left of entrance. **

11. Narragansett House (formerly Forsyth Wickes), c.1850-1860, slightly

Avenue remodelled. Originally ltalianate in style but somewhat
"Georgianised;' stone walls; two-and-one-half stories
including hipped roof with dormers; grouped windows under
low pediments on brackets; entrance in projecting one-story
stone porch. %

12. Narragansett House (alsp formerly Forsyth Wickes), ¢.1895. Colonial

Avenue Revival style; two-and-one-half clapboarded stories;

hipped roof with dormers; entrance within porte-cochere
having paired columns; various window treatments. *¥*
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13. Narragansett Four houses, c.1885. Queen Anne style; two-and-one-half
Avenue and stories with cross-gabled and hipped roof; clapboard and
Ammandale Rd. shingle wall cover; entrance in two-story porch with turned
columns; variety of window treatment featuring elaborate
muntin arrangements. #%
14. Narragansett 'The Orchard," 1871-1872. French XVI1-XVI|l-Century chateau

15.

16.

7.

19

20.

Avenue

Narragansett
Avenue

1

Narragansett
Avenue

97

Narragansett

Avenue

Ochre Point
Avenue

Ochre Point

Avenue

Webster
Street

or manoir style, following plans imported from France;
beige brick walls with quoins under high, hipped roofs;
tall, regularly-spaced windows; one-story rectangular end
bay windows; uncovered central front entrance; elaborate
wrought-iron fence with tall stone piers. %

"Bois Dore,' by Charles A. Platt, 1927. French XVII|-
Century chateau style; limestone facing; two-and-one-half
stories with a hipped roof having dormers; slightly pro-
jected entrance with foliate carving above; segmental-
headed windows. %

House (formerly Carter?), c.1890-1900. Coleonial Revival
style; rectangular, with long extension to the south and
gabled roof with dormers; two-and-one-half stories; clap-
boarded; undistinguished in detail; entrance in corner
porch. *

House (originally E. D. Morgan), c.1850-1860. Asymmetrical
Italian Villa style with tower in angle; two-and-one-half
stories covered by a cross-gabled roof with wall facing of
horizontal boarding; porch entrance at base of tower; three-
story enlargement to west. #%

Salve Regina College Dormitory (former site of ''Whiteholme')
1963. Undistinquished three-story, L-shaped structure of
buff-coloured brick with numerous paired windows.

""'Southside,'" by McKim, Mecad & White, 1882. Queen Anne-cum--
Shingle Style; two-and-one-half stories; brick and shingle
wall cover; gable roofs with numerous dormers, picturesque
tall chimneys; large porch spaces on east side; variously
grouped windows. #%* '

Stable of "Sulthorne' (main house now destroyed). A low,
rectangular wooden building consonant in style with the main
house but very simple in trim. *

(}7
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21. Vlebster Service buildings belonging to Bois Dore, c.1880-1890. Small
Street one-and-one-half story buildings in simple Queen Anne style;
shingled; gable and gambrel roofs. *
22. 134 VWebster Remodelled stable buildings, c.1890. Queen Anne style; one-
Street and-a-half stories; gable roofs, dormers; clapboard wall
cover. =%
23. 138 Webster Cottage, c.1870-18807 Nondescript in style; one-and-a-half
Street stories; covered with asbestos shingling.
24, 140 Webster Cottage, c.1880-1900. Nondescript in style; one-and-a-half
Street stories; clapboarded.
‘25 Webster Garage buildings, XX Century. One story; brick.
Street
26. 162 \lebster House, c¢.1950-1960. Ranch-house type; one story; wall cover
Street of shingles and vertical siding.
27. 167 VWebster Cottage, c.1895-1905. Queen Anne and Colonial Revival styles
Street mixed; one-and-a-half stories; gable roof; shingle roof and
wall cover; conventional windows and bay windows; entrance
in front centre porch. *
28. Ochre Point '"Whiteholme' stables, c.1885-1890. Shingle or Queen Anne
Avenue - style; long, low structure of one-and-one-half stories with
shingle wall cover and cross-gabled, gambrel and hipped
roofs; arched portal running through building at center;
varied window treatment; intentionally picturesque composi-
tion. *% -
29. Ochre Point '"Ochre Court,'' by Richard M. Hunt, 1888-1891. French late
Avenue Gothic chateau style; two-and-one-half (or three) stories
under a high hipped roof, cross-gables, turrets; limestone
wall cover; western porte-cochere, eastern loggia; various
window types and groupings, elaborate dormers; imposing
wrought-iron entrance gate. =%
30. 12 Leroy House (formerly called '"Bon Acueil'), c.1865-1870. Mansard-
Avenue Stick Style; 2 stories plus mansard; clapboarded; entrance

with polygonal porch at center front; stable to rear. *

2719 ¢
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31. Leroy '""Ridgemere," 1898, by Peabody & Stearns. Queen Anne style
Avenue with applied Colonial Revival elements; two-and-one-half
stories with brick walls and a slate-covered hip roof with
copper-sheathed dormers; numerous plate-glass windows;
entrances in porch at front center and under porte-cochere
on east side; wrought-iron frontal fence contained within
brick piers. #%
32, Leroy Stable belonging to '"Ridgemere,'" c.18987 A low, brick
Avenue structure.
33. Lawrence Stable, ¢.1885-1895. Gothic-cum-Tudor adaptation; one-and-
Avenue one-half stories; brick walls, limestone trim; ventilator-
cupola at south end; varied windows and dormers; modern
extension at south. *
34, Lawrence Cottage and greenhouses, c.1900? Nondescript.
Avenue
35. Leroy "Wakehurst,' by Dudley Newton, 1888. Large manor-house in
Avenue the Tudor style; two-and-one half stories with cross-gabled
roofs; stone wall covering; varied and grouped window treat-
ments; numerous chimneys; spacious walled grounds formally
treated. %
36. Shephard Stables belonging to 'Wakehurst,' 1888. Consonant in style
Avenue “with the main house; U-shaped, with an entrance courtyard;
two-and-one-half stories; gable roof; stone wall cover. #*
37. Leroy Stable of '"Winland,' ¢.1883. Consonant in style with the
Avenue main house; two stories beneath a gable roof; one-and-one-
half story gambrel roofed cottage adjoins to the west.
38. Leroy ""Cave Cliff," c.1870-1875. Mansard-roofed rectangular house
Avenue with some small additions; two stories under the mansard;
clapboarded; tall windows irregularly placed. *%*
39. Ochre Point "Winland," By Peabody & Stearns, 1883, extended to the north,

Avenue

1907. Tudor-Queen Anne-Richardsonian in style; two-and-one-
half stories; rough-cut stone wall cover, brown smooth-cut
stone trim; varied window treatment, bays, porches on water
side, etc.; entrance in porte-cochere on west side. *%

a4
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40. Ochre Point Gate-lodge of 'Winland," c.1883. Queen Anne style, small

Avenue and picturesque; two stories faced in rough stone with smooth
trim; high, tiled roof, rounded corner turret. *%

41. Shepard Classroom building of Salve Regina College, c.1960-1970.

Avenue Plain, two-story building with brick wall cover and a flat
roof.

42, Shepard Watts Sherman house stables, c.1874. Rectangular brick

Avenue structure of one-and-a-half or two stories. *
43. Shepard Watts Sherman house, by H. H. Richardson, 1874; later
Avenue enlarged to the north in the original style; northeast
extension added c.1955-1965. Two-and-one-half stories in
the English manor style; brick timber and shingle wall cover;
varied window groupings; entrance in western porte-cochere;
gable and cross-gabled roof. *% HABS k6 NHL
LL. Shepard Ave. Ranch house, c.1950-1965. One story shingled structure.
5. 60 Shepard Ranch house, ¢.1950-1965. One story shingled structure.
Avenue
46. Shepard Ave. Ranch house, c.1950-1965. One story shingled structure.
47. Shepard Ave. Stable (remcdeled as dwelling), c.1885-1895. Queen Anne
style; one and one-half stories with shingle wall covering
and gable roof; various window types; rear ell added. *
48. Shepard Ave. House, c.1885-1895. Queen Anne style; two-and-one-half
stories; irregular shape with shingle wall cover, cross-
gabled roof with turret; varied window types and placement;
entrance at south within porte-cochere. #%
L9. 74 Victoria House, ca.1950-1960. Ranch-style, one-story.
Avenue

50. Lawrence Ranch-house, ¢.1950. One story; shingle wall cover,
Avenue hipped roof.

51. Lawrence House, one story, brick and wood (converted service
Avenue building?).
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52. Ochre Point '"The Breakers,' by Richard M. Hunt, 1892-1895. High
Avenue Italian Renaissance palazzo style; rectangular, covered by
stone under a tiled, hipped roof; much carved architectural
adornment, well-placed; windows in varied, formalised
spacings and groupings; entrance in western porte-cochere;
imposing wrought-iron fence and gates with stone piers.
%% HABS, NR
53. Ochre Point Play-house of ''The Breakers,'" c.1878-1880. Queen Anne

54,

Avenue

Ruggles
Avenue

55-56 Ruggles

57

58.

59.

60.

61.

Avenue

Ruggles
Avenue

Ruggles
Avenue

Ruggles
Avenue

Lawrence
Avenue

Lawrence
Avenue

style; one-story, small structure with shingle wall cover,
cross-gabled roof; entrance within porch area; windows
variously place. * NR

Garage building belonging to '"Seaview Terrace.'! One-and-
one-half stories; brick; gable roof with dormers. =

Cottages belonging to ''Seaview Terrace,' XIX Century; frame
structures of non-descript style.

Garage belonging to ''Seaview Terrace,' 1927-1929. Normandy
manoir style; one-and-one-half stories; stuccoed and

timbered beneath a gable roof with cross-gables and dormers.

""Seaview Terrace,' by Howard Greenley, 1927-1929. French
XVi-XV1i-Century chateau style. Enormous two-and-one-half
story structure with a hipped roof, cross-gables, towers
and turrets, having stucco wall cover and timber adornment;
varied window types; entrance in porte-cochere on north
side. ek

"Althorp,' c.1895. Colonial Revival. Two-and-one-half
stories, decked hip roof, clapboard wall cover; regularly-
spaced windows; central south entrance within one-story
porch; rounded projecting bays at each end of south
elevation. #**

Stable of '"Althorp,' c.1895. Colonial Revival style;
rectangular, two-story, clapboarded structure under a

1,

gable roof. =

Stable, ¢.1890?7 (remodelled to residential use). No parti=
cular style; one story, L-shaped, including new southern
extension; original wall cover brick, extension has wood
cover; hipped roof. *

20\
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62. Lawrence

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

69.

Avenue
Ruggles
Avenue

Ruggles
Avenue

Ruggles
Avenue

Ruggles
Avenue

Ruggles
Avenue

Ruggles

Avenue

Ruggles
Avenue

Stable, c.1885-1895. Queen Anne style; one-and-one-half
stories, rectangular; brick and shingle wall cover, cross-
gabled roof; varied window treatment, *

Stables, ¢.1885-1830. *

o
'""Honeysuckle Lodge," 1886. Queen Anne-cum-Shingle styles;
wide, rectangular structure of two-and-one-half stories under
sweeping cross-gabled roofs; wall cover of stone and shingle;
varied and grouped window treatment; recessed north entrance
under (now removed) porte-cochere. #**

"Nethercliff Hall," c.1875-1885. Stick-cum-Queen Anne styles
three-storied squarish structure with stone and stucco wall
cover beneath a hipped roof penetrated by cross-gables;
varied window treatment; entrance within south porte-cochere.

"Midc1iff," 1886. Queen Anne-cum-Shingle style. L-shape;
two-and-one-half stories covered by stone and shingling
beneath hipped and cross-gabled roofs with turret in angle;
perimetal porches; entrance in northern one-story pro-
jecting porch (formerly a porte-cochere).

""Ochre Lodge," c.1885. Queen Anne-cum-Shingles styles; two-
and-one-half stories with shingle wall cover beneath cross-
gabled gambrel roof; varied window treatment; sitting-
porches, and entrance within recessed south porch.

"Fairholm," c.1860; enlarged 1875; altered 1930.
Rectangular two-and-one-half story structure with eastern
wing; originally a Stick Style building with a high,
angular mansard and surrounding porches; in 1930 given some
gables, applied timbering and stucco facing, corner tower
at southwest, etc,, to resemble English manor style;
entrance on north side of main block.

Stable of "Fairholm," c.1875.
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70 Ruggles
Avenue
71 Ruggles
Avenue

Property

"Anglesea,' by Detlef Lienau, 1879-1880. Originally Stick
Style clapboarded house, later given Colonial Revival de-
tailing; two-and-one-half-stories; cross-gabled roof; varied
window treatments; entrance under porte-cochere on north
side of main (east) block. **

Garage of '""Anglesea,' 1922. Small, rectangular two-story
building in formal Louis XVI style; stucco wall cover,
stone quoins; cross-gabled slate roof; pedimented

pedestrian entrance. =

This material is from the surveys and reports of the Rhode Island Historical

Commission.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Newport is one of the most spectacular assemblages of American architecture
from its beginning to our own time., There are structures in this district that
could never be built again in such close proximity, nor possessing such variety,
nor by a group of such distinguished architectural firms.

This district begins with several commercial blocks including the Casino,
continues with the Gothic Revival villas, and includes the "Stick Style" and
Shingle Style and culminates in the great 19th century summer palaces of
Bellevue Avenue and Ochre Point. The list of architects embraces almost
every major designer of that time and what emerges at Newport is also a study
of the development of the taste and skill of men 1ike Richard Upjohn, Richard
Morris Hunt and McKim, Mead and White over their professional careers.

A detailed description of the buildings in this large district is detailed
in Section #7.
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Starting at the southesst corner of the junction of Bellevue Avenue
and Memorial Boulevard (previously part of the Bellevue Avenue-Casino
Historic District), the District runs east along Memorial Boulevard
to the southwestern corner of Memorial Boulevard and Freebody Street;
thence runs south along Freebody Street, across Berkeley Avenue and
continues south along the east boundary of Plat 33 lot 30 and the
east boundaries of Plat 34 lots 21 and 22 to Parker Avenue. The
District continues west on Parker Avenue to Clay Street; proceeds
south on Clay Street to the northern boundary of Plat 34 lot 41;
thence east on the north boundary of this lot, thence south on the
eastern boundary of this lot to Ward Avenue. At this point, the
District assumes the boundaries of the Ochre Point-Cliffs Historic
District, proceeding east on Ward Avenue to Annandale Road. The
District then runs east along the northern boundary of Plat 34 lot

46 to the western boundary of Plat 34 lot 47, thence north along this
boundary and the northern boundary of Plat 34 lot 27 to the western
boundary of Plat 34 lot 182. The District thence runs north along
this boundary to Cliff Avenue and its extension, and then north to
Memorial Boulevard. The District then runs east along Memorial
Boulevard to Easton Bay and the beginning of Easton's Beach. It then
follows the shoreline in a southerly direction; at Marine Avenue the
Ochre Point-Cliffs Historic District ends, the new District continuing
generally south, an finally west and north along the shoreline to the
junction of Bellevue Avenue and Bailey's Beach. The District runs
east on Bellevue Avenue to Coggeshall Avenue, and thence north to
Coggeshall Avenue to Lakeview Avenue; thence east on Lakeview Avenue
to the west boundary of Plat 38 lot 8; thence north along this boundary
and east along the north boundary of this lot to the west boundary of
Plat 38 lot 5, thence north along this boundary to the south boundary
of Plat 38 lot 6%, thence west along this boundary, thence north
along the west boundary of this lot to Rovensky Avenue. The District
continues west on Rovensky to the east boundary of Plat 37 lot 82,
thence north along this boundary and the eastern boundaries of Plat 37
lots 78, 83, 81, 80, and 77 to the south boundary of Plat 37 lot 19;
thence west along this boundary to Coggeshall Avenue. The District
proceeds north along on Coggeshall Avenue to the south boundary of
Plat 37 lot 20; thence west on this boundary to the shoreline of Almy
Pond; thence north along the shoreline to the north boundary of Plat
37 lot 97, thence east on this boundary and the north boundary of
Plat 37 lot 49 to Coggeshall Avenue. The District continues south

on Coggeshall Avenue to the south boundary of Plat 37 lot 62, thence
east on this boundary and north on the east boundary of this lot

and lots 69, 72, 70, and 66 to Bancroft Avenue. Proceeding west on
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Bancroft Avenue to Coggeshall Avenue, and north on Coggeshall to the
south boundary of Plat 37 lot 3; thence east on this boundary and
north on the eastern boundary of this lot and that of lot 93; thence
west on the north boundary of this lot to the east boundary of Plat
36 lot 120; thence north on the east boundary of this lot and on
those of lots 121 and 122; thence west on the north boundary of lot
122, across Coggeshall Avenue and continuing along the south boundary
of Plat 40 lots 253 and 86; thence north along the west boundary of
lot 86, across Ruggles Avenue, and continuing north along the west
boundaries of Plat 40 lots 401, 4%, and 372 to the south boundary of
Plat 40 lot 13; thence west along the south boundary of lot 13, and
north along its west boundary to Bateman Avenue. The District pro-
ceeds east along Bateman Avenue to Coggeshall Avenue, and then north
on Coggeshall to the south boundary of Plat 35 lot 8, continuing east
on this boundary and north along the east boundary of this lot to
Perry Street. The District bound continues east on Perry Street to
the east boundary of Plat 32 lot 265 thence north on the eastern
boundary of this lot and those of lots 176, 175, 174, 173, 137, and
136; thence west on the north boundary of lot 136 to East Street.
The District continues north on East Street to Pope Street; thence
west on Pope Street to the east boundary of Plat 32 lot 102; thence
north on this boundary, and west on the north boundary of this lot
to the east boundary of Plat 32 lot 294, and north on this boundary
to Bowery Street. The District continues east on Bowery Street to
King Street, thence north on King Street to Jones Avenue; thence
east on Jones Avenue to Bellevue Avenue; thence north on Bellevue
Avenue to the intersection of Memorial Boulevard and the starting
point of the District.
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(July 1969) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE Rhode Island

COUNTY:

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES Newport

INVENTORY — NOMINATION FORM FOR NPS USE ONLY

ENTRY NUMBER

DATE

(Type all entries — complete applicable sections)

(1. NAME

C OMMORM:

Bellevue Ayenue Historic District

AND/OR HISTORIC:

2. LOCATION

STREET ANDC NUMBER:

See Continuation Sheet 1

CITY OR TOWN:

Newport

STATE CcopE |COUNTY:

CODE

005

Rhode Island, 028l0 Ll Newport
[3. CLASSIFICATION '

OWNERSHIP STATUS

CATEGORY ACCESSIBLE
(Check One) ) TO THE PUBLIC

X District [] Building [7] Public Public Acquisition: h Occupied
[] Site ] Structure |[] Private [l In Process [[] Unoccupied
[[] Object E Both [[] Being Considered (7] Preservation work

in progress J No

[[] Restricted
m Unrestricted

FRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

[7] Commercial [ Industrial [XI Private Residence [T] Other (Specity)
[C] Educational ] Military [[] Religious

[7] Agricultural [[] Government X Pork [T] Transportation [[] Comments

[~] Entertainment X Museum [C] Scientific

4. OWNER OF PROPERTY

OWNER'S N AME:

Multiple ownership

INSTRUCTIONS

STREET AND NUMBER:

CITY OR TOWN: . ‘|sTATE:

SEE

CODE

[5. LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION

ALvLls

COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC:

Newport City Hall

STREET AND NUMBER:

Eroadway

CITY OR TOWN: STATE

Newport Rhode Island, 02810

CODE

Lk

FALNNOOD

6. R”EPRESENTATION‘I__I:J EXISTING SURVEYS

TITLE OF SURVEY:

Historic American Buildinrs Survey: Draft for Supnlement

DATE OF SURVEY: 1070-1971 i Federal | State [C] County O] Lecal

DEFOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS:

Litrary of Congress

STREET AND NUMBER:

Independence Averue and 1lst Street, S. E.

CITY OR TOWN: STATE:

Washington District of Columbia
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CODE
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Form
(July

10-300a UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE

1969) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE Rhode Island
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES |[COouUNTY
Newport
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM s
ENTRY NUMBER DATE

(Continuation Sheet)~1

2.

(Number all entries)

Location.

Beginning at the intersection of Bowery Street and Bellevue Avenue,
the District runs east along Rowery Street to the eastern lot line of
plat 33, lot 18, continuines south alone this lot line and the eastern
roundary of olat 33, lot 26, to the northern boundary of plat 33, lot 35,
thence east along this roundarv to the eastern roundary of plat 33, lot
35. The District continnes south along the eastern roundary of plat 33,
lot 35, then west alone the southern boundary of this same lot to a point
in line with Weld Court, thence south on Weld Court to Parker Avenue.

The Distriect then runs west on Parker Avemie to the eastern toundarvy of
olat 3, lot 38, thence south alone this bhoundarv and the eastern toun-
daries of plat 3L, lots 39, 55 and 56, and plat 36, lots 71, 72, 13, 15
ani 16, to Leroy Avenue. The District then runs east on Leroy Averue to
the western houndary of plat 36, lot 2li, then south on this btoundary to
the sonthern boundary of plat 36, lot 2li. The District continues east
along the southern toundaries of nlat 36, lots 2I: and 23, to Tawrence
Avenue, thence south on Lawrence Averme to Shepard Avenue, and west on
Shepard Avenue to the eastern lot line of plat 36, lot 38. The District
continues south along the eastern boundaries of plat 36, lots 38, lT,

55 and 127, to Marine Avenue, thence east alone Marine Avenue to the
ocean.. The District follows the shoreline south, west and east to the
point where Bellevue Avemie meets the sea cast of Failey's Beach. The
District then runs east on Bellevue Avenmue to Coereshall Ayenue and north
on Coggestall Avenue to the nortrern roundary of plat 38, lot 76, thence
east along this toundary to the western btoundary of plat 38, lot 38,
thence north and east along the boundary of plat 33, lot38 , to Ledece
Road. The DNistrict continues north on l.edege Road to Lakeview Aveme, east
on Lakeview Avenue to the western lot line of plat 37, lot 8, and north
along this lot line and the western »oundaries of plat 37, lots 5 and L,
to Rovensky Avenue. The District then continues north along the western
roundaries of plat 37, lots 28 and 19, then east along the northern boun-
dary of plat 37, lot 19 to the western roundarv of plat 37, lot 17, north
and west along the western and =outhern roundaries of plat 37, lot 17,

to Coereshall Avemue, north on Copreshall Avenue to the northern boundarv
of plat 37, lot 17, east along this houndary to the western roundary of
plat 37, lot 1, and then north alonrs this line and the western ‘oundary
of nlat 37, lot 71, to Pancroft Avenue. The District then runs west on
Rancroft Avenue to Cogpeshall Avenue, north on Coggeshall Aveme to tre
northern toundary of plat 37, lot L, then east along this boundary to the
western lot line of plat 37, 1ot 2, and then north alone this lot line
and the western toundaries of plat 37, lots 44 & 118, pl. 36 to the southern
boundary of plat 36, lot 56 , and then west alons this line to Copgeshall
Avenue. The District then runs north on Copgeshall Avenue to Victoria
Avemue, east on Victoria Avenue and then north alons the western houndaries
of plat 36, lots 109 and 39, to Shevard Avenue, trence west on Shepard

(See Continuation Sheet 2.)
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2. Location.

Avenue to Coggeshall Avenue and north on Coggeshall Avenue to Howe Avenue.
The District then runs east on Howe Avenue to the western boundary of

plat 36, lot 83, and north along this boundary to the southern boundary

of plat 36, lot 11, and thence west along this boundary to Spring Street.
The District then runs north on Spring Street to Webster Street, east on
Webster Street to the western boundary of plat 36, lot 8, and then north
along this boundary and the western boundaries of plat 36, lots 7 and 5,
and plat 35, lots 96 and 275, to Dixon Street. The District then runs

west on Dixon Street to Spring Street, north on Spring Street to the north-
ern boundary of plat 35, lot 22, then along the northern, western and east-
ern boundaries of this lot to Bellevue Court, east on Bellevue Court to

the western boundary of plat 35, lot 23, north along this boundary to the
northern boundary of plat 35, lot 23, thence east along this boundary and
the northern boundary of plat 35, lot 24}, to the western boundary of plat
35, lot 24, thence north along this line to Perry Street. The District
continues west on Perry Street to the western boundaries of plat 33, lots
25 and 19, thence north on these lines to Bowery Street and east on Bowery
Street to the starting-point.

7. Description.

Soleil was built as a simple but formal French manoir of modest dimensions.
These are what one still sees today, for there was little building or
change during the depression or war years. There have been losses through
fire or demolition, and in the last decades two shopping-centres have de-
stroyed the linear integrity of Bellevue Avenue at its beginning north of
the District, while some modern, mongrel structures for institutional or
apartment uses have been built in the District itself; but neither the
losses nor the replacements, so far, erode too seriously the over-all
District, all of whose properties are described in an inventory and shown
on a map accompanying this nomination.

(See Continuation Sheet 3)
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8. Significance.

nists on their way to Bailey's beach or the Casino and the setting for

their pleasant and somewhat ritualistic afternoon drives to take the air

in handsome open carriages while displaying prize horseflesh and the most
delicate of feminine flesh, apparel and parasols -- friends and guarded
enemies always bowing and smiling to each other. |In time, this famous
parade of conspicuous grace went out of style, and the place of the smartly-
travelling victoria or barouche has been taken by the slow-moving sedan or
bus of the modern sightseer, for the avenue is still an important and
rewarding sight -- surely one of the most famous streets of America and,

of these, an exceptionally intact one.

Along its eastern side (where some properties run back to cliffs
above the ocean) and its western one is a parade of architecture not
generally to be equalled elsewhere in this country, showing the full run
of stylistic forms in which the finer and larger American residences
were encased over a more than seventy-five-year period, and five of the
most imposing of these (The Elms, Chateau sur-Mer, Marble House, Rose-
cliff and Belcourt) are now opened to the public. Excepting these last-
mentioned, most other houses along the avenue remain in private owner-
ship and occupation (a]though some have been converted internally to
apartments or condominiums), and the original aspect and serenity of
this famous Historic Distirct is thus far preserved.

10. Geographical Data: UTM Coordinates

12 . 307150 . 4594550 19 . 307770 . 4592910
18 . 307400 . 4594490 19 . 307650 . 4591090
19 . 307440 . 4593530 19 . 306700 . 4591120
19 . 307700 . 4593560 19 . 307090 . 4593070
15.. 307730 . 4593380 19 . 306930 . 4594250

19 . 307410 . 4593340 19 . 307110 . 4594270

19 . 307450 . 4592960

GPO 921.724




[7. DESCRIPTION

(Choeck One)
Excellent ] Good [ Fair [] Deteriorated [[] Ruins [[] Unexposed
CONDITION m
(Check One) (Check One)
[E'} Altered ] Unaltered [] Moved [Xl Origiral Site

flank

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Presenting their fagades along a block-long lenzth of Bellevue

Avemie's east side running south from Memorial Boulevard are McKim,
Mead and White's Newport Casino of 1880-1881 (already listed inde-
pendently on the National Register) and three other buildings which

it (one to the north and two to the south) and are of height

comparable to it. One of these pre-dates the Casino and may somewhat
have influenced its frontal proportions and desirm, while the remain-
ing two structures were built about ten and twenty years, respectively,
alfter the Casino. All four were desisned with shop-fronts--intended
to house a fashionable shopping row, as tleystill do--on the street
level and offices, storerooms etc. above, except the Casino, which
there has reception rooms. From north to south, these several bulld-
ings are:
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7. Description.

stories, with copper-sheathed spandrels containing raised decoration at

the second-floor line. Buff brick walls on the side and rear have lime-
stone trim. A roof bhalustrade with statuary does not survive, and the
interiors have been remodelled for changine commercial uses. The exteriors
survive in excellent and unaltered condition.

The district here nominated has the following as its toundaries:
Memorial Bounlevard on the north, a parking-lot artutting on the south,
Freebody Street on the east, Bellevue Avenue on the west. It includes
all buildings within the area just defined (although some are minor and/or
modern commercial buildings not meriting description); it includes also
the pgrass courts between the Casino and the Casino Theatre, both of which
structures are already entered on the National Register: these grass
courts are a part of the original planning of the Casino and Theatre com-

plex.

It should be noted that on the week-end of November 4-5, 1972,
the Travers Block was victim of a fire which seriously, but not irrepar-
ably,; damaged the roof and the two upper floors. It is not yet known if
restoration will be undertaken, but such a step has been immediately apd
vigorously vpromoted by a wvariety of interested individuals and organi-
zations--local,state and national.

9. Major Bibliographical References.

The Newport Mercury, December 10, 1892, p. 1; May 10, 1893, p. l.
Newport Journal and Weekly News, February 28, 1903, p. 5.
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[ SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD (Check Ono or More as Appropriate) .
(] Pre-Columbian| (7] 16th Century [C] 18th Century ﬁ 20th Century
[ 15th Century - [ 17th Century [:X 19th Century

SPECIFIC DATE!S) (If Applicable and Known) 1570—1903

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

. Aboriginal ] Education ] Political : ] Urbon Plonning
? ;J_L‘F 1 Prehistoric ] Engineering ] Religion/Phi- . [{] Other (Specity)
/_?I \y.;n O Histeric 3 Industry losophy _ a8 Sports
\ 1 K ] Agriculture [J Invention [} Science
’ w K1 Archirecture [ Lendscaope [ Sculpture
()'Q‘ 1 Art Architecture [ Social/Humaon-
| D{‘ / ] Commerce [ Literature iVarian
E)}‘ 5 g [J Communications ] Militery [C] Theater
[C] Conservation [ Music [C] Tronsportation

STATEMEN‘I’ OF SIGNIFICANCE

Each of the huildlnpg descrlbed has its own notlceable merits:
The Travers Block of the early 1870's was an important beginning to
northern Bellevue Avenue's primacy as. a summer shopping center and--
with its strongly-articulated half-timber fagades--is similar to
Richard Hunt's domestic work of this same period in Newport. It is an
interesting and well-preserved example of his early stvle. Dating from

work of the prominent architects McKim, Mead & White, and it is already
on the National Register. The King Block, with its quiet fagade and
varied treatment of pables, is a dignified and restrained solution to
commercial buildine protlems in the late 19th century. The Audrain
Puilding is a handsome piece of early 20th-century architecture, com-
bining a thorough understandine of revival ornamental forms with the
demand for open, glassy shop-fronts--characterlstlc of the best com-
mercial architecture of its time, -

INSTRUCTIONS

The special significance of these four buildings, however, lies
in their combination to form a particularly distinguished commercial
street, the east side of Bellevue Avenue, berinning at Memorial Boule-
vard and rumning south. The development of the street began at the
north with the building of the Travers Block in 1870-1871. The next
building, and next in date, is the Newport Casino; the largest of the
four and historically the best known, it was not only a commercial
building but also a social center for the summer colony. Next chrono-
logically and geographically comes the King Block, and the Audrain
Building is the southern anchor of the group. The four buildings main-
tain a long street line and are basically related in scale and massing.
They are also related in their use of richly-textured surfaces which
at the same time allows great variety and liveliness. Without matching,
the buildings complement each other in a particularly urbane way,
forming an ensemble which should te preserved.

S EE

1880-1881, the Casino is a well known examnle of the "Shingle Style" .
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Downing, Antoinette F., and Scullv, Vincent J., Jr.: The Architectural
lleritare of Newnort, Rhode Island, 1610-1915 (Cambridpe, Massachu-
setts, 1952), pp. 138, 119-150.

Schuyler, Montgomery: The Works of the Late Richard M. Hunt (in "The
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Newnort Mercury, November 12, 1870, p. 2.

Scully, Vincent J., Jr.: The Shingle Style (New Haven, Connecticut,

1955), pp. 131-132.

(See Continuation Sheet 2)

- GEOGRAPHICAL DATA - : e ' i
LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES
DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PrROPERTY | O DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY
R OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES
CORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGITUDE
Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds

NW Ll1° 29° 0.02N| 71L° 18 33.0 i -
NE L1° 29°* 0.02N| 71 ° 18 23.0 .

SE | L1° 28' 53,0N| 71° 18 23.C0
SW Jle 28+ S3.0N! 71 ° 18133 ¢

=
APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY: 14 oht

ILIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE: CODE | COUNTY CODE
STATE: CODE | COUNTY: CODE
STATE: CODE | COUNTY:' CODE
STATE: CODE | COUNTY: CODE

[11. FORM PREPARED BY

Name ano TiTLE:Osmund R. Overby, Supervisor, H. A. B. S. Newport Project
Richard B. Harrington, Consultant

ORGAMNIZATION DATE

Rhode Island Historical Preservation Commission November 17, .'72

STREET AND NUMBER:
John Brown House, 52 Power Street

CITY OR TOWN: STATE CODE

Prayidasie Rhode Island, 02908 ' LL

[12. STATE LIAISON OFFICER CERTIFICATION - NATIONAL REGISTER VERIFICATION

————— i - — . —— —— R o a1 s = ——— .

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), I hereby nominate this propertly for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been
evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set

I hereby certify that this property is included in the

National Register.

forth by the National Park Service. ‘The recommended > . : - :
. . . . Chief, Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation
level of significance of this nomination is: i

National E’L State [J Local []

Date
Name .
ATTEST:
Title r
Keeper of The National Register
Date . Late
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STATE:
. er:ggﬁo UNITEDSTﬁlE;gsi:ﬁlﬂﬁygéy;&QEINTERIOR Rhode Island
COUNTY:
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES Newport
INVENTORY — NOMINATION FORM FOR NPS USE ONLY
ENTRY NUMBER DATE
(Type all entries — complete applicable sections)

1. NAME

COMMOMN:
Kingscote
AND/OR HISTORIC:

[2. LOCATION

STREET AND NUMBER! .
North-west corner of Bellevue Avenue and Bowery Street
CITY OR TOWN:
Newport
STATE copE |COUNTY:
Rhode Island, 028L0O Ll Newport 005
[3. CLASSIFICATION A R o
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS
(Check One)
(O] District [K] Building [ Public Public Acquisition: Xl Occupied Yes: .
] Site [C] Structure (X Priveote [0 In Process O] Unoccupied [J Reswicted

[] Object [0 Beth [J Being Considered (] Preservation work LY St
in progress E Neo

CODE

ACCESSIBLE
TO THE PUBLIC

PRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)
[ Agricultural [C] Government O Park [[] Transportation ] Comments
[[] Commercial [ Industrial [X Private Residence [[] Other (Specify)
[] Educational [J Military [ Religious
[C] Entertainment ] Museum [] Scientific
f4. OWNER OF PROPERTY '
OWNER'S N AME: -

Mrs. Anthony Rives, Estate of
STREET AND NUMBER:

Kingscote, Bellevue Avenue
CITY OH'TOWN: STATE: CODE

Newnort Rhode Island, 0280 LL
[5LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION T T
‘COURTHOUSE. REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC:

Newvort City Hall
STREET AND NUMBER:

Broadway
CITY OR TOWN: STATE CODE

Newport Rhode Island, 028L0 Ll

"INSTRUCTIONS

t3lvis

S E E

PALNNOD

6. REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS
TITLE OF SURVEY:
Historic American Buildines Survey
DATE OF SURVEY: 1959, 1969 [ Federal ] State ] County O Leecal

DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS:

Library of Congress

STREET AND NUMBER:
Indepdendence Avenue and lst Street, S. E,
CITY OR TOWN: STATE: CODE

Washington District of Columbia 11

HIBWNN AMLINT

ATINO 35N SdN 304

3Alva




.« |7. DESCRIPTION

(Check One)
K] Excellent +[] Goeod (] Fair ] Deteriorated [J Ruins [} Unexposed
CONDITION
(Check One) (Check One)
W] Altered [.] Unaltered ] Moved é Origiral Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

a3

Kingscote is a Victorian cottage orné designed in 1839 by Richard
Upjohn as a summer residence for George Noble Jones of Savannah, Georgiaj
it was completed by 1841. Set in the centre of a broad, flat lawn among
large trees, the house is a timber-framed strucuture upon a low foun-
dation of smooth, coursed granite, and its brick-filled walls are faced
with horizontal matched boarding painted stone-grey; trim is accented in
red and black; roof covering is of red slate. Picturesque and romantic
variety of form was wanted, and so (except that the main entrance is
centred) the building is irregular in plan, in its elemental masses and
their height. It is in one part of one-and-a-half storeys, in another
of two-and-a-half, and there is much variation in type and size among
roof forms, gables, dormers and porches. The house as originally planned
was not intended to be a large one, and although enlargement (which will
be described later) took place in 1880-1881 it still appears small in
scale, and quaint.

The main front faces south, and the wide Tudor-arched front door-
way, flanked by two narrow windows of stained glass, is in a partially-
recessed porch with a concave shed roof and sawn wooden pendants along
its cornice. The portion of the house containing this entrance and
other parts to its left (or west) is of one-and-a-half storeys, gabled
and cross-gabled, with gabled dormers. Here the steep gables have deep,
shading eaves with bargeboards of curving sawn openwork and surmounting
pinnacles. First-floor windows have eared Tudor drip-moulds, and there
is a small, rectangular one-storey bay-window capped by machicolation
to the left of the entrance porch and beneath a prominent gable.

The block to the right of the entrance is, however, of two-and-
one-half storeys in height beneath a hipped roof with hipped dormers on
one side and, again, generously-projecting eaves (which have lost their
sawn, cusped pendants). The south end of this block forms a semi-hexa—
gonal bay while the north end has a smaller rectangular one, and its
east side--of four regularly-spaced bays--forms the Bellevue Avenue
facade of the house and has a one-storey porch with slim posts of wood,
executed as moulded clustered columns, supnorting a concave roof with
eaves pendants. In this block, all windows except the dormers have drip-
moulds .

The above parts form the main portion of the house and, excepting
the plain rhythm of the Bellevue Avenue front, exhibit a complex and
visually lively play of asymmetry subtly achieving balance. The shadowy
void of the recessed porch together with the variety of the lower,
wastern part of the house, with its gables, dormers, densely-latticed
casement windows and profuse, lace-like trim, combine to hold their own
in weight against the higher, larger, plainer eastern mass, with its
more formal tall, large-paned casement (and, in the porch, sliding) win-
dowis.  Tha 1411, slonder chinnegys in numarous locations plav their part,
Bow, @ @ Celid.  Somesiie olUNcws: Dbom o Dang,, sandloyg,. gadled, 3% omer-

and-a-half wing running off, with various ;:gs and recessions, to the

(See Continuation Sheet 1.)
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7. Descrintion.

nQrth—west of the house, and this has its full complement of dormers, lat-
tices, barreboards, pendants and pinnacles.

In 1380-1881 the house was enlarred for the King family, who had
acquired it in 186li. Undertaken by the firm of Mckim, Mead & White, and
chiefly to provide a sizeahle new dinine-room, this enlargement was ac-
complished by moving the service wing a distance to the north-west and
inserting tetween it and the main house a three-storey, squarish block
covered by prey shingling and a hipped roof, whose first floor contains
the dining-room. In roofline, scale, similarity of trim etc., it was
made, as much as possible, to harmonise with and not overpower the deli-
cacy of the old "cottage."

Entering through the Tudor-arched, double-leafed front door, one is
in a vestibule area set off from the nearly-square stair-hall by three
open pointed arches on attenuated clustered columns of moulded wood.
Trimmed in dark wood, the hall has a dado whose shallow panels are of
cusped, pointed-arch form, and its ceiline is wood-panelled. The stair
rises-2long the north and west walls and has a ramped moulded handrail
carried on slim turned balusters which runs up from a heavy, round,
turned newel; stair-ends are ornamented by carving. Window and door trim
here, as elsewhere on the interior, consists of drip-moulds. To the right
of the hall lie the two drawing-rooms which fill the eastern block of the
house. They are connected with each other by a wide four-centred archway
with sliding doors, and this shape is echoed by the enframement of an al-
cove in the north bay. Both rooms having floor-length sliding windows

~opening onto the east porch. The mantel in the south drawing-room is the
original one, of polished dark wood with carving of Gothic inspiration,
and encloses an arched hearth-opening bordered in moulded brick and
tacked by herringbone brickwork. A twin mantel in the north drawing-room
was removed c. 1888 to allow substitution of an elaborate one of statu-
ary marble in Rococo Revival design brought from a New York town house of
King relatives which was beins demolished: as that house and its mantel
dated from 18,0 they were contemporaneous with Kingscote. A study (for-
merly a downstairs bedroom) fills the south-west corner of the first floor
and has the small machicolated bay-window seen left of the entrance. To
its north, and projecting westerly, is the library (the old dining-room),
which has early vainted eslass filling the transoms of its four-part west-
ern window. There is a small "north library" (probably the original 1lib-
rary) reyond the wall which backs the start of the main staircase.

From the north-west corner of the original house a hallway area runs
north within, and egiving access to, the enlargement of 1880-1881. This
passage is panelled in dark wood on its east side, but its north end is
opened by large windows which have transoms showing dahlia-flower motifs
in stained rlass; these flowers are also shown in relief on the brass
wall-sconces lighting this passage which Stanford White and his partners

(See Continuation Sheet 2.)
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7. Description.

created as a prelude to the mapgnificent new dining-rorm to its west. _
Hallway and dining-room are divided by an ornamental (and completely re-
movable) lone screen-wall and double-leafed doorway of wooden turned
spindles, lattices and carved open work. The dining-room itself is a
large oblong with a three-windowed bay slipghtly extruded at its south-west
corner. Walls are panelled to plate-rail heirht, which matches the height
of the hall screen, and there is a built-in sideboard on the north one.
At this level a moulding runs continuously in a designedly unifying way
around the room; arove it, north and south walls are covered by a
"vaving" of thin rectangular cork strips, as is the ceiling of under-
stated compartments. The west wall, the great decorative feature of the
room, is quite different. Here there is a large hearth surrounded to
moulding-heipght by a plain, wide, flat bhand of tawny, grey-veined marhle;
above the moulding the chimney-breast is faced with small squares of
creamy Tiffany tiles. On either side of the fireplace, small squares of
Tiffany slass, white with some of blue, form shimmering, translucent"win-
dow-walls," and this glass horders the larpge plate-glass panes of the
windows in the corner tay, where asain there are transoms with dahlias in
stained glass. Smokey and nearly Tiffany glass has also heen used for
the shades of the wall sconces. This décor, innovative in its day, was
nevertheless handled so as to be a transition and not a jolt from the
older part of the house.

In the oripginal structure the peneral lay-out of rooms on the second
floor follows that of the first floor, with the exception that chambhers are
smaller, because rteside and retween them are inserted--unusual for 1839-
18L1--larre clothes- and linen-closets. Trim here is like that downstairs,
but simpler and often painted rather than stained or varnished; however,
the upper hall's ceiling has polysonal compartmentation defined by slim,
dark-stained mouldings. There are two small rooms here of particular
interest. The first is over the downstairs wvestibule area and has a large
southern window; this was originally an aviary--probably also including
fpreenery--and through larese French doors from the hall the birds could be
ohserved (it is now a rathroom, and the doors contain frosted glass). To
its right, over the present study, is the old school-room, which is not
large. It has a southern dormer with latticed, Gothic-pointed casements;
flanking this dormer on the inside are two cupboards or bookcases each
enclosed on two sides by glazing matching that of the dormer. Upper rooms
in the 1880-1881 addition display simple moulded door trim with corner
blocks and interesting tinted wooden mantels which McKim, Mead & White
Seem to have adapted from William Morris.

On the somewhat sheltered and simply-landscaped erounds (chiefly
lawn, laree old trees including red Japanese manles, a weeping willow,
some shrubberies), there is also a one-and-one-half-storey claphoarded
stable of mid-Victorian style with dormers having sawn, curving barge-
boards. House and grounds are impeccably maintained. The house is occu-

(See Continuation Sheet 3.)
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7. Description.

pried, and the decoration and contents present an excellent picture of
XIX-Century life and prosperous taste at a time before ostentation had
displaced comfort.

8. Sienificance.

Kinpgscote even has an interesting "renealogy." In 1835 Upjohn de-
sifned a larese Gothic villa in stone, in Maine, for Robert H. Gardiner--
perhaps his first residential essay in that style. OGardiner's son-in-
law was George Noble Jones, of a prominent Georgia plantation family.
Such Southerners were among the first to discover Newport's summer charms,
and Jones in turn chose Upjohn to tuild a house for him there. In New-
port, the Joneses apparently had a very friendly connection with the
locally long-established King family, who had descent from the city's
early bhenefactor, Abraham Redwood. Liking what Upjohn had done for Jones
in 1839, Bdward King called npon that architect to design for him in
18LS, on a larpe property west of Kingscote, an imposing house in
"Italian villa" style which still stands there and is famous.

Once the Civil War had erupted, the Jonesés were unable to use
their summer home, though the Kings aprarently watched over the property
for them. During the war arranrements were somehow concluded for its
sale to William Henry King in 186l, when it received its present name.

He had been engaged in the China trade, which will account for many of
the furnishings and ornaments seen in the house. (ItYworth noting,

in passing, that later Georgia Joneses have not forgotien the house and
have come north to wvisit it: it was they who informed of the aviary.)

In this century Kinpgscote descended to Mrs. E. Maitland Armstrong, born
Gwendolen King, who resided there until her death in 1968 and made its
preservation a great object of her life. In 1919 she was oblired to do
rattle with the City of Newport, which in one of its more misepuided mo-
ments wanted to condemn the property and build there a modern high school
which would have destroyed not only Kingscote tut the entire remaining
ambience, including the Newport Casino complex and other nearhy proper-
ties of architectural distinction. Fortunately the municipality was pre-
vented from accomplishing this intention. Kingscote is now owned and
occupied by Mrs. Armstrong's daughter, Mrs. Anthony Rives, who returned
to the house in order to contimue givine it the rreat care that it has

always had.

Note: Mrs. Rives died suddenly on October 23, 1972. Under the
terms of her will, the Kingscote property is devised to
The Preservation Society of Newport County, which will in
future maintain and operate it as a house-museum,
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[C] Historic ] Industry losophy
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
.

Kingscote's importance and significance are considerable and
varied. It was desipned as a summer retreat, for which a "rustick
Gothick" style had been considered appropriate as far back as the paze-
bos and tea-houses in XVIII-Century English gardens. An early advo-
cate of this style here was Alexander Jackson Davis, who used it to pro-
vide freedom of plan and ventilation and "un-rigid," non-academic ex-
terior forms for countrv and summer houses. His thinking was contagious
to Richard Upjohn (1802-1878), Kingscote's architect--who already had an
interest in asymmetrical planning and the Gothic style--and was promoted
well past mid-century by A. J. Dovning and Calvert Vaux,

Kingscote exhibits the newly-desired picturesqueness and romanti-
cism of form and the concomitant freedom of planning in an immediately
understandable and visually interestine way. It is small-scale; it is
full of variety; its has a playful asymmetry:; it has ever-changing
light and shadow within its porches, its overhangs, its corners, even
its rooms. It is a landmark of its reneration and style and of Ameri-
can architecture as a whole.

Its intrinsic value is enhanced by the fact that it was designed
by the famous Ricrard Upjohn: a number of his drawings for this house
are at the Avery Library of Columbia University. He vractised from the
1830's to the 1870's and was a prime promoter of the Gothic Revival,
thoupgh designing more churches than residences in that style, and he
was founder of the American Institute of Architects. Because of its
(tothic style, its location and state of preservation, Kingscote fills
an important place in Newport's impressive sequence of dwellings ex-
hibitine the full variety of architectural treatments prevailing from
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Form 10-200a UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE
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FOR NPS USE ONLY
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(Number all ontries)

2. Location.

Reginning at the intersection of Merorial Roulevard and Cliff Ave-
mie, the Diftrict roundary rns east along Memorial Boulevard to Easton
Bay and the reginnine of Easton Beach. The boundary tren follows the shore-
line south to where Marine Avemue anproaches the water. The boundary then
runs west along Marine Avenue to the western roundary of olat 36, lot 53,
north along this toundary to Rugrles Avenmue, east along Ruggles Avenue to
the eastern toundary of plat 36, lot 1i7, and then north along this boun-
dary and the eastern roundary of plat 36, lot 38, to Shepard Avemie. The
District boundary then runs east along Shepard Avenue to lawrence Avenue
and north on Lawrence Avenue to the southern btoundary of plat 36, lot 23,
then west along this Foundary and the southern boundary of plat 36, lot
2li, to the western boundary of this same lot and north along this boun-
dary to Leroy Avemue. The District btoundary continues west on Leroy Ave-
wme to the eastern boundary of plat 36, lot 16, and continues north along
this boundary and the eastern boundaries of plat 36, lots 15, 13, 72 and
71the western boundary of plat 3L, lot 5k, to the northern roundary of
plat 3L, lot S5h. The District continues east along this toundary to Clay
Strest, north on Clay Street to YWard Avenue and east on Vard Avenue to
Annandale Road. The District boundary then runs along the northern boun-
dary of plat 3, lot L6, to the western roundary of plat 3L, lot L7, then
north along this boundary to the northern toundary of plat 3L, lot 17,
and east along this boundary and the northern toundary of plat 3l, lot 27,
to tre western toundary of plat 3L, lot 182. The District “oundary then
runs north along this toundary to Cliff Ave-ue and its extension, and then
north to Memorial Boulevard.

7. Description.

servation; the remainine houses are still occupied as private summer re-
sidences or dircreeatly disguised avartments.

North of the north-eastern portion of Ochre Point and sharing the
Point's precipitous shoreline is an area know as The Cliffs, which is
also part of the proposed Historic District. This section runs from the
Forty Steps which go down to the water at the east end of Narraransett
Avenue to a termination at the north, at Memorial Boulevard, and has as
its western roundary CLliff Avenue, which runs south from the ronlevard
only part of the way to Ochre Point. The Cliffs is a somewhat narrow
strip ratber than an arrle, nearly-saquare srace as is tre Point.

Recause of its airiness and view and its relative inaccessikility
to the general purlic, thic quite early oroved to re desirable as a sum-
rer residence location, tbough no more than four "estates" could com-

(See Continuation Sheet 2.)
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Ochre Point is a residential area about.)30 acres in extent, pro-
jecting into the ocean near the middle of the east side of Newport.
Within its toundaries which are defined elsewhere in this nomination, it
has two main avenues runnine north and south, and six running east and
west. Immediately contizuous to the north is the section known as The
Cliffs, which also forms vart of the Historic District and which will
te described further on.

The Point took its oresent use and prominence in the middle of the
XIX Century. At that time the southern part of Newport was developing
in intensive fashion as a settinc for summer houses, with Bellevue
Aveme forming the spine of this villa colony. Bellevue Avenue was a
choice address, but the lots on btoth sides of that roadway (not all of
which have ocean frontage) had been rapidly built upon, and there was
need for nearby expvansion of the summer-residence community. East of
the middle part of Pellevue Averme is the flat Ochre Point area, pro-
jecting well into the water, which breaks against it btelow rock ledges
to tre east and south., It has a fine, elevated north-easterly view
over the lower, Laston's Beach, part of Newport.and, easterly out past
Middletovn's hill and on towvards Sakonnet, YWestport and Cave Cod, far
out into the Atlantic horizon. Tris high, grassed promontory had its
obviously desirable features even though Bellevue Avenue was the first

fashionakrle allde.

Building on the Point hegan in the 1850's, as one can tell by the
stvle (Italian Villa) of some of the houses closest to Rellevue Avenue,
and it progressed over future decades in a west-to-east direction and
a north-to-south one along fine, tree-lined streets. Most lots are com-
paratively larpe ones, and those built uvon earliest were «ven sur-
rounds of shrubbery or low walls; those built upon later, and with
rreater architectural elaboration, have in wany cases higk iron fences
with ornate gateways. All residential sites were given careful artoreal
or carden plantingz and smooth lawns. Practically all residences re-
quired nearby subsidiary ruildings:: such as statles, rardeners' cottaces
or greenhouses. As the popularity of this district continued and in-
creazed, it began to shov (as it still does) a parade of all the archi-
tectural styles popular throughout the latter part of the XIX Century
and the first qguarter of the present one. In a few cases, houses of
the 1850'5-1870's which were later thought to te not aesthetically
pleasing were demolished and replaced by structures of more academicelly
glegant form, or were given scme re-casing. On Ochre Point there has teen
much less demolition for qther, modern,construction than elsewhere in
Newport, and there has teen much less destruction by fire. Therefore,
this vart of the Historic District remains visually largely what it was
at the height of Newport's prominsnce as a "swmer social capital" --

a prominence greatly enhanced by.its architectural adornments. Certain
of the great houses on tha Point are now in instituticnal use, and the
prandest of them all is a carefully-administered house-museum; but this
has not changed’ their apoearance and has, in fact, enaured their pre-

(See Continuation Shest 1.)
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Description

fortably be located there. Of these (excepting the eighteenth-century

John Easton farmhouse on a small property) is Cliff Lawn, built c.1870

at the boulevard end and today a restaurant or inn, To its south are the
Hopedene, Seaward and Ocean Lawn summer houses -- the last a mansion dating
from the 1880's and the first two dating respectively from the beginning
and the middle of this century and probably replacing Victorian villas.
Between Cliff Lawn and Hopedene two short streets run down shoreward to

the east from Cliff Avenue; these are Cliff Terrace and Seaview Avenue, upon
which were built in the last quarter of the nineteenth century picturesque
but inexpensive and unpretentious summer cottages and, more recently, a
number of small houses of Cape Cod or ranch style,

The Ochre Point-Cliffs Historic District includes the Cliff Walk from

" its beginning at Memorial Boulevard south to Marine Avenue (the remainder

of the Walk is included in the eastern perimeter of the Bellevue Avenue
Historic District. The Cliff Walk is a foot-path of unusual beauty,
approximately three miles in its total length, running along the crest of
the Cliffs, with the sea below and the gardens of the District's estates
on the west. The Walk provides spectacular views at every point, as it
winds near many mansions and occasionally dips down to the shore.
Originally a fishermen's trail, the Cliff Walk was at one time the subject
of a court battle between the owners of the estates bordering the walk-
way and the public. The estate-owners wished to prevent public access

and viewing across their properties and erected gates and other barriers
to close the Walk and prevent such nuisance. Such action outraged the
native Mewporters, who went to court and won a decision which re-asserted
the right of the public to an unobstructed foot-way around the island.
Thus, the barriers were removed, and the present foot-path was laid out,
with much use ever since, with maintenance undertaken first by the

Works Progress Administration in the 1930's-1940's, and by the municipality
in more recent years.

(See Continuation Sheet 3)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The architectural and social history of Newport over a seventy-
five-year period shows and exvlains itself with clarity in the rela-
tively compact area of the Ochre Point-Cliff Historic District.

Chronolozically, one can tegin with the E. D. Morgan house of
the 1850's on Narragansett Avenue. Ruilt in ths Itaiian Villa etyle,
it is complete with asymmetrically-placed tower, spreading eaves,
rrackets, quoins and ralusters. This house and the two wide, handsome
Italianate houses diagonally across the street from it (and Sulthorne,
to the socuth, off Webhster Avenue and unfortunately very recently de-
molished) were among the earliest of the summer residences to te built
on the Point. They are on spacious hut not huze lots -- no site for
these teing of "estate" size -- and they are commodious tut not grandi-
ose houses. They were intended to be dienified summer residences, tut
ostentation and magnificence were in the 1850's qualities not yet reach-
ed for. At that time comfort, quiet good taste and leisurely pleasures
were more the summer keynotes than were social ambition and conspicuous
display. Such houses as these -- and the anpular, mansarded and dis-
creetly clavohoarded Cave Cliff to the east, of the early 1870's -- were
designed for large and prosperous Victorian families from warious parts
of the eastern seatroard who would keep a reasonatle numrer of necessary
servants and a gardener or two, who would have frequent house-miests
and whrose chief entertainments would be dinner-, tea- and garden-parties,
croquet and strolls on the grounds, visits to the local shops and visits

"to the bteach.

Such a sedate vattern, however, was not wmaintained for very long
in the period after the Civil War, as old wealth found itself hapoily
increasing and ravidly-self-multiplying new wealth apneared. Inven-
tiveness and restlessness tecame evident in toth social life at the
higher levels and its mis-en-scéne, domestic architecture. In this
pveriod arrived houses of the Stick Style -- their walls and sticks then
no doukt in contrasting colours -- such as Anglesea, Fairholm, and the
somewhat confused Nethercliff Hall (a chilet seers to have teen one of
its several rod-parents). At this noint a definite pleasure beran to
te taken in displayine one's position and affluence throush choice of
site, imaginative architecture erected tlereon and cdefinitely intended
to te seen, and in more varied and sovbisticated forms of entertainine --

(See Continuation Sheet |P.)
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The Audrain Building
220-230 Bellevue Avénue

This last building in the row was built in 1902-1903 from the designs of the

New York architect Bruce Price for Adolf L. Audrain and is of masonry construc-
tion, two stories high, with a flat roof. The rectangular plan, 110 feet by

73.5 feet, contains six adjoining shops. The 110-foot facade is divided into
six bays defined by tall arches, one bay for each shop, with a richly-embellished
doorway at the center leading to a stairway to the upper floor. The second
floor was designed to contain six offices in the front and five in the rear.

Beau iful terracotta trim.

Kingscote
NW corner of Bellevue Avenue and Bowery Street

Richard Upjohn was commissioned in 1839 to design this house for George Noble
Jones, a Savannah merchant. During the Civil War the house was tended by
William Henry King, who acquired it from Jones in 1864, giving the present
house its name. ?The nearby Italian villa was designed by Upjohn as well).
Kingscote is a fine "gothick-rustick" in the style of A. J. Davis, Downing
and Vaux. It is small in scale, asymmetrical and has the typical projecting
and receding planes that give the house variety of 1ight and shadow--one of
the best examples of the Gothic taste.

There is the additional importance of the celebrated McKim, Mead & White dining
room added in 1880-1881. Here is an early example of the inventive decorative
talent of this famous firm, which was to influence American house interiors for
decades to come. Of particular note in this room are its qual ites of being
light and airy while at the same time rich; there is new handling of old
materials--wood and marble--and imaginative employment of new ones--Tiffany
glass and cork. Also notable about the house in general are its immaculate
state of preservation and the important and handsome accumulation of family
furniture, rugs, porcelains, paintings, silver, objects de vertu, etc. which
fi1l its rooms.

Bellevue Avenue

The Bellevue Avenue Historic District has as its spine a stretch of about two
miles of this avenue, commencing where it is crossed by Bowery Street and
continuing south and then, near the end, a short distance wegt, until the
avenue's termination at the beginning of Ocean Avenue and just above Bailey's
Beach. Forming the District, on either side of this extend of the avenue and
on Ledge Road near its end, is a long succession of residential properties.

184
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| Elm Court, 1853. Italian Villa style; two stories with varied roof
silhouette; hipped roofs; brick wall cover; regularly spaced--some
grouped -- windows; entrance in center of east side; two story
stable building at northeast part of property in conforming style.

2 Berkeley Villa, by Ogden Codman, Jr., 1910. Colonial Revival style;
two=-and-one-half stories with hipped roof; clapboard wall cover;
central entrance pavilion on west recessed between engaged two-story
columns; regularly-spaced windows; garden ar rear with summer-
houses; surrounding high brick wall.

;W Edna Villa (lsaac Bell house), by McKim, Mead & White, 1882-1883.
Queen Annephingle style; two-and-one half stories; cross-gabled
roof; shingle wall cover; varied window size and placement; entrance
in porch on south side; turreted bay on south side; partially-
surrounding porch with two-story bowed extension at north-east and
one-story gabled extension at south-east. HABS, NR.

4, Berkeley House, by McKim, Mead & White, 1884-1885. Queen Anne style;
two-and-one-half stories under a cross-gabled roof; wall cover of
brick with wood trim and timbering; entrance on north side in re-
cessed porch; varied window placement; trees and shrubs within a
high brick wall.

5 Eastcourt, c.1865-1880. ''Carpenter Gothic' style; two-and-one-half
stories; parallel gabled roofs (house probably built in two stages)
with small frontal intersecting gable at south end; clapboard wall
cover; sawn bargeboards and porch piers; regularly-spaced, plain
windows; entrance in wide one-story porch on south side.

6 Perrywinkle, c.1870. Nondescript style, remodelled; one-and-one
half stories; gable roof with frontal mansard extension, some shed
dormers in gabled section and dormers in mansard; regularly-spaced
windows; clapboard wall cover; entrance in columned porch under
frontal (south) mansard extension.

7 House, c.1895. Shingle and Colonial Revival styles; two-and-one-half
stories gable roof with frontal gabled projection at one side; shngle
wall cover; regularly-spaced windows; entrance within one-story
columned porch.
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C. H. Baldwin house, by Potter & Robinson, 1877-1878. Queen Anne
style; two-and-one-half stories under high cross-gabled roof; wall
cover of brick, clapboards, shingles, panels, timbering; entrance
in porte-cochere at west; windows varied and grouped; service
building at rear. HABS, NR.

The Elms, by Horace Trumbauer, 1900-1902. Academic French Louis XV
style; two stories and penthouse; flat roof behind parapet with
statuary at angles; limestone wall cover; tall segmental and flat-
headed French windows withwrought-iron guard rails; triple arched
entrances of wrought iron and glass in center of east facade; bal-
ustraded terraces with sculpture; imposing iron fence and gates on
avenue frontage; extensive lawn, trees, formal sunken garden with
pavilions at rear designed by Miller and Bowditch; paired formal
stable buildings with iron clairvoyee-between at northwest. NR.

De Rham House, 1856. Mansard style; three stories within a clapboard
wall cover and mansard roof; one-story surrounding porch with

entrance on west side; plain, regularly-spaced windows; set back on
a flat lawn.

William G. Weld house, by Dudley Newton, 1882-1884. Queen Anne-
Romanesque styles; two-and-one-half stories with cross-gabled roof
and turreted angle bay; faced in rough tan ashlar; plain, regularly-
spaced windows; entrance in porte-cochere on west front; set back on
a flat lawn; annexes at rear made during school use.

House, c.1840-1845. Greek Revival style; two-and-one-half stories;
gable roof; clapboard wall cover; regularly-spaced windows; entrance
within one-story Doric-columned porch.

Apartment building, c.1950-1960. ''Moderne' style; three stories;
flat roof; brick wall cover (buff color); grouped windows.

Apartment building, 1973; four stories high with a flat roof; interiopf
open galleries; brick wall cover with cement trim; grouped windows.

iiouse, c.1895-1900. Colonial Revival style; two-and-one-half stories;
hip roof; buff brick wall cover with stone trim; entrance within
colomned porte-cochere on west side; regularly-spaced windows.

House, c.1870-1875. Mansard style; three stories within a mansard
roof; clapboard wall cover; regularly-spaced windows; entrance
within a full-width columned Colonial Revival porch on west side.
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17 Chateau-Nooga, by George Post, 1880-1881. Queen Anne-cum-Tudor styles;
two-and-one-half stories; cross-gabled roof; brick stone, shingle
wall cover with timber trim; grouped windows; recessed entrance
porch on west side.

18 Rockry Hall, 1848, enlarged c.1880's. Gothic villa style; two-and-
one-half stories; cross-gabled roof; stone and shingle wall cover;
plain, widely-spaced windows; entrance in vestibule-porch on north
side.

19 William Osgood house, 1887. Romanesque style; two-and-one-half
stories; mansard roof; rough stone wall cover; regularly-spaced,
plain windows; entrance within full width arcaded stone porch across
west side, subsidiary entrance on north side.

20 House, c.1885. Queen Anne-Shingle Style; two-and-one-half stories;
hipped roof; cut-shingle wall cover; varied size and placement of
windows; porches, of which the entrance is in a north one.

2] House, c.1890. Chateau style; two-and-one-half stories; high, sloping
mansard roof; walls of brick (now and perhaps originally painted);
wood architectural trim; entrance recessed in lower part of two-story
loggie on west.

22 The Villa, c.1870. Mansard style; two-and-one-half stories; mansard
roof; clapboard wall cover; regularly-spaced windows; bay at east
end; entrance on north side.

23 Swanhurst, by Alexander McGregor, 1851. |Italianate style; two-and-
one-half stories; gable roof with eaves brackets, intruded by
frontal pediment on north side; wall cover presently stucco over
stone, wood trim including hoods, balconies; polygonal tower on
west side, one-story porch on east side; entrance under hood in
center of north side. Carriage house to the south.

24 House, c.1890-1900. Colonial Revival style; two-and-one-half stories
under a cross-gabled roof; clapboard wall cover; regularly-spaced,
plain windows; entrance within one-story porch on west side.

25 House, c.1880-1885. Queen Anne style; two-and-one-half stories;
gable roof with dormers; cut-shingle wall cover; various size and
placement of windows; entrance within porch; stone and brick stable
accompanying.
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Wysteria Lodge, c.1870-1875. Remodelled in Colonial Revival style;
two-and-one-half stories; mansard roof clapboard wall cover;
regularly-spaced windows; entrance within one-story porch,

Harold Brown house, by Dudley Newton, 1894. Gothic manor style; two-
and-one-half stories; gabled roof; rough beige stone wall cover;
regularly-spaced and grouped windows; entrance in north-east angle;
stables in conforming style at rear of property.

The Flower Cottage, c.1870-1875. Stick Style with Colonial Revival
remodelling; small structure of one-and-one-half stories under a

gable roof; clapboarded; simple window treatment; entrance within
porch on south side.

Service buildings belonging to Harold Brown House, now residences.

John Carter Brown house, c.1865. Mid-Victorian in style--mansard,
bracketed. Two-and-one-half stories; mansard roof with cupola;
clapboard wall cover; regularly-spaced windows; entrance within
porch on three-bay frontal elevation.

Chateau sur-Mer, by Seth Bradford, 1851, enlarged by Richard M.
Hunt, 1872-1876. Mansard style; three stories under a high, angular
mansard roof; rough tan granite ashlar wall cover with lighter-
coloured stone trim; regularly spaced flat-headed windows and
angular bay-windows; two towers; one-story porch around southern
end; entrance in porte-cochere on north side; flat, grassed grounds
contain numerous old trees and shrubbery plantings, stable, entrance
lodge and entrance archway; low granite wall of rough stone with

smooth stone gate piers and wrought-irongates surrounds property.
HABS, NR.

Stonor Lodge, c.1870-1880. Stick style; two-and-one-half-stories;
cross-gabled roof; clapboard wall cover; entrance in porch on east
side; regularly-spaced plain windows.

Vernon Court, by Carrere & Hastings, 1900-1901. XVIIl-Century French
chateau style; two-and-one-half stories under a high hipped roof;
stucco wall cover with ornament of swags; regularly-placed tall

French windows with wrought-iron guard-rails; wrought-iron entrance
gates at north and south for drive passing uncovered eastern entrance;
formal high-walled garden at west designed by Wadley & Smythe; acc-

essory buildings at east side of the property.
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34 House (remodelled stable? n.d.). One-and-one half stories; gable

roof; shingle wall cover.

35 Stable of the demolished W. G. Loew house, c.1890. Queen Anne style;
rectangular structure of two-and-one-half stories with shingle and
wood-panelled wall cover below a gable roof with round, domed cupola.

36 Stables of Chetwode, the main house now destroyed.

37 Fairlawn, 1852. Victorian Tudor-manor style; enlarged and extended
in 1883 from designs of William A. Potter; two-and-one-half stories
below cross-gabled roof; brick wall cover with timber trim
(originally); grouped transomed windows; entrance within porte-
cochere on west side; set upon flat lawns with some trees; stables
at the rear to the north-east.

38 Belmead, c.1900. Colonial Revival-cum-ltalianate styles; three
stories; hipped roof; wall cover of brick (now stuccoed) with stone
trim; regularly-spaced windows; entrance on east side in elliptical,
columned one-story porch. Stables located on Coggeshall Avenue,
now residence.

39 Ivy Tower, 1883. Queen Anne style; two-and-one-half stories, round
tower in angle; stone, stucco, shingle and timber wall cover;
grouped windows; entrance in recessed porch on east front.

Lo Sunnylea, c.1880. Queen Anne style; two-and-one-half stories; cross-
gabled roof; shingle wall cover; variously-placed windows; entrance
in surrounding porch and southern porte-cochere.

4] Rosecliff, by McKim, Mead & White, 1900-1902. French XVII-Century
style (adapted from the Grand Trianon); three stories; including
pernthouse concealed behind eaves balustrade; white terra-cotta wall
cover forming both plain surfaces and elaborate trim; round-and-flat-
headed French windows plain surfaces and elaboarte trim; round-and
flat-headed French windows, plain surfaces and elaborate trim; round
and flat-headed French windows with wrought-iron guard-rails; entrance
at south end of west front under iron and glass "marquise;"
balustraded terrace on east side; flat, grassed area at west. NR,

42 Sherwood, by Hoppin, Koen & Huntington, 1904. Georgian-Palladian
style; three stories; low hipped roof behind balustrade; two-story
columned portico at front, two-story columned elliptical portico
at rear; stucco wall cover; regularly-spaced windows; entrance within

eastern portico; sloping lawn at rear with high-gabled Victorian li!ﬁ'
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42 stable surviving from previous house on the site, at north-west
(cont.) rear.

43 Sea Cliff, by Frederick Rhinelander King, 1953. Informal,
picturesque style with some Georgian Revival detailing; two-and-
one-half stories; cross-gabled roof; brick wall cover; varied place-
ment of windows; entrance on west side; placed on the down-slope
at the end of a long lawn.

Ly Beechwood, by Downing & Vaux, 1851-1852. Italianate style still,
but lost porches and had walls stuccoed in 1930's remodelling; two-
and-one-half stories under a hipped roof with central frontal
pediment; original wall cover of brick with brownstone and wood
trim; flat- and round-headed large windows, regularly-spaced;
entrance in western porte-cochere; gate-house and greenhouse to west,
on flat, grassed lot with large trees.

4s House, c.1870-1880. Stick Style; two-and-one-half stories; mansard
roof with turret; clapboard wall cover; regularly-spaced windows;
entrance in polygonal porch on east side.

L6 Marble House, by Richard M. Hunt, 1888-1892. French neo-classic
style; two stories and penthouse; flat-roofed behind balustrade;
marble wall cover with pilasters; round- and flat-headed windows
regularly spaced; wrought-iron and glass portal within colossal
Corinthian portico on west side; imposing entrance drive with
torcheres; elaborate wrought-iron fence and gates; oriental tea-
house above the ocean, by Hunt & Hunt, 1913. NR.

47 Champ Soleil, by Polhemus & Coffin, 1929. French XVII|I-Century
manoir style; two-and-one-half stories; three-part composition with
wings slightly brought forward; high, hipped roof; stucco wall
cover with stone trim; regularly-spaced windows; uncovered entrance
in center of east facade; service buildings on Coggeshall Avenue.

48, Former stable of Beaulieu, 1856-1859, now remodelled as a dwelling.

Mansard style with recent alterations and additions; two stories;
mansard roof; regularly-spaced windows; entrance in one-story peak-
roofed vestibule projection added on south side.

190




Form No 10-300a

|Rev 10-74)
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR OR NPS USE ONLY
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
RECEIVED
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES N
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM
Bellevue Avenue Historic District 7 9
EETI NUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER PAGE
Number o 4Jm$rogertz
Lq Beaulieu, 1856-1859. Mansard style; three stories under a concave

mansard roof; much remodelled: originally had tower over entrance,
surrounding porches; original wall cover of brick with '""olive stone'
and wood trim, now stuccoed; regularly-spaced windows; entrance in
projecting bay of west front; unchanged gate-house at south-west
corner of property shows original character of main house; low brick
wall with "olive stone' capping along western frontage.

50 Rovensky Park, c.1960. Flat landscaped area with green planting,
gravel paths, benches.

51 Clarendon Court, by Horace Trumbauer, 1904. Academic Georgian style;
two stories beneath low hipped roof concealed by balustrade with urns
one-story flanking wings projecting at front; reqgularly-spaced win-
dows; entrance in pedimented enframement at center of west front;
smooth limestone wall cover; limestone wall with wrought-iron gate
across property at west.

52 Thayer Cottage, 1870. Stick style; two-and-one-half stories; cross-
gabled; turreted roof; clapboard wall cover; irregularly-placed
windows; entrance in porch on east side.

53. Large garage and chauffeur's quarters now used as a dwelling or
apartments, c.1915. French Louis XII| style; two stories; mansard
roof with dormers; brick wall cover with stone trim and quoins;
regularly-spaced windows; four large portals on north side.

54 Vladania, c.1870. Stick Style; three stories; high, angular mansard
roof; clapboarded and panelled wall cover; irregular-spaced windows,
some with hoods; entrance within one-story eastern porch with pro-
jecting hood over steps.

55 Miramar, by Horace Trumbauer, 1912-1915. French Louis XV style; two-
and-one-half stories with mansard roof behind a balustrade; wall
cover of smooth stone with carved panels of trophies; regularly
spaced round-and flat-headed French windows; triple portals of
wrought-iron and glass at center of west facade; balustraded terrace
on ocean side; formerly elaborate-planted parterres by Jacques
Grebert on west frontage; one-and-one-half-story garage of long,
elegant ''pavillion' design on north-west part of property; elaborate
gi lded wrought-iron fence across west side of property.

56 The Beeches, 1871. Mid-Victorian style with later Colonial Revival
applications; two-and-one-half stories; mansard roof; clapboard
wall cover; plain windows; entrance in porch on east side. F!l
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57 Ocean View, by William R. Walker, 1866. Mansard style; three stories
under a concave mansard roof (its dormers now removed and their
places filled-in); clapboard wall cover; regularly-spaced plain win-
dows; porches; entrance on west side; set back on a flat lawn with
trees; stable and gate-lodge on western part of property.

58 Belcourt, by Richard M. Hunt, 1892. Large residence and stable
complex in Louis Xll| chateau style; three stories; mansard roof
with bull's-eye dormers; stucco wall cover with brick trim on main
house, timbering on stable walls; regularly-spaced small grilled
windows and large, round-headed French windows; entrance in enclosed
one-story vestibule on west.

59 House, c.1860-1870. Stick Style; two-and-one-half stories; cross-
gabled roof; clapboard wall cover; regularly-spaced windows;
entrance in one-story porch across east front,

60 Cottage, c.1890-1900. Nondescript style; one-and-one-half stories;
cross-gabled roof; asphalt-shingle wall covering; regularly-spaced
windows; entrance in one-story corner porch.

61 Barn (and smaller outbuildings) belonging to Belcourt, c.1892.
Non-descript style; barn two-and-one-half stories; gable roof;
shingle wall covering; few window openings; modern entrance on
west side.

62 Rock Cliff, by George C. Mason, 1869, completely remodelled and
re-cased, c.1912. Georgian style; two-and-one-half stories; hipped
roof with dormers; stucco wall cover; regularly-spaced windows;
central entrance in west side; gate-lodge at west part of property.

63 Quatrel, c.1870. Mansard and Stick Style; two-and-one-half stories;
mansard roof; wall now stuccoed; regularly-spaced windows; entrance
in arcaded one-story porch on east front.

64 Ranch house, c¢.1960-~1965. One-story frame structure.

65. Rough Point, by Peabody & Stearns, 1888-1891. Tudor manor-house

style on a large, long scale; two-and-one-half stories; cross-gabled
roof; wall cover of rough sandstone ashlar; large and small grouped
windows of leaded glass; entrance in west side.
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66 Roselawn, c.1850-1860 ff. Carpenter Gothic and Stick styles; two-
and-one-half stories; cross-gabled roof; clapboard wall cover;
regularly-spaced flat-headed windows; entrance at south in partially-
surrounding one-story porch.

67 Rockhurst gate-iodge, c.1880-1890. Queen Anne style; small,
intentionally picturesque structure of one-and-one-half stories;
steep hipped roof with cross-gables and conical turrets; varied
window size and placement; entrance on east; wall cover of stone and
shingling.

68 Two ranch-style houses, ¢.1950-1960. One-and-one-half stories;
shingled walls,

69. Inchiquin, ¢.1880-1885. French chateau style; three stories; high
mansard roof with prominent dormers; rough granite ashlar wall cover;
regularly-spaced and grouped windows; one-story porch on two sides;
entrances within porch at south and within porte-cochere at east.

70 Beachmound, by Henry lves Cobb, 1897. Colonial (Southern) Revival;
two-and-one-half stories; gable roof; clapboard wall cover; colossal
lonic porticos on east and west sides; regularly-spaced windows;
entrance within west portico.

71 House, 1974. Two-and-one-half stories; gable roof.

72 Mailands, c.1850-1860. Italianate style with Colonial Revival
renovations; two houses moved together; two-and-one-half stories;
hip roof; clapboard walls; regularly-spaced windows; entrance on
north side in one-story columned porch,

73 Seaweed, c.1870-1880(?). Colonial Revival style now; two-and-one-
half stories; gable roof; clapboard wall cover; regularly-spaced
windows; entrance in wide porch on north side.

74 Stable formerly belonging to Mailands, now remodelled as a dwelling,
c.1875-1880. Mansard style; mansard and hip roofs; one-and-one-half
stories; stucco and shingle wall covering.

75 House, ¢.1965-1970. Nondescript modern style; two stories; hip roof;

brick wall cover; large picture windows, uncovered entrance in center
of V-shaped house plan.
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Plaisance, 1853 and remodelled. Mansard style now altered to
'"Normandy manoir:' one-andione-half stories; mansard roof, wall
cover of whitewashed brick; regularly-spaced windows; unsheltered
entrance in angle of L-plan.

House, probably also a subsidiary of Mailands, c.1870-1880. Mansard
style; two stories; mansard roof; walls now stuccoed; regularly-
spaced windows; entrances in small shed-roofed porches on east and
south sides.

Pelican Lodge, by Claiborne Pell, 1950. Cape Cod cottage style;
one-and-one-half stories; gable roof, shingle wall cover, regularly-
spaced windows; unsheltered entrance on east side.

Former gate-lodge, c.1880-1885. Queen Anne style; one-and-one-half

stories; cross-gabled roof with extinguisher tower; stone and shingle

wall cover; irregularly-placed windows; entrance in gabled corner
porch.

House, c.1950-1960. Colonial Revival style; two-and-one-half stories

including large north wing; gable roofs; clapboard wall cover;
regularly-spaced windows; unsheltered entrances.

Land's End, 1870. Mansard style; one-and-one-half stories with
higher central pavilion; mansard, hip and gambrel roofs; clapboard
wall cover now stuccoed; regularly-spaced windows; entrance at
center of west elevation.

The Waves, by John Russell Pope, 1927. Normandy manoir style; two-
and-one-half stories; hipped roofs; brick, stucco and timbered wall
covering; irregularly-placed windows; entrance at north in center
of U-plan.
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Ochre Points-Cliffs Area

Ochre Point is a residential area about 230 acres in extent projecting into
the ocean, near the middle of the east side of Newport including the area
known as the Cliffs.

This area also contains a textbook of architectural styles from the 1850's
to the 20th century. Most significant are the opulent pre-depression (1929)
palaces (Ochre Court, The Breakers) that imitated European estates. This
district maintains its quality today in a quiet fashion.

Street : .

Address Property

Cliff Ave. “"'Cliff Lawn,' ¢.1870, remodelled c.1890-1900. Originally
in the Stick Style, later given Colonial Revival trim; two-
and-one-half stories; mansard roof; stucco wall cover with
wood trim; entrance on west side, bay on north side; origin-
ally had surrounding porches. ¥%*

Cliff Ave. ""John Easton Farm," c.1700 ff. Two-and-one-half stories

under a gambrel roof; additions at north and south ends;
regularly-spaced windows; central entrance on west side;
small one-and-one-half story gambrel-roofed Colonial Revival
stable to northwest. ¥

Cliff Ave., Approximately 23 houses on these three streets and running

Cliff Terrace south from the ecast end of Seaview Avenue. About half

and Seaview date from the 1870's-1880's and are in the Stick and mansard

Avenue styles, generally heavily remodelled; they are of modest
size and of one-and-one-half or two stories. The remainder
are cottages and ranch houses of c.1945-1955. All are of
frame construction, clapboarded or shingled.

29 Cliff House, ¢.1885-1890. Queen Anne style; two-and-one-half
Avcnue stories with cross-gabled roof and turrect; shingled;
variously-placed windows; porches, cntrance on west side. #¥

Cliff Ave. Four one-story frame ranch houses, c.1945-1955.
and Barclay
Square

123




Form No 10-300a

\Rev 10-74)
UNITED STATES DEPARTMUNT OF THE INTERIOR OR NPS USE ONLY
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
RECEIVED
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES N
A
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM —
Bellevue Avenue Historic District 4 14
CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER PAGE
Map Street ~
No. Address Property

6. Cliff Ave. '""Hopedene,'' by Peabody & Stearns, 1902. Georgian Revival
style; two-and-one-half stories under a hipped roof; brick
wall cover with stone trim; regularly-spaced flat- and
round-headed windows; entrance at south end; garage to the
north of the house. #*%

7. Cliff Ave. ""'Seaward,' by John W. Richmond, 1948. Georgian Revival
style; two stories; low hipped roof; brick wall cover;
regularly-spaced windows; entrance on west side.

8. Cliff Ave. '"Ocean Lawn,'" by Peabody & Stearns, 1888-1889. Queen Anne
and Tudor styles. Two-and-one-half stories under cross-
gabled and hipped roofs with bargeboards; irregular rough-
faced ashlar wall cover with timbering; grouped and
irregularly-spaced windows; entrance at south between
wings, %%

9. Narragansett House, c.1850-1860. Rectangular structure in the

Ila

12.

Avenue

Narragansett
Avenue

Narragansett
Avenue

Narragansett
Avenuv

Italianate bracketed style; cross-gabled roof; clap-
boarded wall cover above a stone foundation; central
entrance within a triple-arcaded loggia-porte-cochere;
windows surmounted by low pediments on brackets.

House, c.1850-1860. Italianate in style but with a mansard
roof above two stories covered by clapboards; entrance in
central porch; round- and segmental-headed windows, bay
window to left of entrance. #*

House (formerly Forsyth Wickes), c.1850-1860, slightly
remodelled. Originally ltalianate in style but somewhat
""Georgianised;'' stone walls; two-and-one-half stories
including hipped roof with dormers; grouped windows under
low pediments on brackets; entrance in projecting one-story
stone porch, %

House (also formerly Forsyth Wickes), c.1895. Colonial
Revival style; two-and-one-half clapboarded stories;
hipped roof with dormers; entrance within porte-cochere
having paired columns; various window treatments.
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13. Narragansett Four houses, c.1885. Queen Anne style; two-and-one-half
Avenue and stories with cross-gabled and hipped roof; clapboard. and
Ammandale Rd. shingle wall cover; entrance in two-story porch with turned

columns; variety of window treatment featuring elaborate
muntin arrangements. %

14. Narragansett ''The Orchard," 1871-1872. French XVI1-XVII|I-Century chateau
Avenue or manoir style, following plans imported from France;

beige brick walls with quoins under high, hipped roofs;
tall, regularly-spaced windows; one-story rectangular end
bay windows; uncovered central front entrance; claborate
wrought-iron fence with tall stone piers. :

15. Narragansett 'Bois Dore," by Charles A. Platt, 1927. French XVII|-
Avenue Century chateau style; limestone facing; two-and-one-half

stories with a hipped roof having dormers; slightly pro-
jected entrance with foliate carving above; segmental-
headed windows. %

16. 141 House (formerly Carter?), c.1890-1900. Colonial Revival
Narragansett style; rectangular, with long extension to the south and
Avenue gabled roof with dormers; two-and-one-half stories; clap-

boarded; undistinguished in detail; entrance in corner
porch.,

17. 97 House (originally E. D. Morgan), c.1850-1860. Asymmetrical
Narragansett Italian Villa style with tower in angle; two-and-one-half
Avenue stories covered by a cross-gabled roof with wall facing of

horizontal boarding; porch entrance at base of tower; three-
story enlargement to west. %

18. Ochre Point Salve Regina College Dormitory (former site of 'Whiteholme')
Avenue 1963. Undistinquished three-story, L-shaped structure of

buff-coloured brick with numerous paired windows.

19. Ochre Point  "Southside," by McKim, Mcad & White, 1882. Queen Anne-cum--

20.

Avenue

\Vlebster
Street

Shingle Style; two-and-one-half stories; brick and shingle
wall cover; gable roofs with numerous dormers, picturesque
tall chimneys; large porch spaces on east side; variously
grouped windows . **

Stable of "Sulthorne' (main house now destroyed). A low,
rectangular wooden building consonant in style with the main
house but very simple in trim, *

]7
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21. Vebster
Street

22. 134 Webster
Street

23. 138 Webster
Street

2L, 140 Webster
Street

25 \Webster
Street

26. 162 Webster
Street

27. 167 Mebster
Street

28. Ochre Point
Avenue

29. Ochre Point
Avenue

30. 12 Leroy
Avenue

Progertx

Service buildings belonging to Bois Dore, c.1880-1890. Small
one-and-one-half story buildings in simple Queen Anne style;
shingled; gable and gambrel roofs. *

Remodelled stable buildings, c.1890. Queen Anne style; one-
and-a-half stories; gable roofs, dormers; clapboard wall
cover. *

Cottage, c.1870-18807 Nondescript in style; one-and-a-half
stories; covered with asbestos shingling.

Cottage, c.1880-1900.
stories; clapboarded.

Nondescript in style; one-and-a-half

Garage bulldings, XX Century. One story; brick.

House, c.1950-1960. Ranch-house type; one story; wall cover
of shingles and vertical siding.

Cottage, c.1895-1905. Queen Anne and Colonial Revival styles
mixed; one-and-a-half stories; gable roof; shingle roof and
wall cover; conventional windows and bay windows; entrance

in front centre porch. *

"Whiteholme' stables, c.1885-1890. Shingle or Queen Anne

- style; long, low structure of one-and-one-half stories with

shingle wall cover and cross-gabled, gambrel and hipped
roofs; arched portal running through building at center;
varied window treatment; intentionally picturesque composi-
tion. %

"Ochre Court,'" by Richard M. Hunt, 1888-1831. French late
Gothic chateau style; two-and-one-half (or three) stories
under a high hipped roof, cross-gables, turrets; limestone
wall cover; western porte-cochere, eastern loggia; various
window types and groupings, elaborate dormers; imposing
wrought-iron entrance gatc. *%

House (formerly called '"Bon Acueil"), c.1865-1870. Mansard-
Stick Style; 2 stories plus mansard; clapboarded; entrance
with polygonal porch at center front; stable to rear. *

7198
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31. Leroy "Ridgemere,' 1898, by Peabody & Stearns. Queen Anne style
Avenue with applied Colonial Revival elements; two-and-one-half
stories with brick walls and a slate-covered hip roof with
copper-sheathed dormers; numerous plate-glass windows;
entrances in porch at front center and under porte-cochere
on east side; wrought-iron frontal fence contained within
brick piers. &
32. Leroy Stable belonging to '"Ridgemere,'" c.1898? A low, brick
Avenue structure.
33. Lawrence Stable, c.1885-1895. Gothic-cum-Tudor adaptation; one-and-
Avenue one-half stories; brick walls, limestone trim; ventilator-
cupola at south end; varied windows and dormers; modern
extension at south. *
34. Lawrence Cottage and greenhouses, c.19007 Nondescript.
Avcnue
35. Leroy '"Wakehurst,' by Dudley Newton, 1888. Large manor-house in
Avenue the Tudor style; two-and-one half stories with cross-gabled
roofs; stone wall covering; varied and grouped window treat-
ments; numerous chimneys; spacious walled grounds formally
treated. *®%
36. Shephard Stables belonging to 'Wakehurst,' 1888. Consonant in style
Avenue “with the main house; U-shaped, with an entrance courtyard;
two-and-one-half stories; gable roof; stone wall cover. **
37. Leroy Stable of '"Vinland," c.1883. Consonant in style with the
Avenue main house; two stories beneath a gable roof; one-and-one-
half story gambrel roofed cottage adjoins to the west. =
38. Leroy ""Cave Cliff," c.1870-1875. Mansard-roofed rectangular house
Avenue with some small additions; two stories under the mansard;
clapboarded; tall windows irregularly placed. *%*
39. Ochre Point '"Winland," by Peabody & Stearns, 1883, extended to the north,

Avenue

1907. Tudor-Queen Anne-Richardsonian in style; two-and-one-
half stories; rough-cut stone wall cover, brown smooth-cut
stone trim; varied window treatment, bays, porches on water
side, etc.; entrance in porte-cochere on west side. #%

A9
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L4O0. Ochre Point Gate-lodge of '"Winland," c.1883. Queen Anne style, small
Avenue and picturesque; two stories faced in rough stone with smooth

trim; high, tiled roof, rounded corner turret. &%

L1, Shepard Classroom building of Salve Regina College, c.1960-1970.
Avenue Plain, two-story building with brick wall cover and a flat
roof.
42. Shepard Watts Sherman house stables, c.1874. Rectangular brick
Avenue structure of one-and-a-half or two stories. *
43. Shepard Watts Sherman house, by H. H. Richardson, 1874; later
Avenue enlarged to the north in the original style; northeast

extension added ¢.1955-1965. Two-and-one-half stories in

the English manor style; brick timber and shingle wall cover;
varied window groupings; entrance in western porte-cochere;
gable and cross-gabled roof. ** HABS 6 NHL

hL. Shepard Ave. Ranch house, ¢.1950-1965. One story shingled structure.

Ii5. 60 Shepard Ranch house, c.1950-1965. One story shingled structure.
Avenue

46. Shepard Ave. Ranch house, c¢.1950-1965. One story shingled structure.

47. Shepard Ave. Stable (remsdzled as dwelling), c.1885-1895. Queen Anne
style; one and one-half stories with shingle wall covering
and gable roof; various window types; rear ell added.

48. Shepard Ave. House, c.1885-1895. Queen Anne style; two-and-one-half
storics; irregular shape with shingle wall cover, cross-
gabled roof with turret; varied window types and placcment;
entrance at south within porte-cochere.

hg, 74 Victoria House, ca.1950-1960. Ranch-style, one-story.
Avenue

50. Lawrence Ranch-house, ¢.1950. One story; shingle wall cover,
Avenue hipped roof.

51. Lawrcence House, one story, brick and wood (converted service
Avenue building?).
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52. Ochre Point '"The Breakers,' by Richard M. Hunt, 1892-1895. High
Avenue Italian Renaissance palazzo style; rectangular, covered by
stone under a tiled, hipped roof; much carved architectural
adornment, well-placed; windows in varied, formalised
spacings and groupings; entrance in western porte-cochere;
imposing wrought-iron fence and gates with stone piers.
% HABS, NR
53. Ochre Point Play-house of '"The Breakers,'" c.1878-1880. Queen Anne
Avenue style; one-story, small structure with shingle wall cover,
cross-gabled roof; entrance within porch area; windows
variously place. * NR
54, Ruggles Garage building belonging to ''Scavicw Terrace.'' One-and-
Avenue one-half stories; brick; gable roof with dormers, **

55-56 Ruggles

=7

58.

60.

6l.

Avenue

Ruggles
Avenue

Ruggles
Avenue

Ruggles
Avenue

Lawrence
Avenue

Lawrence
Avenue

Cottages belonging to "Seaview Terrace," XIX Century; frame
structures of non-descript style.

Garage belonging to '"'Scaview Terrace,' 1927-1929. Normandy
manoir style; one-and-one-half stlories; stuccoed and

timbered beneath a gable roof with cross-gables and dormers.

"'Scaview Terrace,' by Howard Greenley, 1927-1929. French
XVI-XVII-Century chateau style. Enormous two-and-one-half
story structure with a hipped roof, cross-gables, towers
and turrets, having stucco wall cover and timber adornment;
varied window types; entrance in portc-cochere on north
side. %

"Althorp,' c.1895. Colonial Revival. Two-and-one-half
stories, decked hip roof, clapboard wall cover; reqularly-
spaced windows; central south entrance within one-story
porch; rounded projccting bays at each end of south
elcvation. #%*

Stable of "Althorp,' ¢.1895. Colonial Revival style;
rectangular, two-story, clapboarded structurc under a
gable roof.

Stable, ¢.1890? (remodelled to residential use). No parti-
cular style; one story, L-shaped, including new southern
extension; original wall cover brick, extension has wood
cover; hipped roof.

20\
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62. Lawrcence Stable, c.1885-1895. Queen Anne style; one-and-one-half
Avenue stories, rectangular; brick and shingle wall cover, cross-
gabled roof; varied window treatment, *
63. Ruggles Stables, c.1885-1890.
Avenue
v :\
64. Ruggles '""Honeysuckle Lodge," 1886. Queen Anne-cem-Shingle styles;
Avenue wide, rectangular structure of two-and-one-half stories under
sweeping cross-gabled roofs; wall cover of stone and shingle;
varied and grouped window treatment; recessed north entrance
under (now removed) porte-cochere. #%
65. Ruggles "Nethercliff Hall," c.1875-1885. Stick-cum-Queen Anne styles
Avenue three-storied squarish structure with stone and stucco wall
cover beneath a hipped roof penetrated by cross-gables;
varied window treatment; entrance within south porte-cochere.
66. Ruggles "Midcliff," 1886. Queen Anne-cum-Shingle style. L-shape;
Avenue two-and-one-half stories covered by stone and shingling
beneath hipped and cross-gabled roofs with turret in angle;
perimetal porches; entrance in northern one-story pro-
jecting porch (formerly a porte-cochere). %
67. Ruggles "Ochre Lodge," c¢.1885. Queen Anne-cum-Shingles styles; two-
Avenue and-one-half stories with shingle wall cover beneath cross-
gabled gambrel roof; varied window treatment; sitting-
porches, and entrance within recessed south porch.
68. Ruggles "Fairholm," c.1860; enlarged 1875; altered 1930.
Avenue Rectangular two-and-one-half story structurc with eastern
wing; originally a Stick Style building with a high,
angular mansard and surrounding porches; in 1930 given some
gables, applied timbering and stucco facing, corner tower
at southwest, etc.,, to resemble English manor style;
entrance on north side of main block.
69. Ruggles Stable of '"Fairholm," c¢.1875.
Avenue
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70 Ruggles '"Anglesea,'' by Detlef Lienau, 1879-1880. Originally Stick
Avenue Style clapboarded house, later given Colonial Revival de-

tailing; two-and-one-half-stories; cross-gabled roof; varied
window trecatments; entrance under porte-cochere on north
side of main (east) block. %

71 Ruggles Garage of ''Anglesea,' 1922, Small, rectangular two-story
Avenue building in formal Louis XVI style; stucco wall cover,
stone quoins; cross-gabled slate roof; pedimented
pedestrian entrance. :

This material is from the surveys and reports of the Rhode Island Historical
Commission.
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Data from the Historical and Preservation Commission of Rhode Island.

Downing, Antoinette F., and Vincent J. Scully, Jr. The Architectural Heritage

of Newport, Rhode Island, 1640-1915. Cambridge, Massachusetts: 1952,

Randall, Anne L. Newport, A Tour Guide. Newport, Rhode Island, 1970.

U.S. Works Project Administration. Federal Writers' Project. Rhode Island,
A Guide. Boston, Massachusetts, 1937.
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Starting at the southecst corner of the junction of Bellevue Avenue
and Memorial Boulevard (previously part of the Bellevue Avenue-Casino
Historic District), the District runs east along Memorial Boulevard
to the southwestern corner of Memorial Boulevard and Freebody Street;
thence runs south along Freebody Street, across Berkeley Avenue and
continues south along the east boundary of Plat 33 lot 30 and the
east boundaries of Plat 34 lots 21 and 22 to Parker Avenue. The
District continues west on Parker Avenue to Clay Street; proceeds
south on Clay Street to the northern boundary of Plat 34 lot 41;
thence east on the north boundary of this lot, thence south on the
eastern boundary of this lot to Ward Avenue. At this point, the
District assumes the boundaries of the Ochre Point-Cliffs Historic
District, proceeding east on Ward Avenue to Annandale Road. The
District then runs east along the northern boundary of Plat 34 lot

46 to the western boundary of Plat 34 lot 47, thence north along this
boundary and the northern boundary of Plat 34 lot 27 to the western
boundary of Plat 34 lot 182. The District thence runs north along
this boundary to Cliff Avenue and its extension, and then north to
Memorial Boulevard. The District then runs east along Memorial
Boulevard to Easton Bay and the beginning of Easton's Beach. It then
follows the shoreline in a southerly direction; at Marine Avenue the
Ochre Point-Cliffs Historic District ends, the new District continuing
generally south, an finally west and north along the shoreline to the
junction of Bellevue Avenue and Bailey's Beach. The District runs
ecast on Bellevue Avenue to Coggeshall Avenue, and thence north to
Coggeshall Avenue to Lakeview Avenue; thence east on Lakeview Avenue
to the west boundary of Plat 38 lot 8; thence north along this boundary
and east along the north boundary of this lot to the west boundary of
Plat 38 lot 5, thence north along this boundary to the south boundary
of Plat 38 lot 6%, thence west along this boundary, thence north
along the west boundary of this lot to Rovensky Avenue. The District
continues west on Rovensky to the east boundary of Plat 37 lot 82,
thence north along this boundary and the eastern boundaries of Plat 37
lots 78, 83, 81, 80, and 77 to the south boundary of Plat 37 lot 19;
thence west along this boundary to Coggeshall Avenue. The District
proceeds north along on Coggeshall Avenue to the south boundary of
Plat 37 lot 20; thence west on this boundary to the shoreline of Almy
Pond; thence north along the shoreline to the north boundary of Plat
37 lot 97, thence east on this boundary and the north boundary of
Plat 37 lot 49 to Coggeshall Avenue. The District continues south

on Coggeshall Avenue to the south boundary of Plat 37 lot 62, thence
east on this boundary and north on the east boundary of this lot

and lots 69, 72, 70, and 66 to Bancroft Avenue. Proceeding west on
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Bancroft Avenue to Coggeshall Avenue, and north on Coggeshall to the
south boundary of Plat 37 lot 3; thence east on this boundary and
north on the castern boundary of this lot and that of lot 93; thence
west on the north boundary of this lot to the east boundary of Plat
36 lot 120; thence north on the east boundary of this lot and on
those of lots 121 and 122; thence west on the north boundary of lot
122, across Coggeshall Avenue and continuing along the south boundary
of Plat 40 lots 253 and 86; thence north along the west boundary of
lot 86, across Ruggles Avenue, and continuing north along the west
boundaries of Plat 40 lots 401, 4%, and 372 to the south boundary of
Plat 40 lot 13; thence west along the south boundary of lot 13, and
north along its west boundary to Bateman Avenue. The District pro-
ceeds east along Bateman Avenue to Coggeshall Avenue, and then north
on Coggeshall to the south boundary of Plat 35 lot 8, continuing east
on this boundary and north along the east boundary of this lot to
Perry Street. The District bound continues east on Perry Street to
the east boundary of Plat 32 lot 265 thence north on the eastern
boundary of this lot and those of lots 176, 175, 174, 173, 137, and
136; thence west on the north boundary of lot 136 to East Street.
The District continues north on East Street to Pope Street; thence
west on Pope Street to the east boundary of Plat 32 lot 102; thence
north on this boundary, and west on the north boundary of this lot
to the east boundary of Plat 32 lot 294, and north on this boundary
to Bowery Street. The District continues east on Bowery Street to
King Street, thence north on King Street to Jones Avenue; thence
east on Jones Avenue to Bellevue Avenue; thence north on Bellevue
Avenue to the intersection of Memorial Boulevard and the starting
point of the District.

206
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. A SIGNIFICANCE i *

. PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
__PREHISTORIC ARCHEULOGY PREHISTORIC COMMUNITY PLANNING X LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE RELIGION
- 1400 1499 ARCHEQLOGY HISTORIC CONSERVATION — LAW SCIENCE
~ 15001599 AGRICULTURE ECONOMICS — LITERATURE SCULPTURE
- 1600 1699 XARCHHTECTURE _EDUCATION — MILITARY SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
17001799 ART —ENGINEERING _MuUsIC —THEATER
X 1800-1899 X COMMERCE _EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT PHILOSOPHY TRANSPORTATION
COMMUNICATIONS INDUSTRY - .POLITICS/GOVERNMENT _.OTHER (SPECIFY)
INVENTION
2 - + T T T !
SPECIFIC DATES L BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Newport is one of the most spectacular assemblages of American architecture
from its beginning to our own time. There are structures in this district that
could never be built again in such close proximity, nor possessing such variety,
nor by a group of such distinguished architectural firms.

This district begins with several commercial blocks including the Casino,
continues with the Gothic Revival villas, and includes the "Stick Style" and
Shingle Style and culminates in the great 19th century summer palaces of
Bellevue Avenue and Ochre Point. The list of architects embraces almost
every major designer of that time and what emerges at Newport is also a study
of the development of the taste and skill of men 1ike Richard Upjohn, Richard
Morris Hunt and McKim, Mead and White over their professional careers.

A detailed description of the buildings in this large district is detailed
in Section #7.
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- [ DESCRIPTION ® *

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
—EXCELLENT —DETERIORATED —UNALTERED —ORIGINAL SITE
—GOOoD —RUINS —ALTERED —MOVED DATE
—FAIR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Travers Block
170-184 Bellevue Avenue

Designed by Richard Morris Hunt and built in 1870-1871 for William R. Travers,
this is a brick building with an applied half-timber pattern made up of heavy
chamfered members. The rectangular plan contains ten adjoining shops, each

16 feet wide. The buildin? is two-and-a-half stories high within a mansard
roof. The simple rectangular plan is broken by projecting bays at the center
and by a diagonally placed bay at the exposed corner of Bellevue Avenue and
Memorial Beulevard. The simple volume of the mansard roof is broken by
projecting gables and dormers. The gables have sawn and shaped wood decoration,
and the eaves of the mansard have strong chamfered brackets which, with the
window frames of the upper floor, are worked into the vigoreus rhythm of the
half-timber pattern. Damaged by fire in 1972, new being restored.

The interiors on the ground floor, which is 10 feet high, have undergone
numerous alterations to accommodate the various shops and businesses renting
space in the building. At its south end the Travers Block abuts the Casino
building.

. The Newport Casino
186-202 Bellevue Avenue

The Casino building has a ground floor divided by smooth brick piers into nine
bays which contain an arched central portal and four shop-fronts on either side
of it. Across these piers the long, shingled frontage of the second floor is
slightly corbelled out; at its center this front contains a recessed porch
below a high gable containing a Palladian-window motif. Two other high frontal
gables occur near the ends of the high, pitched roof which crowns the street
frontage, and each has a smaller, asymmetrically placed gable treatment applied
against it. Patterned shingles, small and large window panes, slight advances
and recessions in the facade's plane combine with the gable accents to produce
a lively but consistent and symmetrical rhythm across the nine bays. Behind
this front exist complex arrangements for the accommodation of sporting and

social activities. McKim, Mead and White 1879-1881. One of the first "country
clubs" on the East Coast.

The King Block
204-214 Bellevue Avenue

South, and also abutting the Casino, is this rectangular building built for
Leroy King of Newport and designed by the Boston architects Perkins and Betton;
it was built in 1893-1894. Divided into six bays (about 130 feet in total

length) and containing six adjoining shops, the building is made of brown pressed
brick with very simple ornament of stepped brick courses.

. (Continued)
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HISTORICAL PRESERVATION COMMISSION
QOld State House

150 Benefit Street

Providence, R. I. 02903

(401) 277-2678

February 4, 1976

Ms. Carolyn Pitts

Historic Sites Survey
Department of-the Interior
1100 L Street, N. W.
Washington, D. C. 20240

Dear Carolyn:

Enclosed are the map and verbal boundary descriptions for Belle=-
vue Avenue and Ocean Drive Historic Districts. Bellevue Avenue has
been defined to include two earlier NR districts: Bellevue- Avenue-
Casino Historic District and Ochre Point-Cliffs Historic District
(which includes the Cliff Walk) on the basis that all of this area
forms a social and architectural continuum of development and makes
the most sense when considered as a whole. I'm also including
a copy of part of Rhode Island's proposal for the "Heritage *76 -
Meeting House" program of the American Revolution Bicentennial Com-
mission. The Newport Casino and the Casino Theatre were among the
properties proposed for funding through this program. I don't know
if the material will be helpful, but for what it's worth it's yours!

Some new research on Ocean Drive district can be hand-carried
to you next week. We hope to have it in usable shape late Friday.
Slides will be delivered to you next week -- in toto, with any luck.
If without luck, one view of the Athenaeum may have to be mailed to
you next week, or sent down with someone from Rhode Island if any-
one is planning to fly down on Monday afternoon.

I hope that you will have whatever you need for successful pre-
sentations. Thank you for all your work for the Rhode Island proper-
ties.

Sincerely,
(e e
Ancelin V. Lynch
National Register Coordinator

Enclosures



UNITED STATES N
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20240

MAY 1 1 1976
Memorandum
To: Director, Jational Fark Sexvice
o Seeretary of the Interior (sgd) Tom Kleppe

Subject: Landmark Recormendations of the Advisory Board on National
Parks, Historie Sites, Puildings and Monuments, 74th
meatins, April 5-7, 1976, Washington, D. C.
On the rwdatiaus of the Advisory board om Matiomal Parkg,
Historic Sites, Buildings and Monuments, and pursuant to the authority
containad in the Historic Sites Act of 1935 (49 Stat. 666; 16 U. 8. C,
461 et uq.). I do hereby take the i'ouomlag sctions:
1. Duimted as ‘!atimal :.dntoriu Lm&nnrka
Arim
' Fort Huachuca
Cal:l.farnh
Hearst San Simeon Estate, “"La Cuesta Encantada,” San Simeon
Comecticut
Chnrlu B. Nortom ﬁouse, Pld.nvillo
Distriet of collmbh ' ?
St. Luke's Bpiaeepll Chureh :
Carter G, Wocdson House
.Charolette Yorten Grimke Eouaa o _
 Washington Havy Yard ot
U. 8. Marine Corps Barrvacks and Cmandmt's Houu .
Andrew Mellon Building i
Florida

Tampa Day Hotel, Tampa



|
|

|
|
|
|
Seorgia f

Fox Theatre, Atlanta .!

Owens~Thomas House, Savannah {

Telfair Academy, Savannah !

Green~Meldrim Housa, Savannah

Thomas ¥.. Watson House, 310 Lumykin Street, Thomsen
Henry W, Grady Housa, Athens o

Illinois

Arthur H, Compton House, Chiugé

Robert A. Millikan House, Chicago

Fremk R, Lillie louse, Chicago |

.Igan Baptiste Point Du Sabls Homesite, Chicago
Indiana . ,'

General Lew Wallace Study, CrWFm:dsviue

Kensas

William Allen White House, Emporia
Carry A, Nation House, Medi | Lodge

|

Massachusetts |

William E. B. DuBois Boyhood | site, Creat Barrington
Willism Monree Trotter House, Dorchester

William C. Nell Residence, Boston

Haria Baldwin House, Cambridge

Hichigan |

i
Parke-Davis Laboratory, Detroit
EBerbart H. Dow Houge, Midland |

Hississippd
Oakland Memovrial Chapel, Alcorn University, Alcorn
I. T, Hontgomery House, Mound Bayou
Migsouri _ :
General John J. Pershing Boyhood Bome, Laclede
|

|
|
|

|
|



Hontan& ;

Rankin Ranch, Avalanche Gulech

New Jarsmz- . ;

Luey, the Margate Elephant, Margate

Cape May Higstorie District, Cape qay

0ld Queens, New Brunswick

Great Falls of the Passaic/S.U.M. Historie District

New York
* James Weldon Johnson Residence, le York City
New York Amsterdam News Building, |[New York City
Will Marion Cook House, New York City
Louls Armatrong House, Corona
Edward Kennedy 'Duke" Ellington Residence, New York City
Vvilla Lewaro, Irvington ‘
Ralph Bunche House, Kew Gardens
John Roosevelt "Jackie' Robinson Residence, Brooklyn
Samuel J, Tilden House, New York City
01ld New York County Courthouse, New York City
John D. Rockefeller, Sr. Estate, Fount Pleasant

Ohio

Captain Edward V. Rickenbacker H. ge, Columbus
John B. Tytus House, Middletown

Pennsylvania J

Fairmount Water Works, Philadelphia :
Allegheny County Court House and Jail, Pittsburgh
Fallingwater, Mill Run

Henry O, Tammer Homesife, Philadelphia

Charles B, Dudley House, Altoona

Edward G, Acheson House, Mbnongatela

Smithfield Street Bridge, Pittsbrrgh

Rhode Island I
|

Ocean Drive Historic Distriet, Newport
Bellevue Avenue Historie Distridt, Newport
Arcade, Providence ,

Lippitt House, Providence j

|
|
|
|

e



South Carolina

Denmark Vesey Housa, Charleston :
South Carolina State House, Columbia

Tennessee [
|

Alvin Cullom York Farm, Fentress Co?nty
Texas ‘

Galveston~East End Elstoric bistticL

Galveston-The Strand Historic District
Samuel T. Rayburn House, Fannin ty

Virginia |

Charles Richard Drew House, Arlington
Benjamin Banneker: &W-9 Intermediate Boundary Stone, Arlington

2. Designated as Natural Landmarks !

California

Sharktooth #ill, Xerm County !
|

G&B‘ZE‘.& ;

Eig Hammock Natural Avea, Tattoall County
Ebenezer Creek Swamp, Effingham County

Hi!ﬁilﬂiﬁni

Bienville Pines Scenic Area, ﬂcothCounty
Green Ash-Overcup Oak-Sweetgum Regearch Natural Areas,
Sharkey County _
Barrell Prairie Hill, Scott County
|
Montana _
Red Rock Lakes National Wildlife Refuge, Beaverhead County
Hew York

Moss Island, Herkimer County




South Dakota _

Cathedral Spires and Limber Pine Natural Area, Custer County
Texas

Palo Duro Canyon State Park, Randall and Armstrong Counties
Vermont

Battell Diological Preserve, Addisom County
Canfield Fisher Memorial Pines, Bennington County

You are directed to take such further steps as may be necessary to
effectuate the above actions. .
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United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20210 §
MAY 2 =5 95978

The Secretary of the Interior
Thomas S. Kleppe

is pleased to inform you that the historic properties in your
State described in the enclosed brief summaries have been found
to possess national significance in commemorating the history

of the United States, On the recommencation of the Advisory
Board on National Parks, Historic Sites, Buildings, and
Monuments these properties have been designated national historic
landmarks. We hope this action will be of interest to you and

your constituents.

Also enclosed are leaflets explaining in detail the historic
preservation programs of the National Park Service. National
historic landmark status automatically enrolls the property on
the National Register of Historic Places and extends to it the
safeguards provided by the National Historic Preservation Act
of 1966.

Recognition of the property's significance as a landmark is accorded
by certificates and bronze plaques which are provided free of charge
to the owners or administrators of these properties upon their

agreement to adhere to simple preservation practices. The Dilector

..--0f the National Park Service will .shortly notify.the.owners about. .

these bencflts and pr0v1de them hlth the apnropr:qte avreemont
forms.

The owners of these propertics are to be commended for preserving .

““these significant examples of our Nation's cultural heritage for'

the education and enjoyment of all our citizens.

" Enclosures

A"V

..—..\




Hon. John O. Pastore
Hon. Claiborne Pell
United States Senate
Washington, D.C.

Hon. Fernand J. St. Germain
House of Representatives
Washington, D.C.

Hon. Edward Beard
House of Representatives
Washington, D.C.

Ocean Drive Historic District, R.I.
Bellevue Avenue Historic District,
Rhode Island '

Arcade, Rhode Island
Lippitt House, Rhode Island

Ocean Drive Historic District
Bellevue Avenue Historic District
Lippitt House

Arcade
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United Stafcs Department of the Interior

WATIONAL PARI SERVICE
WASIIINGTON, D.C. 20240

In m’.rz.;' JUZFLR TO! JUN 1 S 1976

The Director of the National Park Service
Gary Everhardt

is pleased to inform you that the historic property described
briefly in the enclosure has been found to possess national
significance in commemorating the history of the United States
and has, therefore, been designated a national historic
landmark.

The purpose of landmark designation is to recognize nationally
significant sites and to encourage their owners to preserve
them. Landmarks are chosen through studies prepared by the
National Survey of Historic Sites and Buildings; evaluated by
‘the Advisory Board on National Parks, Historic Sites,, Buzlulngs,
and Monuments; and approved by the Secretary of the- Interior in
accordance with the Historic Sites Act of 1935.

Recognition of the property's significance as a landmark is
accorded by certificates and bronze plaques which are provided
free of charge to the owners or administrators of these properties
upon their agrcement to adhere to simple preservation practices
which would satisfy the criteria for continuing eligibility.

These are set forth in the enclosed leaflet. We will be pleased
to provide a certificate and bronze plaque. Enclosed are copies
of the agrcement. The form should be completed in triplicate

North Atlantic Region

g and two copies returned to the National Park Service. The third
x copy may be retained for your records.

0 .

= 2 3 2 .

pe National historic landmark status automatically enrolls the

= property on the National Register of Historic Places.. Under the
2 & provisions of-the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966,

o £

entry on the National Register provides each property with safe-
guards against damage by Federal undertakings and fulfills one
qualification for participation in a grant-in-aid program to
assist in its preservation. Further information is contained

in the enclosed leaflet describing the National Register.

FNP:HJ Sheely:kr 6/14/76

bcczjg?ﬁ

We are pleased to include this property among the sites already
designated national historic landmarks.

: 'RICT, R.I.
Mr. B. Cowles Mallory OCEAN DRIVE HISTORIC DISTRICT,

ELLE IUE HISTORIC DISTRICT, R.
O\ITIOg, City Manager ,ﬁELLEEUEmﬁﬁﬁbﬂﬁ,lL__ ~DISTRICT
ég; Son qb Newport, Rhode Island
> i [ e, 0
@ '\,':\ ?_\ - [{ 1 .
\'-\ (: 5 /E'JB o= \-‘ J




Mr. Gary Everhardt

Director

National Park Service ' -~
Department of the Interior

Washington, D.C. 20240

Dear Mr. Everhardt:

As the (owner, owners) of . Bellevue Avenue Historielnistrict
(Name of site)

located in N Newport Rhode Island
(City (County) (State)

(we) hereby accept your offer of a certificate () and a bronze
plaque, 17" x 18" (¢, formally marking this historic property a
national historic landmark. (Check one or both as desired.)

1. Fully conscious of the high responsibility to thé Nation that

goes with the ownership and care of a property classified as having

national significance and worthy of national historic landmark status,
we) agree to preserve, so far as practicable and to the best of

my,our) ability, the historical values that will satisfy the criteria

for continuing significance.

2. Toward this end, Q{,we) agree to continue to use the property
only for purposes consistent with its historical character.

3. (Xywe) agree to permit an annual visit to the property by a
representative of the National Park Service, as a basis for con-
tinuing landmark status. '

4. 1If, for any reason, the three conditions mentioned above cannot
continue to be met, it is agreed that the national historic landmark
status shall cease and that until such status is restored by the
Secretary of the Interior, neither the national historic landmark
certificate nor the plaque will be displayed.

Sincerely yours,
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lenorable lwsnherey J. Dovmelly 11X
Mayor of MNewport
Newport, Phoedo Island 02840

Dear iayor Donnelly:

Thank yon for the asrcenent forms sont on July 22, 1276, reaunesting the
Cthlli?&tGS aﬂi “1"”&5 1alh*1‘yjy Ocesn Drive FT'ttric Pistrict and
Pellovue Avenue lidstoric Ristrict, heaport, Rlode Island, a&s notional
historic 1annrarjs. “ﬁE‘zrc-rrﬂt?§ﬁ1n~ with the pre;cration of the

certificates and plagques.

Cur North Atlantic Regionzl Office coordinates pla ing for presentation
ceremonies in Rbode Island. The Recionel Director v:I11 inform you when
the certificates and plagues for Cccun Drive liistoric District and
Bellovue Avenue !listoric PRistrict hove been completed. Should youn wish
the help of the Service in .rranr1ng cercnonies £or the prescntation,

he will be ¢lad to assist you. llis nane and addzress is: Iy, Jerry
Warers, Recional Dirocior, Eorth Atlantic Nenional Office, National Park
Service, 150 Causeway Streoet, Boston, lassachusetts 02114,

Y'e are pleased to Inow that you plan active participation in the
National liistoric landrarks Progran,

Sircercly yours

/Sgd/ Jerry L. Hogera

Ac ti‘i Nroactor, (ffice of Archeclony
ead fiistoric Preoservation

Fuclosure

FNP:KP Ross:kr 7/30/76
bee: Regional Director, North Atlantic Region w/c application forms
Director's Reading Tile
DI
il
I‘S{E‘.u;.u] ing File)
Wo-Sheely w/e application forus

HIY = R, I. = Ocean Drive ilistovic District
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Advisory Council on
Historic Preservation

1522 K Street N.W. .
Washington, D.C. 20003 September 2, 1976

Colonel John H. Mason
Division Engineer

New England Division

Corps of Engineers

U.S. Department of the Army
424 Trapelo Road

Waltham, Massachusetts 02154

Dear Col, Mason:

On September 1, 1976, the Advisory Council received an adequately
documented determination from the Corps of Engineers (CORPS) that the _
proposed issuance of a permit for restoration of the Cliff Walk would not
adversely affect the Bellevue Avenue National Landmark Historic District,
Newport, Rhode Island, a property included in the National Register of
Historic Places. After review of the CORPS' determination, the Executive
Director notes no objection to the determination of no adverse effect.

In accordance with Section 800.4(d) of Advisory Council's '"Procedures
for the Protection of Historic and Cultural Properties" (36 C.F.R.,
Part 800), you may proceed with the undertaking.

A copy of your determination of no adverse effect, along with supporting
documentation and this concurrence, should be included in any environmental
assessment or statement prepared for this undertaking in compliance with
the National Environmental Policy Act.

Your continued cooperation is appreciated.

Sincerely vours,

Myvra F. Harrison

Acting Director

Office of Review
and Compliance

. . . : r : ) ’ - r . .
The Council is an independent unit of the Executive Branch of ihe Federal Government charged by the Act of
October 15, 1966 to advise the Prosidont and Congress in the feld of Historic Preservation.




UEPARTMENT ©F
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
NORTH ATLANTIC REGION

15 State Street
Boston, MA 0210¢

MEMORANDUM

TO: Chief, Cultural Resources and M nagement Division
National Park Service
Attention: Mr. Horace Sheel

» FROM: Regional Director, North Atlantic Region

Name of Landmark:

Date:

Time:

Location of Ceremony:

Presentation will be made by:

Presentation will be made to:

Distinguished Guests:

Remarks:

Bellevue Avenue Historic District
Newport, RI

The City Manager of Newport requested that the certifacate be mailed.

There is no ceremony planned.
on January 4, 1977

The piaqgueWas delivered to the site

5&44«4@«;

7 (/Y SIGNATURE



401-847-1000

ke {7~ ovase Aot KD )M‘Q_

The Preservation Society of Newport County
118 MILL STREET P. O. BOX 510

JGW/cab NEWPORT, RHODE ISLAND, 02840-0939

May 15, 1987

Miss Caroline Pitts
History Division

National Park Service

P.0. Box 37127

Washington, DC 20013-7127

Dear Caroline,

Enclosed are reduced plans and drawings of the building proposed on
Jones Street, immediately across the street from Kingscote and
diagonally across the street from Newport Casino. As you can see it is
a less than inspired design and looks as if it is going to become a
major issue. There will be a Zoning Board hearing to appeal the
decision of the Historic District Commission on the 26th. The Historic
District Commission wisely turned the building down.

As abutters, the Preservation Society is objecting. I doubt that
we can stop it but would at least try for a better design.

[ will keep you posted. If you have any ideas, please let me know.

Sincerely,

-y —

JohnA. Cherol
Executive Director
JAC/cab
Enc.
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United States Department of the Interior
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

P.O. BOX 37127
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20013-7127

IN REPLY REFER TO:

H30(418) SEP 2 1 1987
Memorandum

Tos Director

From: Associate Director, Cultural Resources

Subject: Cliff Walk, in Newport, Rhode Island

As you have observed, the Cliff Walk cannot be properly interpreted without
interpretation of the historic and natural qualities of adjacent properties.
In recognition of this fact, the Cliff Walk is included within a National
Historic Landmark, the Bellevue Avepue Historic District, that places the Walk
in its historic context. The Landmark provides for recognition of part of the
grand assemblage of American architecture that distinguishes Newport and is so
important to understanding of the Cliff wWalk.

By no means am I advocating a feasibility study of the entire Landmark district.
Let me recommend, though, that a Cliff Walk study, if authorized, devote attention
to opportunities to encourage preservation of the Landmark's historic qualities
and properties.

The proposal to include Cliff walk in the National Park System should receive
tough scrutiny, in light of recent conditions and developments in Newport.

Not long ago, we excised part of the Ocean Drive Historic District, a National
Historic Landmark not far fram the Bellevue Avenue district. We took this
action to remove from the Ocean Drive Landmark boundary an area where develop-
ment pressures had brought about intrusive and unsympathetic new construction.
This unsympathetic development occurred in spite of the fact that Newport is a
comunity with a high level of awareness of its historic heritage. I think we
should view this as a warning about the vulnerability of historic resources in
any urban historic resort.

Newport is a wealthy community, and if the Federal government is asked to
assume a share of the financial burden of maintaining Cliff Walk, I recommend
that we require, in return, that the citizens of Newport make legally binding
pledges, in the form of easements, to protect historic resources in the Bellevue
Avenue National Historic Landmark. The recipient of these easement donations
need not necessarily be the Federal government. I would urge that in our
consideration of Cliff Walk, we seek and support local groups and private
citizens who can take active roles in the protection of Cliff Walk and the
other historic resources of the community. /Sgd/Jerry L. Rogers

cc: 001 Reading File 400 Reading File
418-Bellevue Ave. Historic District (NHL)

J. Haubert (763) J. M. Lambe (180) Levy (418)
Regional Director (NARO) (1600) Manager (BSC)A(T?W
LFeller:pt:09/17/87
FELLER DISK 30: Item #16



United dtates Department of the luterior

NATIONAL PARK SERVICE U HL
P.O. BOX 37127
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20013-7127

IN REPLY REFER TO:

H30(418)
SEP 2 1 1987
Memorandum
To: Dire
From: Asso¢iate Diﬁctor, Cultural Resources
2V

Subject: Cliff Walk, in Newport, Rhode Island
\_./‘---.

As you have observed, the Cliff Walk cannot be properly interpreted without
interpretation of the historic and natural qualities of adjacent properties.
In recognition of this fact, the Cliff Walk is included within a National
Historic Landmark, the Bellevue Avenue Historic District, that places the Walk
in its historic context. The Landmark provides for recognition of part of the
grand assemblage of American architecture that distinguishes Newport and is so
important to understanding of the Cliff walk.

By no means am I advocating a feasibility study of the entire Landmark district.
Let me recommend, though, that a Cliff Walk study, if authorized, devote attention
to opportunities to encourage preservation of the Landmark's historic qualities
and properties.

The proposal to include Cliff Walk in the National Park System should receive
tough scrutiny, in light of recent conditions and developments in Newport.

Not long ago, we excised part of the Ocean Drive Historic District, a National
Historic Landmark not far from the Bellevue Avenue district. We took this
action to remove from the Ocean Drive Landmark boundary an area where develop-—
ment pressures had brought about intrusive and unsympathetic new construction.
This unsympathetic development occurred in spite of the fact that Newport is a
community with a high level of awareness of its historic heritage. I think we
should view this as a warning about the wulnerability of historic resources in
any urban historic resort.

Newport is a wealthy community, and if the Federal government is asked to
assume a share of the financial burden of maintaining Cliff Walk, I recommend
that we require, in return, that the citizens of Newport make legally binding
pledges, in the form of easements, to protect historic resources in the Bellevue
Avenue National Historic Landmark. The recipient of these easement donations
need not necessarily be the Federal government. I would urge that in our
consideration of Cliff Walk, we seek and support local groups and private
citizens who can take active roles in the protection of Cliff Walk and the

other historic resources of the community. i@(
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Providence Journal/Bulletin ﬁ 8, 1987

Sound move to preserve the CIiff Walk

Turning Newport's tamous clitt
Walk into 2 national park makes
eminent sensg. This winding trall
which overlooks the ocean ag it
charts a 3.5-mile walking path along-
side Newport's famous “cottages,” Is
slowly losing its battle with the
elements. The Waik has been eroded
by the ocean, and is sometimes haz-

ardous 1o traverse.

A third of Newport's visitors sy
that Cliff Walk is the reason they
have come. It's an open question,
however, if there will always be a
Ciff Walk for them to see.

Rhode Isiand’s two senators, Clai-
borne Pell and John Chafee, have
come up with a legislative solution to
this difficult problem. Along with
Rep. Fernand St Germain in fthe

House, they have introduced a8 mea-
sure that, would appropriate $50,000
to study the pessibility of turning
Cliff’ Walk into a national park.

Most iinportant, the
financial burden of
maintenance would be
more evenly divided
among federal, state
ad local authorities

And last week they invited the
director of the Nationa) Park Service,
William Penn Mott, to come and see

u.f Walk for himseif.

Mr. Mott came, walked, and was
duly impressed: "I think it has great
potenial,” he told the Journal, “I
think it's an exciting thing." Natural
and historic sites might be pointed
out along the trail, park rangers
could patrol and answer questions —
and, perhaps most important, the
financial burden of maintenance
wouid be more evenly divided among
federal, state and local authorities.

Cliff Walk in fact belongs to adja-
cent property owners, and it might
ultimately be necessary for the Park
Service to obtain easements or pur-
chase the path ontright. But it is
difficult to imagine a better deal for
everyone than transferring jurisdic- .
tion to the National Park Service —
and saving this precious resource of
Rhode lsland’s past and future.



Laura Feller

" October 5, 1987 @&\q Q@
Qo KWW

I should have mentioned to you when we spoke about the St. Paul's National
Historic Site (blush, blush) that I am working on the Cliff Walk as a
technical assistance project. You have got to be flexible in the trails
business.!!

Your note to the Director -signed by Jerry Rogers arrived on my desk, and I
appreciate your concern. I know of the development taking place along Ocean
Drive and seemingly everywhere in Rhode Island, and lament the lack of good
planning. The economy of New England is booming and all resort areas,
regardless of whether they are in urban areas or in the wilds or feature
natural or cultural resource are under seige. Local planning and private
resources and philanthropy are simply not able to counteract the
overwhelming market forces.

Now off of my high horse, I must say that the most immediate threat to the
Cliff Walk comes from the ravages of surging winter ocean storms. The
estimate for the repairs needed is in the millions of dollars. The
perception of the wealth of Newport should not interfer with our evaluation
of the quality of the resource. Partnerships should be forged with other
levels of government and non-profits to preserve resources whenever
possible. Newporters have a lot of expensive heritage to maintain and the
current director of the Newport Preservation speakes loudly to how difficult
it is to tap the local till.

I guess my point is that it is not fair to require donations from private
citizens as collateral for NPS participation in a project, or that
Newporters should be left to their own devices in caring for the Cliff
Walk. NPS can and should serve as a catalyst for joint action to preserve
the Cliff Walk, but my sense is that the perception of NPS in Washington is
that this is one that we need not be briddled with. To my mind, it is
simply too early to say. The Pell Bill only calls for a study, not
designation. The goal of the study would be to evaluate the significance of
the resource and to identify alternative scenarios for its protection.
Clearly the more participation from the community and the State the more
attractive that a proposal becomes.

I hope that we get the opportunity to craft a strong partnership and that
NPS can appear to be a constructive supporter. I fear that all to often we
feel and act like victims.

Thanks for your thoughts, they are appreciated.

Steven Golden

Hue—
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Memorandum
To: Director
From: Associate Director, Cultural Resources

Subject: Cliff Walk, in Newport, Rhode Island
As you have observed, the Cliff Walk cannot be properly interpreted without
interpretation of the historic and natural gualities of adjacent properties.
In recognition of this fact, the Cliff Walk is included within a National
Historic Landmark, the Bellevue Avenue Historic District, that places the
Walk in its historic context. The Landmark .provides for recognition of
part of the grand assemblage of American architecture that distinguishes
Newport and is so important to understanding of the Cliff Walk,

e
By no means am I advocating a feasibility study of the entire Landmark
district. Let me recommend, though, that a Cliff Walk study, if authorized,
devote attention to opportunities to encourage preservation of the Landmark's
historic qualities and properties. E‘l‘he proposal to include Cliff Walk in
the National Park System should receive muny, in light of recent
conditions and developments in Newport. Not long ago, we excxsed part of
the Ocean Drive Historic District, a National Historic Landmark not far from
the Bellevue Avenue district. We took this action to remove from the Ocean
Drive Landmark boundary an area where develoument pressures had brought
about intrusive and unsympathetic new construction. This unsympathetic
development occurred in spite of the fact that Newport is a cammunity with
a high level of awareness of its historic heritage. I think we should
view this as a warning about the vulnerability of historic resources in

hishort
any urba.n'\resort ares.




Newport is a wealthy community, and if the Federal government is asked to
assume a share of the financial burden of maintaining Cliff Walk, I recom-
mend that we require, in return, that the citizens of Newport make legally

binding pledges, in the form of easements, to protect historic resources

in the Bellevue Avenue National Historic Landmark. Mmﬂnr'
, need ot necessarily
lﬁ-@n‘-ﬁm recipient of these easement donations w-he the Federal
government. I would urge that in our consideration of Cliff Walk, we
seek and support local groups and private citizens who can take active
roles in the protection of Cliff Walk and the other historic resources of
the commumity.

cc: 001 RF; 400 RF; 418 NHI-Bellevue Ave. Historic District; 763-J. Haubert;
180-J. M. Lambe; Regional Director, NARO; Manager, DSC; 418 Levy :

Feller disk 30, item 16
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United ocates Department of the (nterior

NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
P.0. BOX 37127
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20013-7127

Jb 27 1987

IN REPLY REFER TO:

L58(180)

Memorandum ff
To: M dol'/ W

From: Legislative Affairs Assistant
Subject: S IR F- 52%//%&6

The National Park Service has been requested to submit a report

to Legislative Counsel on the above bill, a copy of which is
attached.

If your office has no comment, please surname this form and return
to Room 3213. Favorable, unfavorable, or deferral recommendations
must be accompanied with data te support your views.

Due Date: %9?,‘ /7097

Dottie Whitehead

Attachment



100TE CONGRESS
18T SESSION S. 323

To study Cliff Walk in Newport, Rhode Island, including its appropriateness for
inclusion as a unit of the National Park System.

IN THE SENATE OF THE UNITED STATES

JANUARY 16, 1987

Mr. PeLL (for himself and Mr. CHAFEE) introduced the following bill; which was
read twice and referred to the Committee on Energy and Natural Resources

A BILL

To study Cliff Walk in Newport, Rhode Island, including its

appropriateness for inclusion as a unit of the National Park
System.

1 Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-
tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled,
SECTION 1. STIjDY ON PRESERVATION OF THE CLIFF WALK
(a) STUDY AUTHORIZATION.—In order to provide for
_the preservation and continued public use of the historic Cliff
Walk located in Newport, Rhode Island (hereafter in this Act
referred to as the “Cliff Walk”’) the Secretary of the Interior

shall prepare and transmit to the Committee on Energy and

© O -1 O .0t B W N

Natural Resources of the Senate and the Committee on Inte-

10 rior and Insular Affairs of the House of Representatives



2

1 within 2 years from the date of enactment of this Act, a

2 feasibility and suitability study to determine the appropriate

3 means to ensure such use and preservation.

4

© 0 =9 4 O

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

(b) SpecrFics OF STuDY.—The study shall include—

(1) an assessment of—

(A) the national significance of the Cliff
Walk; s

(B) the legal status of the owmership of the
Cliff Walk; and |

(C) the physical condition and apprepriate
uses of the CIiff Walk;

(2) an assessment of the appropriateness of includ-

ing the Cliff Walk as a unit of the National Park

System; and

(3) cost estimates for any necessary development,

operation, and maintenance, as well as alternatives for

the administration and protection of the Cliff Walk.

SEC. 2. AUTHORIZATION OF APPROPRIATIONS

There are authorized to be appropriated such sums as

20 may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this Act, but

21 not to exceed $50,000. -~

el s
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™ ‘Chiat, Office of legislation
l'rm Auutiat‘n Divector. Cultural Resources

Cliff m! (s, 323)

'Imwlmlvmmmrmimdﬂnmlmu!m in
this bill. #y comments in mv memorandum to the Director on September 21
o&thhm(mM)mhwujerm:m. .

mmwmamammmamm I have no
ohiactions to enactmant. The funding authorized in the bill will be

. necessary to accosmlish the tasks outlimed in it, however, and seems

a reasonable amount, in my view. for their completion. T eprose absorbing
thase tasks without funding. .

Attachrent
cc: 001
400
418
413 Clife “llk (8PS pronased) A
412 pellevue Avenue Historic Distriet Rt

763 J. Baubmrt

1600 PP (NARD)

2000 HManager (DSC)
aton:gm 10-20-87
ton:Disk V, Item 28
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OMB Approval No. 29-R0218

STCTION 1—ADPLICANT/RECIPIENT DATA

= ] a. NUMBER 1 a. NUMBER
FEDERAL ASSISTANC % e x HPC-77-08
CANT'S st 17
1. TYPE PREAFPLICATICY APPLI- b. DATE 1DENTI- b. DATE Year month day
) O !
A'ETION [R APPLICATICN CATION 19 Y77 E"“"‘ ddf FIER ASSIGNED 1977 1 14
‘”;';_"fag' [:} N2TIFICATION OF INTENT (Opt) | rcave
m) [] REPORT OF FEDERAL ACTICN Blank
4. LEGAL APPLICANT/RECIPIENT 5. FEDERAL EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NO.
a. Applicant Name .R.1. Historical Preservation Commission 05-60-00522
b. Organization Unit 1 & o B 3 ,
€. Street/P.0. Box .150 Benefit Street S s. NUMSER 11]51=19]0]4]
d. City :Providence e. Comty : Providence P b. TILE
f. State :Rhode Island ¢. 2IP Code: 02903 o] Historic Preservation
h. Contact Person (Name Frederick C. Williamson Catalog)
& telephone No.)  : 401-277-2850

7. TITLE AND DESCRIPTION OF APPLICANT'S PROJECT

Isaac Rice House Restoration Project

Newport, Newport County

Exterior restoration of early nineteenth-century
house owned by prominent Black of Newport.

B. TYPE OF APPLICANT/RECIPIENT

A-State H-Community Action Aganey
B-Interstzte I= Higher Educational Institution
C-Substate J-Indian Tribe

District K-Oiher (Specify):
D-County
E-City
E:g{.hopli I%latrict

pecial Purpose
District Enter appropriate letter

9. TYPE OF ASSISTANCE

LSource of nonfederal match: Private funds of Mr. Harr;-»;—_guiclemg et [;-_—g::luranc.
. o upplemental Gran ther -
W. Rice, Property owner, Donated services. B priate Taticr(s)
10. AREA OF PROJECT IMPACT (27ames of cities, counties, 11. ESTIMATED NUM- |12, TYPE OF APPLICATION
States, ete.) BER OF FERSONS | A-New C—~Revisicn E-Augmentation
State of Rhode Island i B-Renewsl D-Continuation _
937,000 E'nter appropricte lctter IEI
13.  PROPOSED FUNDING 14. CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICTS OF: i5. TYPE OF CHANGE (For 126 or 12)
= P~increass Dollars F=Qther (Specify):
s. FEDERAL | $ 5000 .0 | @ APPLICANT b. PROJECT E-Dazrease Dallers ‘
= 02 01 C-increass Duration
b. APPLICANT| Y, 67] .00 D—Cecrenso Duration
. STATE 00 | 16 PROJECT START 17. PROJECT Gucsiaan
- DATE Year month day DURATION Enter appro- [_T'_'_ ]
d. LOCAL .00 19 See #34 36 Months priate foiterte) | 1 | |
e. OTHER 93 | 18. ESTIMATED DATE TO Year month day |19. EXISTING FEDERAL IDENTIFICATICH NUMDER
: BZ SUBMITTED TO
t. vora. |s 14,671 00 FEDERAL AGENCY® 19 77 8 3 L4-77-00418-00
20. FEDERAL AGENCY TO RECEIYE REQUEST (Name, City, State, ZIP code) Z1. REMARKS ADDED
National Park Service, Washington, D.C. 20240 [] Yes No

22, 3. To the oest of ry krowladze and belief, | b. If recuired by CX13 Circular A-95 this 2nplication was submitted, pursuant to in- MNoove- freponss
E data im this pie:roircatien/applicatien ara structions thorein, io appropriate ciezringhoutes and ell rosponses ere attaches: spowze atiached
5 THE true and comrect, tis document hos bsen
APPLICANT | duly authorized by the governing bedy of
= | CERTIFIES | the applicant and the =pplicant will comply () State D E
THAT p with tho attached assurances if the 2msist- | (5 D EI
ance is approved. @ ' D D
g 23, s TYPED NAME AND TITLE c. DATE SIGHCD
cerTIFYING| Frederick C. Williamson, State Year monts day
E aene e | Historic Preservation Officer 1 77 8 3
24. AGENCY NAME "?ﬁ’a APPLICA- Yeer -nurih day
Department of the Interior RECEIVED 1977 08 08

26. ORGARIZATIONAL UNIT 27. ADMINISTRATIVE OF

National Park Service (

brants Administration Divisi

Z8. FEDERAL APS110.710N
i |CENTIFICATION

FICE

29. ADDRESS

30. FEDERAL GRAMT
IDENTIFICATIAS

R85 1= o iyt oAl BT

E
" <
E 18th & C Streets NW., Washington, D.C. 20240 A4_-R078
31. ACTION TAKEN |32 FUNDING Year month doy | 34, Year monts day
< STARTING
2 DCY 8- AWARDED a. FEDERAL $ S 000 00 | 33. ACTION DATE> 1977 00 _| DATE 1977 1101
35, CONTACT FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMA- | 35, = -
0 b. REJECTED b. APPLICANT Q ,(‘71 00 WO, i ok Blohee sk 2., Year month day
O« m"’;‘;’m"’“ e SWAIE 00 Stephen Newman DATE 180 (9 30
E AMEND ) d. LOCAL .00 (202) 523-5472 37. REMARKS ACDED
D d. DEFERRED a. OTHER .00
E D ». WITHDRAWN i TOTAL s 14 671 .09 D Yes ENO
g 8. in taking adovs actian, sny commants received from clearinghouses ware con- | b. FFDERAL AGENCY A-S5 OFFICIAL
sidarad. If azency response is dus under provisions of Part 1, OMB Circular A-55, (Name and tclephone no.)
FEDERAL AGENCY it has been or is being made.
A-95 ACTION same as #35
424-101 STANDARD TFORM 424 PAGE 1 (10-75)

. Prescribed by GSA, Federal Menayement Circular 74-7




I —
ACTION: NATIONAL REGISTER INFORMATION SYSTEM
Id 72000023 LI 12/08/1972 RI Newport Bellevue Avenue Historic Dist
01 More
L i
i g |
Name Bellevue Avenue Historic District
Address Roughly bounded Atlantic Ocean, Easton Bay, Coggeshall
Ave.,Spring St., and Memorial Blvd.
City Newport Vicinity Restrict
State  RHODE ISLAND County Newport
Status LISTED IN THE NATIONAL REGISTER Date 12/08/1972
Day45 Resource Type DISTRICT Acreage 606.0
Multiple
Contributing bldg 63 Site 1 Stre 0 Obj 0 Total 64
Noncontributing bldg 6 Site 0 Strc 0 Obj 0 Total 6
Park
L s |
_ , L R Astk
éof _F‘a 62/0(9;17" (’,-}’(JT /]L ‘S 7{
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FOREWORD

The night of August 1gth, 1892, was close and heavy, and a
dense fog rolled in from the Atlantic to shroud Bellevue Avenue. Then
suddenly all the lights in Marble House, both gas and electric, went
on and Newport was offered a spectacle it had never seen before. At
the gate the guests were admitted by a gatekeeper in maroon livery.
Inside the great portico Mr. and Mrs. William K. Vanderbilt wel-
comed friends for the first time to their new house. Among them, it
is pleasant to relate, were the architect, Richard Morris Hunt, and
Mis. Hunt, both old summer residents of the city. In fact, the architect
had proposed to Mrs. Hunt, the former Catherine Howland, not far
to the north on the avenue, on the old Charles H. Russell place to
be exact, now occupied by Vernon Court.

In Mr. and Mrs. Vanderbilt, Hunt had clients who, like Louis XIV
whom they admired extravagantly, had la manie de batir, the fury to
build beautiful houses. Their first commission for Hunt had been a Fifth
Avenue mansion, completed in 1882; their second was Marble House.
Like the first building, it was to be a milestone in the American Renais-
sance, the era between 1880 and 1930, when the United States was the
great classical nation of the world. Certainly Marble House was the
most sumptuous residence built in the country up to that time, even in
comparison with the Fifth Avenue mansions. And since then it has
known few rivals and fewer superiors.

It was in 1888 that Mr. and Mrs. Vanderbilt called on Richard
Morris Hunt to prepare designs for their summer home. About the
first of August a year later, construction began with Charles E. Clarke
of Boston as general contractor. By November of 1889, work had so
far advanced that Clarke took a two-year lease on a wharf and ware-
house in the lower part of the harbor to shelter the stone-carving
works and the variety of objects brought in by vessel, to be held in
readiness as construction proceeded. Batterson, See & Eisele, later
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Batterson & Eisele, was the firm in charge of the marble work both
inside and outside the house. (The firm, a leader in their craft, also
did much of the cutting and carving of stone for The Breakers and
The Elms.) Meanwhile, Mr. Hunt had been summoned to Paris to
go over the plans of the interior.

By 1890, Mr. Vanderbilt was so pleased with the work that he
had the sculptor, Karl Bitter, do a bas-relief of Hunt and one of Jules
Hardouin-Mansart, the architect of Versailles; these can be seen above
the mezzanine landing of the stairs.

Work was almost completed in the early part of 1892 when, in
March, a fire destroyed some of the interior marble. In April, the John
Williams Bronze Foundry proudly exhibited the entrance grille to a
fascinated New York public and received nothing but praise. Finally,
after more than four years of work, Marble House was finished, and
Mr. Vanderbilt presented it to his wife.

Not long after, in 1895, Marble House was the scene of a mag-
nificent party honoring the debut of Consuelo Vanderbilt, who was
shortly to become the Duchess of Marlborough. A year later her
parents were divorced. Mrs. Vanderbilt then married Mr. O. H. P.
Belmont and, when in Newport, lived at Belcourt, his Bellevue Avenue
residence, until his death in 19o8.

In the spring of 1909, Mrs. Belmont moved to Marble House,
which had been closed for twelve years. That summer she gave a large
garden party to which the public was admitted, to promote the cause
of woman suffrage in which she was a leader. In 1913 she built the
Chinese Teahouse on the cliffs and gave a large ball at Marble House.
Marble House was not opened by Mrs. Belmont after the United States
entered World War I in April, 1917.

Shortly before her death in 1933, Mrs. Belmont, who spent the
last ten years of her life in France, sold Marble House to Mr. Frederick
H. Prince of Boston. It remained in the Prince family until bought
from his Trust in December, 1963, by the Preservation Society of
Newport County with funds generously donated for that purpose by
Mr. Harold Stirling Vanderbilt, the son of Mr. and Mrs. William K.
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Vanderbilt. The furnishings, many of which were designed for the
mansion, were given to the Society through the generosity of the
Frederick H. Prince Trust.

In the matter of the design of Marble House, some have seen
inspiration in the White House in Washington, others in the Petit
Trianon at Versailles. In the interior, there are details which can be
traced to a variety of models. It is classical, but then so is The Breakers,
and yet the two buildings could not be more dissimilar, although
both were designed by the same architect for the same family and
with the same artisans.

What, then, is Marble House? It is nothing less than a superb
product of the American Renaissance, built for the American family
which has done more for American architecture than any other. It
is one of the monuments of the last full flowering of the Renaissance
of the Western World which began in Italy in the 15th century, only
to disappear in our own time, and as such to be treasured among
American works of art.



A tlantic Occan

Z:I’I'dl—‘" fo féi"

- e M

/Ox'ailg'/foum (] ;“o/a/ﬁoom

“‘ﬁa’/ﬂccm}

ZFutrance
«ll

Aain

Entrance

0 00 O

fmum{/%”/’ém ==
,on'v: =

==

faun faln —

ﬁc/[cuae ){ueau¢ —



THE MANSION
By Henry Hore REED

ENTRANCE HALL

The Entrance Hall, some twenty feet high, is lined and paved
with yellow Siena marble from Monte Arenti, a quarry near Mon-
tagnola, Italy. (All the marble work at Marble House was done by
Batterson, See and Eisele, with John Eisele in charge.) Overhead, the
ceiling has stucco relief in the form of masks and claborate arabesques
(arabesques being ornament of fruit, foliage, animals, etc., woven
into fantastic patterns). Immediately to the right and left are two
Gobelin tapestries in gold frames. (Gobelin was and still is the state
tapestry works of France.) The one on the right, woven in 1791
on the cartoon of Joseph-Bénoit Suvée, depicts the Protestant
leader, Admiral Gaspard de Coligny, about to be assassinated on the
occasion of the St. Bartholomew’s Eve Massacre of August 24, 1572;
it was made in the Gobelin workshop of Pierre-Francois Cozette. On
the left is another woven by Cozette in 1790 on the cartoon of Bar-
thelemy, showing Etienne Marcel, Provost of Paris, being murdered
by Jean Maillard on July 31, 1358, in the course of the revolt
of the Jacquerie. Beneath the tapestries on one side is a large inlaid
Louis XV Burcau plat with ormolu trim and opposite is a low cabinet,
of 19th-century buhlwork as indicated by the ebony frame and brass
and tortoise shell inlay. (Buhl comes from the name of André-Charles
Boulle, a Parisian cabinet-maker in the time of Louis XIV, who was
the first to use such inlay.) The bronze lamp standards are in the
shape of large volutes decorated with vases and dragons, as well as the
monogram “W V” of William Vanderbilt. They were made by ].
Allard et Fils, the French firm of cabinetmakers and decorators which
later worked for Richard Morris Hunt at The Breakers. Allard is also
responsible for the massive bronze fountain between the Gold Room
doors on the right. Here two cupids are seen playing; between them,
suspended from the basin is an ormolu (gilt bronze) garland of oak
leaves and acorns. The mirror above the basin is framed in thick glass
in the Venetian manner.

The chief omament of the hall is the splendid grille which
screens the entrance. Made to the architect’s designs by the John
Williams Bronze Foundry of New York, one of the outstanding art
metal firms of the American Renaissance, it is a combination of



soft steel, given a gun metal finish, and gilt bronze; it is unrivalled
in America in terms of composition, forging and finishing. Four
posts, in the shape of Corinthian pilasters, divide the grille into three
bays. The central bay forms the door, each half being 10 feet 8 inches
high and 6 feet 1% inches wide and weighing a ton and a half. Because
of their weight they had to be set on pivots instead of being held by
hinges, and they are so carefully made that they still close exactly. The
entire grille is 16 feet high and 25 feet 4 inches wide and weighs
more than ten tons. Among the ornaments, bronze plated with gold,
are the masks of the boy Apollo set against a sunburst, a favorite
device of Louis XIV of France, and cartouches bearing the monogram
l(W Vl’.

THE GOLD ROOM

The Gold Room which served as a ballroom is the richest of
the rooms in Marble House in terms or ornament. The walls, lavishly
gilded, are divided into a series of arched bays for the doors and win-
dows. The room’s outstanding ornament consists of the superb gilt
wood panels in carved relief. All the panels are done in red, green, and
yellow gold. The first panel on the right as you enter from the
Entrance Hall is Aphrodite Anadyomene, or Aphrodite, the goddess of
beauty and love, rising from the sea; she is shown on a scallop shell
bome by Tritons. The second panel on the right shows the nymph
Deianira, the bride of Herakles (Hercules), a satyr and a river God.
Opposite, to the right of the mantelpiece, Herakles is seen aiming his
arrow at Nessus who has seized his wife, the nymph Deianira. On
the left of the mantelpiece are Poseidon (Neptune) and Thetis.

The mantelpiece by Allard consists of bronze figures set on
Fleur de Peche marble; Old Age and Youth hold candlebras, while
between them is the mask of Dionysius or Bacchus, god of wine,
with garlands of ormolu flowers. Above the mask is a glass globe of
the world encircling a ball of the heavens, backed by a mirror. The
globe tells the hour, the day and the month, and it revolves around
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the ball once every twenty-four hours. Inside the fireplace, between
panels of fleur-de-lis, is a fireback showing Hades, king of the under-
world, seizing Persephone, his future queen.

Included in the oraments of the walls are large masks of satyrs,
to be found at the top of the windows and doors. The mirror on top
of the mantlepiece is crowned by a mask of Apollo with two cherubs
in relief. The gold continues into the ceiling, bringing out the detail
which frames various panels. Two narrow panels in white stucco
relief show, near the entrance door, a young centaur belaboring a man
with a club; opposite, Herakles, at one of his labors, is gripping the
jaws of the Numidian lion while a female centaur is ready to attack
the beast with a spear. Panels on the long sides, also in white stucco,
have cupids playing between large masks of Apollo. In the center of
the ceiling is a mural where Pallas Athena, recognizable by her
helmet and her breastplate adomed with the head of Medusa, is
carrying aloft a youth bidding farewell to his love as Cupid grasps
his ankle.

The two large chandeliers carrying cherubs with trumpets are
modeled on those of Chateau Maison-Lafitte outside of Paris. In
the four comers of the room, providing additional luminations, are
lamp standards with candelabra held by sea urchins seated on
pedestals of Fleur de Peche marble.

The dazzling effect of the gilt ornament is multiplied by the
mirrors over the four doors and the south windows, as well as the
ones above the mantelpiece and on the south wall. This is especially
true in the evening when the chandeliers are blazing with light. (A
beautiful Savonnerie carpet, formerly in this room, is now in the
Metropolitan Museum of Art.)

Before leaving the Gold Room, it is worth noting the locks and
hinges of the doors and French windows. The latter have large
voluted handles with the sun god’s mask; and the former have lock
boxes in the form of a scallop shell and stalactites.
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THE GOTHIC ROOM

The Gothic Room provides a sober contrast to the Ballroom.
By Gothic is meant the style of architecture and ornament, distin-
guished by the use of the pointed arch, which flourished in Western
Europe between the 12th and 15th centuries. This room was designed
to house a very valuabla collection of Gothic miniatures, crucifixes and
other small objects of art, all shown in glass cases. They have long
since been sold. The room was never used as a living room but as an
appropriate setting to display the collection. Originally the ceiling
was in polychrome (painted with many colors), the walls above the
paneling covered with red damask and the windows filled with stained
glass. Part of the illumination came from lights set behind these
windows. Some of the reproduction Gothic furniture designed for
the room has survived. At the bottom of the wood paneling there
is linen-fold carving, also typical of Gothic work. The ceiling is divided
into small panels by ribs with Gothic detail. Around the wall, just
below the ceiling, there is a continuous row of angelic singers and
musicians. The two large bronze chandeliers are in the style. The big
chimney breast with niches, finials and pinnacles is topped by cren-
elation, as if a portion of an ancient battlement had found its way
to the room. On the chimney breast are three panels of domestic
scenes in full relief; the two side ones show a couple with a bowl of
fruit, while the center one has a couple playing chess. Crouching
figures, a knight in armor on the right and a monk in habit on the
left, uphold the chimney breast.

The four velvet armorial panels on the north and south walls are
loaned by Mrs. Henry Drummond Wolff. The two stone statues on
the morth wall are of Saint George killing the Dragon and Saint Bar-
bara, the patron saint of the artillery. The tapestry on the west wall

is a fine example of late 17th century Flemish and is loaned by John
Nicholas Brown.

THE TERRACE HALL

The Terrace Hall opens out on a marble court between the wings
occupied by the Gothic Room and the Library and connects them. As
in the Entrance Hall, yellow Siena marble is the dominant note of
the Terrace Hall, covering as it does the floor and the walls. The
ceiling has stucco relief. On the top of a buhlwork cabinet on the
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terrace side is a large clock set in a sunburst with fronds and cupids,
one of which holds a medallion of Louis XIV, the other, bayleaf
crown and trumpet. A folding screen m handsome frame of gilt
bronze has painted panels. In the lower half of the panels are Chin-
oiserie scenes (Chinoiserie being European painting, stucco work, etc..
done in the Chinese manner. Similar work, executed in pre-Revolution-
ary Newport, can be seen in the Panel Room of the Vernon House on
Clarke Street.) At the top, in medallions, are mythological scenes of
Apollo and Daphne, Zeus and Danae and others. The sconces or wall
brackets are in the shape of crowned lanterns with candelabra. The
large gilt bronze handles of the doors repeat those to be found in the
Gold Room,

THE LIBRARY

Forming yet another contrast is the Library in the rococo style
(an 18th-century style characterized by the use of shells, scrolls or
flowers in profusion and resulting in many broken and irregular
curves). The closed book shelves and paneling are of English walnut
carved with the swirling shapes of the style. The movable library
stairway of English walnut with rococo detail served as a ladder to
make books on the upper shelves accessible. In the rose and
gold ceiling there are four grisaille (gray monochrome) ovals held
by cherubs in relief. Starting at the corner left of the doorway, they
depict chemistry, botany, mechanical engineering and astronomy
and they are so titled in French. In addition there are two frescoes.
One has the muse of history, Clio, writing away as she glances at a
portrait held by a cherub, while Time, seated before the Institut de
France in Paris, looks on. The other opposite has Euterpe, Music’s
muse, holding a lyre and welcoming a bouquet of roses offered by an
admirer. Overhead, cherubs and clouds float in a blue sky.

The portrait is of Mrs. William K. Vanderbilt, later Mrs. O.H.P.
Belmont, donated by her son Harold S. Vanderbilt.

The marble mantelpiece has two lamps with gilt bronze orna-
ment and, on its center, is a clock held by a trumpeting elephant of
bronze made by Henry Dasson of Paris.

The furniture is carved walnut in the Louis XV style. The floor

has wide boards held by wooden pegs instead of nails, as was once
the custom.



The door underscores the contrast in style between the Hall
and the Library. On the inside it is of walnut with rococo ornament;
on the outside it is of oak with classical moldings, as outside the
Gothic Room door.

THE DINING ROOM

If there is a possible rival to the Dining Room of Marble House,
it is the one in The Breakers. Both are classical, but such is the
breadth of the classical vocabulary that the two are completely
different. Here the opulence is more restrained in its grandeur, and
to step into it from the bright hall shining with yellow Siena marble
is to be struck by another mood, at once stern and luxurious. The
walls are lined with dark pink Numidian marble from Djebel-er-Roos
in Western Algeria. High Corinthian pilasters with bases and capitals
of gilt bronze divide the surfaces. Large sconces in the form of
cascading trophies of arms extend bronze candelabra; above them are
similar, but small, cascades of arms. At the far end is a marble mantel
with bronze ornaments patterned on the one in the Hall of Hercules
in Versailles; the mask in the center is that of Hercules with his
helmet made of the skin of the Numidian lion. Above it is a portrait
attributed to Pierre Mignard, of the young Louis XIV, “given by the
King to the City of Ypres, Belgium”, and it is fitting that he is in
honor here as his inspiration can be seen throughout Marble House.
The ceiling is broken up into panels by gilt stucco relief with symbols
of hunting and fishing. Stag heads are at the four corners, boar heads
on the short sides with panels on the long sides filled with nets, oars
and other paraphernalia of the fisherman. Garlands of seashells in
yellow gold are strung between the heads and the panels. The mural
at the center of the ceiling has Hermes (Mercury) leading a sun-
crowned goddess to Olympus, the home of the gods, with Vulcan or
Ares (Mars) holding a shield on the south end.

One of the extraordinary aspects of the Dining Room is, of course,
the furniture. The chairs and stools, made in Paris probably by Allard,
are of solid bronze covered with a roseate cut velvet. They are the
only example of bronze furniture in the United States, and there is no
evidence that anything like it exists elsewhere in the world. The style
is Louis XIV. Two gilt bronze lamp standards are in the corners near
hall doors; they have elaborately voluted frames with Apollo masks
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and goat heads, and they are topped by flower-filled vases. In the win-
dows the curtains and panels are of handsome cut velvet with fringes,
and the tiebacks have large tassels. The doors with gilt bronze frames
of classical detail have sheets of beveled plate glass.

The household staff consisted of a butler, a valet, three footmen,
a lady’s maid, three housemaids, a French chef, three kitchen
assistants, a houseman and three laundresses. The outdoor staff con-
sisted of a coachman and grooms and the head gardener and his staff.

A word as to the staff livery on formal occasions, when Marble
House opened in 1892. The footmen were clad in maroon coats with
full breast cords, black knee breeches with gilt garters, and patent
leather shoes with gilt buckles.

The kitchen is in the basement under the dining room and about
the same size, the food was sent up by dumb-waiter to the pantry
which is next to the dining room. The kitchen and basement are not
open to the public.

THE GRAND STAIRCASE

The staircase, as in all great mansions or palaces, forms as much
part of the parade ground as the rooms of state. There is no finer
setting for a beautifully gowned woman than a flight of stairs. The
railing of the stairway is of wrought iron with gun metal finish and
ormmamented with gilt bronze trophies, the work of Allard. In fact,
the firm’s signature, “J. Allard et Fils Paris 1891”, can be found
at the bottom of the left foot of the cherub at the foot of the steps.
As for the design of the bronze trophies, it is a standard 18th-
century pattern, although these, like other parts of the house, may
be modeled on those of Versailles.

It should be noted that, at this point, the hall is 40 feet from
floor to ceiling.

THE MEZZANINE

The mezzanine is at the top of the first flight of steps, and it
is worth pausing here to look about carefully at various objects. The
big chandelier, no doubt from Allard’s workshop, can be examined
at close hand. The wrought iron and marble top table between the
windows is a fine example of southern French 18th century Regence.
Two large lamp standards are in the corners; they show female terms
holding candelabra decorated with strings of bay lcaf and bay berry.
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(A term is a square pillar tapering downward and adorned at the top
with figure. In Roman times they served as terminal or boundary posts
to indicate property lines; with the Renaissance of the 15th century,
they came to be adopted for purely decorative purposes both in house
and garden.)

The mural on the ceiling above is North Italian, painted in
the manner of the Venetian, Gianbattista Tiepolo. A woman clad in
red and blue with a star of light above her head motions to another
holding a string of beads. At the latter’s feet, a cherub 1s playing with
a basket. Two cherubs overhead are descending with a crown while,
on the lower right, a winged female figure blows a trumpet.

MR. VANDERBILTS OFFICE

The small room at the head of the stairs on the north side of
the mezzanine was used by Mr. Vanderbilt as his office and study.
The walls are lined with red damask. The furniture is in the Louis
XV style. The bronze clock on the mantel was made by Tiffany & Co.

MRS. VANDERBILT’S SITTING ROOM

Across the way, on the south side of the mezzanine, is Mrs.
Vanderbilt’s sitting room, in Louis XV Revival woodwork so popular
at the turn of the century. On the ceiling is a small mural of cherubs
playing with a flower garland. In keeping with the room’s style, the
furniture is also Louis XV in its elaborate marquetry and ormolu
appliqués. On the mantel is a clock of wood veneer with ormolu trim
by Tiffany & Co. On either side are grape-crowned figures dancing and
holding candelabra.

THE SECOND FLOOR LANDING

A handsome portrait of Louis XV at fifteen, attributed to Jean-
Baptiste Van Loo, commands the second floor landing. On the court
side opposite, between the windows, is a marble bust of the youthful
Louis XIV, a copy of the one executed in 1665 by the Cavalier Ber-
nini, the greatest artist of the 17th century. (The original is in the
Palace of Versailles and a bronze copy exists in the National Gallery of
Art in Washington.) Above the windows are pairs of gold figures in
relief holding white medallions. That on the right is the portrait of
Jules Hardouin-Mansart, chief architect of Louis XIV at Versailles, and
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on the left is the one of Richard Morris Hunt, chief architect of the
Vanderbilt family. They are the work of Karl Bitter a young Austrian
immigrant who was launched in New York by Richard Morris Hunt.
His work can be found in Ochre Court and The Breakers. In New
York his best known works are the statue of Abundance on the
fountain in front of the Plaza Hotel, the bronze doors of Trinity
Church on lower Broadway and the sculpture on the facade of the
Metropolitan Museum of Art. He probably ranks first among Ameri-
ca’s architectural sculptors. The walls are of yellow Siena marble.
The landing is the best place from which to study the detail of the
ceiling. In the four corners are groups of heroic figures in red gold and
green gold. On the ocean side to the right, it is easy to make out the
sun-crowned Apollo, Apollo Musagetes or god of the Muses, with his
Iyre; his companion is the helmeted Athena holding an olive branch
in her left hand. Together they represent the arts. On the other side
to the left are Ares (Mars) and Aphrodite (Venus), behind which is
a cluster of arms; they represent war and military glory. Over the land-
ing, opposite the stairs, Demeter (Ceres), the earth goddess with her
sickle, and ancient Time with his scythe are symbolic of the continu-
ing bounty of the earth. Poseidon (Neptune) and Thetis represent
sea, evidently both in war and in peace, as seen by the objects behind
them in the last corner at the head of the stairs.

MRS. VANDERBILT’S BEDROOM

Mrs. Vanderbilt’s bedroom is to the left of the stairway. The
style is the elaborate Rococo Revival met with in her Sitting Room.
The detail is especially abundant over the doors where cherubs hold
shields bearing the letter “A” for Alva, Mrs. Vanderbilt’s first name.
Over the windows the carving is no less elaborate with female masks,
cherubs and gilt swags or garlands of flowers; the curtains, with fringe
and large tieback tassels, are of pink damask. The mantelpiece of Fleur
de Peche marble has two bronze terms holding large candelabra. The
bronze clock is French 18th Century and has a small relief of Apollo
driving his chariot. The walls are covered with pale peach damask in
arabesque pattern.

The ceiling mural by an unknown hand shows the helmeted God-
dess Athena seated in the heavens. Four ovals with rococo frame are
set around the mural, each containing a busy cherub. On the floor is

14



a large Aubusson rug. Mrs. Vanderbilt's bed has an elaborate frame
with figures, part of the furniture of the room made to match the
carved overdoors. The bedspread, which is original, consists of em-
broidered brocade with inserts of velvet.

Much of the furniture in Marble House was made specially for
Mr. and Mrs. Vanderbilt. It is interesting to note that there are no
closets for this room or for any of the other rooms on the second
floor. Handsome armoires replace them.

THE SOUTH WING

Passing through the archway to the left of Mrs. Vanderbilt’s
bedroom, one enters a small square hall panelled in oak. The circular
staircase (not opened to the public) leads to a bathroom on the
landing and to guest rooms on the third floor.

The room on the right was that of Mr. and Mrs. Vanderbilt’s
oldest son, William K. Vanderbilt, Jr. It is very different in style, with
an eagle motif over the mantle, doors, and on the wall brackets, and
is more American in feeling than any other room in the house. The
handsome suite of marqueterie furniture is also part of the original
furnishings. The beautiful rug is Chinese.

Straight ahead, the narrow hall leads to Miss Consuelo Vander-
bilt’s bedroom. As mentioned before, her debut in 1895 was one of
the first parties to be given at Marble House. In 1895 she married
the gth Duke of Marlborough. They were divorced in 1920 and she
married Captain Jacques Balsan in 1921. She died in early 1965.

The walls in Miss Vanderbilt's room were originally covered in
silk satin above the panelled oak wainscoting. The oak furniture, like
most of the furniture in Marble House, was made for the room. The
bed, however, is reconstructed, but the red silk satin canopy, bed-
spread, baldaquin, draperies, valance and the scalloped border with
gold applique sea motif of shells, mermaids and dolphins, with gold
fringe, are all original.

There is every reason to believe that this wing was much altered
during the time that Mr. and Mrs. Prince owned the house. Miss
Vanderbilt’s bedroom was larger and had six windows, the hall, leading
to it, much shorter; and young Mr. Vanderbilt’s room smaller with a
single window.
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MR. VANDERBILT’S ROOM

The entrance is directly opposite the head of the stairs. Smaller
and much simpler in taste, it is in the sober Louis XVI style,
contrasting with the ebullient Louis XV of Mrs. Vanderbilt's room.
The only ornament is the rinceaux frieze beneath the ceiling with
its corners holding scallop shells, and Apollo masks are set in the
ceiling comers. The severely classical mantelpiece is of purple Breccia
marble with gilt bronze appliqués. The walls are covered with a
green damask which is also to be found on the headboards of the bed.

THE GUEST ROOM

The guest room, recently done over, has an 18th century chimney-
piece of marble with bronze mounts. The walnut furniture is in the
Louis XV style. To the right of the fireplace is a portrait of a royal
officer in armor, painted by Hyacinthe Rigaud in 1706, with a battle
scene depicted in the background. To the left is a portrait of
Mademoiselle de Blois, legitimized daughter of Louis XIV, possibly
by the same artist. The handsomely embroidered bed is Venetian and
was at one time owned by the late Mrs. William K. Vanderbilt, Jr.

THE EXTERIOR OF MARBLE HOUSE

On the Bellevue Avenue side, four high fluted Corinthian columns
form a portico at the entrance approached by a balustrated horseshoe
drive. Inside the portico is a frieze over the entrance, showing, from
left to right, the familiar figure of Aphrodite Anadyomene on her
scallop shell, Poseidon on his watery chariot, and a second Aphrodite.
The entrance grille has two big lion masks over the door, and the gilt
interior ornament of the Apollo mask and Vanderbilt monogram is
repeated here in dark bronze.

The lamp standards and the bronze railings of the drive came
from the John Williams Bronze Foundry, which made the entrance
grille. In the hollow formed by the drive there is a large fountain with
three tragic masks, the work of Batterson, See & Eisele. The drive is
paved with grayish brick-sized stone.

The sidewalk on Bellevue Avenue consists of large slabs of slate.
Inside the sidewalk the property is guarded at each end by a high
wall of Tuckahoe marble and, in between these walls, by an equally
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high black wrought iron bar fence, at each end of which are double
gates which match the fence. The gates guard the entrance to and
the exit from the horseshoe drive.

On the south side of the house are five lunettes (a half-moon
shaped wall) in the bay arches; they have reliefs of Leda and the
Swan, a sea nymph with two dolphins, Poseidon and Thetis, Aphro-
dite, and a nymph with a dragon.

The ocean or terrace fagade is particularly impressive, thanks to
the two-story high fluted Corinthian pilasters which rise to a high
entablature. On the center wall of the court, figures fill the spandrels
above the arched windows between the pilasters. Between the figures
are four signs of the zodiac: Aries (the Ram), Cancer (the Crab),
Libra (the Scales) and Capricorn (the Goat). Above them, between
the Corinthian capitals (the uppermost part of the pilasters) are
panels with fruit garlands and fluttering ribbons.

On the marble terrace, for the student of the classical to take
his ease are two marble benches. The benches themselves rest on
admirably ornamented supports in the shape of horned satyrs with
musical trophies on the panels between the satyrs. Against the center
court wall are three marble terms: a satyr; Demeter or Ceres, the
Earth goddess; and a nymph, all of French provenance.

The north facade also has lunette relief. From left to right, they
are a girl with torch, a girl with playful baby, Fortune with her corn-
ucopia or horn of abundance and her winged wheel, a girl with
sleeping child, and a girl with owl.

The specimen trees on the grounds are beech, linden, maple,
elm, oak and horse chestnut.

THE CHINESE TEAHOUSE

On the edge of the cliffs overlooking the Atlantic sits a Chinese
teahouse built in 1913. It was designed by Hunt & Hunt, the partner-
ship formed by Richard Howland Hunt and Joseph Howland Hunt to
succeed their father’s firm. The teahouse offers a picturesque roof in
the form of green tiles and copper lions, dragons and dolphins, the
last with their tails in the air. It is closed temporarily.

Copyright, PSNC, 1965
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NATIONAL LAWN TENNIS
HALL OF FAME

AND TENNIS MUSEUM, InNc.

Lawn Tennis, introduced into the United
States about 1875, is a descendant of the an-
cient game of Tennis, or “Court Tennis”, as
it is now called. Lawn Tennis was patented in
England in 1874 by Major Walter C. Wing-
field under the name of ‘‘Sphairistike’’, and
reached our shores by way of Bermuda. It was
first played in Staten Island, New York, and
Nahant, Massachusetts, but one of the very
early Lawn Tennis courts was set up in an
estate in Newport directly across the street
from the present location of the National
Lawn Tennis Hall of Fame.

Although several private courts were laid
out at Newport in the late 1870’s, it was with
the building of the Newport Casino that the
history of Championship Lawn Tennis in the
United States really began. The Casino was
built in 1880 under the sponsorship of James
Gordon Bennett, owner of the New York
Herald. As the result of a controversy with
the Newport Reading Room, an old and con-
servative men's club, he engaged Stanford
White, the noted architect of the firm of Mc-
Kim, Mead and White, to design the buildings
for a new club to be located opposite his resid-
ence on Bellevue Avenue. Upon completion,
the club was turned over to the ‘Newport
Casino” corporation formed by a group of
summer colonists.

The opening of the Casino coincided with
the organization of the United States Lawn
Tennis Association in 1881, and it was de-
cided to hold their first official championship
tournament at the Casino in August of that
year. The National Men’s Singles Champion-
ship were held here through 1914, and an
important Invitation Tournament including
many of the world's leading amateur tennis
players was continued annually through 1967.



A men’s professional tournment was held each
year from 1965 through 1970, and an inter-
national women’s tournament in 1971.

The idea of the National Lawn Tennis
Hall of Fame originated with Mr. James H.
Van Alen in 1952. A dedicated tennis player
and enthusiast, and President of the Newport
Casino, Mr. Van Alen considered the Casino,
as the cradle of American Lawn Tennis, to be
the logical place for a national museum. The
United States Lawn Tennis Association gave
official permission for its establishment in
1954. At an organizational meeting in New
York in September of that year, the name of
National Lawn Tennis Hall of Fame and Ten-
nis Museum, Inc. was selected, and Mr. Will-
iam J. Clothier, Nationa] Champion in 1906,
was chosen the first President. The late Henry
Heffernan of Newport, for many years Secret-
ary-Treasurer, assisted Mr. Clothier in the
early stages of development.

Later in 1954 an appeal was made
through tennis organizations and interested
individuals, which resulted in the donation of
a significant collection of tennis trophies, and
other memorabilia, as well as financial support.
A part of the south wing of the Casino was
renovated to house the museum collection and
set up an office. The museum has since received
many gifts of championship trophies, antique
rackets and other historic tennis equipment.
photographs, books, statuary, a model court
tennis court, and other interesting items asso-
ciated with the games of lawn tennis and court
tennis.

Dedication ceremonies were held in the
summer of 1955 with many notable guests in
attendance, including Senator Theodore Fran-
cis Green, Governor Dennis J. Roberts, and
Miss Grace Kelly, now Princess of Monaco. A
group of distinguished tennis personalities were
selected for enshrinement in the Tennis Hall
of Fame; and the enshrinement ceremonies con-
tinue to be a feature of Tennis Week at the
Casino or at Forest Hills each year. Selection
for enshrinement honors is based on sports-
manship, skill, character, and contribution to
the game of tennis.



Since 1955, through private subscription,
funds have been obtained to expand the Mu-
seum, so that it now has four large rooms, and
a ““Hall of Fame” tennis court has been con-
structed opposite the entrance. Mr. Clothier
resigned as President in 1957, and was succeed-
ed by Mr. Van Alen, who still holds that
office. As the result of the efforts of the Tennis
Hall of Fame Directors, and the generosity of
Casino shareholders in donating their stock,
the Tennis Hall of Fame now holds a control-
ling interest of about 80% of the Casino
shares. The Hall of Fame Directors are there-
fore proceeding with plans for renovation of
the facilities and expansion of the program,
with the assurance that the necessary financial
backing can be secured, since gifts to the Tennis
Hall of Fame are on a tax-deductible basis for
the donors.

Thousands of persons from all over the
world visit this shrine of American Tennis
each, year to browse among the ever-expanding
display of tennis memorabilia, and to view the
notable Standford White architecture and the
beautiful grass tennis courts of the Newport
Casino.

All contributions and inquiries should be
addressed to:

NATIONAL TENNIS HALL OF FAME
Newport Casino
194 Bellevue Avenue

Newport, Rhode Island 02840



ELECTED TO ENSHRINEMENT
IN THE
NATIONAL LAWN TENNIS
HALL OF FAME

* Deceased
1955
*Richard D. Sears *Oliver S. Campbell
*Dr. James Dwight *Robert D. Wrenn
*Henry W. Slocum, Jr. *Malcolm D. Whit
*Joseph S. Clark
1956
*William J. Clothier *William A. Larned
*Dwight F. Davis *Holcombe Ward
May Sutton Bundy *Beals C. Wright
1957
*Mary K. Browne Hazel Hotchkiss Wightman
*Maurice Mcloughlin *Richard Norris Williams, 2nd
1958
*William Johnston *R. Lindley Murray
*Molla Bjurstedt Mallory *Maud Barger Wallach
1959
*William T. Tilden, 1l Helen Wills Roark
1961
*Vincent Richards *Malcolm Chace
Francis T. Hunter *Fred B. Alexander
*Harold H. Hackett
1962
John H. Doeg H. Ellsworth Vines
Helen H. Jacobs
1963
Wilmer Allison John Van Ryn
Sarah Palfrey Danzig *Julian S. Myrick
1964
Alice Marble Francis X. Shields
J. Donald Budge *George T. Adee
George M. Lott, Jr. Sidney B. Wood, Jr.
1965
Pauline Betz Addie Watson Washburn
*Elien Forde Hansell W. Donald McNeill
James H. Van Alen
1966
*Joseph R. Hunt *Theodore R. Pell
Frank A. Parker Frederick R. Schroeder, Jr.
1967
Robert Riggs Margaret O. duPont
William F. Talbert Louise B. Clapp
1968
Allisan Danzig *Maureen C. Brinker
John A. Kramer Richard A. Gonzalez
*Eleonora Sears
1969
*Charles S. Garland *Karl Behr
Marie Wagner Doris Hart
Arthur Larsen
1970
Tony Trabert Shirley Fry Irvin
*Perry Jones Clarence Griffin
1971
Althea Gibson Darben E. Victor Seixas, Jr.

*Elisabeth H. Moore Arthur C. Nielsen



OFFICERS
James H. Van Alen, President
Alastair B. Martin, First Vice-President
J. Burke Wilkinson, Second Vice-President
Archbold van Beuren, T hird Vice-President
Edward B. Corcoran, Secretary-Treasurer
Patrick O’N. Hayes, Counsel

DIRECTORS
George F. Baker, Jr., New York
Edward G. Chandler, San Francisco
William J. Clothier, 2nd, Philadelphia
Edward B. Corcoran. Newport
Allison Danzig, New York
Dwight F. Davis, Jr.. New York
William H. G. FitzGerald, Washington
William Clay Ford, Detroii
Lewis Grinnan, Jr., Dallas
Karl Kamrath, Houston
Northup Knox, Buffalo
Seymour H. Knox, Buffalo
Alastair B. Martin. New York
Dean W. Mathey, New York
Eugene L. Scott, New York
Francis X. Shields, New York
C. Alphonso Smith, Virginia
William F. Talbert, New York
Gen. Maxwell D. Taylor, U.S.A., Washington
James H. Van Alen, Newport
William L. Van Alen, Philadelphia
Archbold van Beuren, Newport
Watson Washburn, New York
Douglas S. Watters, New Orleans
Alexander L. Wiener, Detroit
J. Burke Wilkinson, Waskington
Sidney B. Wood, Jr., New York

President U. S. Lawn Tennis Association,
Ex-Officio



THE NATIONAL LAWN TENNIS HALL OF FAME STORY

By James H. Van Alen, President
The National Lawn Tennis Hall of Fame and Tennis Museum, Inc.

A National Hall of Fame is a pre-
requisite of every major sport in the
United States today. It gives stature
to the game. The great players and

ersonalities of the past are justly
Eonored. the players of the present
and future inspired, and the impor-
tance of the game as a National
pastime is brought tastefully to the
attention of the general public. For
a long time this need was recognized
in respect to Lawn Tennis, but it was
not until 1953 that a concrete effort
was made to organize such an insti-
tution.

The National Lawn Tennis Hall of
Fame and Tennis Museum (NLTHF-
TM) was founded in 1954 and it was
decided that its headquarters should
be in the historic buildings of the
Newport Casino, Newport, Rhode
Island. The Casino Board of Gover-
nors arranged to rent two large rooms
on the ground floor. The first Presi-
dent was William J. Clothier of
Philadelphia, Singles Champion in
1906. He was succeeded in 1958 by
James H. Van Alen of Newport,
Rhode Island, President of the Casi-
no, who originated the drive for a
National Shrine.

The complete suitability of the
Casino as a headquarters for the Hall
of Fame can best be appreciated
when it is recalled that the first Na-
tional Singles Championship was
played on the Casino courts in 1881
and that the Championship continued
to be played there through 1914—
after which the Championship was
moved to Forest Hills. In this last Na-
tional Championship at the Casino,
Maurice McLoughlin and R. N. Wil-
liams met in the final for the second
time. Mcloughlin had beaten Wil-
liams in the 1913 final, but in 1914
Williams reversed the decision, win-

ning one of the truly great tennis
matches of all time. In the accom-
panying picture they are shown as
they were being inducted into the
Lawn Tennis Hall of Fame in 1957.
They are standing on the same court
on which they had battled out their
two great finals matches almost 45
years before! With them are Mrs.
Hazel Hotchkiss Wightman and Miss
Mary K. Browne, now Mrs. K. Ken-
neth-Smith, who were the lady induc-
tees of that year.

Indeed, it can be said that the
Casino is the cradle of the game as
a national sport! I+ has been claimed
and truly that if Richard Dudley
Sears, our first National Champion,
should return to earth he would find
no change in the Casino architecture
and only an improvement in the tex-
ture of the grass on the courts! No
other Hall o? Fame has been so for-
tunate in the matter of a traditional
setting.

Mr. Clothier went industriously to
work with the planning of the Museum
—the decoration of the rooms and
the collecting and placing of trophies
and articles of memorabilia; and the
Hall of Fame began to take shape.
One of the first trophies to be do-
nated was the First Championship
Bowl won in 1881 by R. D. Sears of
Boston. Assisting Mr. Clothier dur-
ing this period was Henry Heffernan
of Newport, Secretary-Treasurer. |t
was not long before another room
especially for the Tennis Museum had
to be added.

In 1955 it was considered that the
project was far enough advanced to
Justify an official opening. This cere-
mony was held July 9, 1955. Among
the distinguished guests were The
Governor of Rhode Island, United
States Senator Theodore Francis

Reprinted from THE OFFICIAL USLTA NEWS, July, 1962



National Tennis

Hall of Fame

1957 Enshrinement
Ceremony

(L tor)

R. Norris Williams, 2nd,
Mary K. Browne,
Hazel H. Wightman,
Maurice McLoughlin
With

James H. Van Alen

Green, and Miss Grace Kelly (now
Princess of Monaco), who presented
a souvenir-prize to the winner of an
exhibition tennis match between
Neale Fraser and Straight Clark. A
large crowd witnessed the dedication
ceremony and match. On August 12
of the same year, the Saturday of
the Newport Invitation Tournament,
the first inductees or their appointees
were presented with their memorial
scrolls.

However, it was obvious from the
beginning that a Hall of Fame with-
out permanent quarters could never
completely fulfill its function—could
but be a Hall of Fame in name. It
was with this thought in mind that in
1959 a drive was started to acquire
a sufficient number of shares in the
Casino Corporation for the Hall of
Fame to have a controlling interest in
the property. The responsibility for
the success of this drive of necessity
fell upon the shoulders of those Di-
rectors of the NLTHF residing in the
goal was attained through the gen-
erosity of the descendants of the
original Casino stockholders. This
signal success, however, not only as-
sured the NLTHF-TM of a permanent
home, but put Lawn Tennis far in
advance owpany other sport in this
respect. For not only is the NLTHF-
TM housed in the most traditional
setting possible, but the grass courts

July, 1962

which are an integral part of the
whole property make it possible for
the NLTHF-TM to be the only Hall
of Fame in the country which is able
to claim the "unique' distinction of
being a "working" one—where the
players of the present and future can
gain inspiration by not only seeing
the game as it was but as it is played
today. For although in 1914 the
Championship was moved to Forest
Hills, the Newport Invitation was
initiated and has been ever since the
dress rehearsal, the final tune-up, for
the National Doubles at Longwood
and the National Singles at Forest
Hills which follow directly after.

This year a further bond will be
forged between the past and the
present, for it has been proposed and
approved that the Newport Invita-
tion Tournament will henceforth be
known as the Lawn Tennis Hall of
Fame Invitation Tournament.

The title NLTHF-TM spelled out
reads ''National Lawn Tennis Hall of
Fame and Tennis Museum." The Mu-
seum is another feature which sets
the NLTHF-TM apart from the sim-
ilar institutions of other games. It
should be noted that the Museum
is that of "Tennis,”" known also as
"Court Tennis"—not merely "Lawn
Tennis." The reason for this is his-
torical, for the original game of
"Tennis'" of the Middle Ages was



played in enclosed buttressed and
cloistered courtyards on stone floors,
whereas the "Lawn'' variety was not
invented by Major Wingfierd of Eng-
land until 1873. Shakespeare referred
to Tennis in ""Henry V":
"When we have matched our rack-
ets to these balls
We will in France, by God's grace,
play a set."

Henry VIII of England and Francois
Premier of France were enthusiastic
players. So the roots of the game of
the racket, ball, and net are im-
planted far more deeply and firmly
in the soil of history than those of
any other game. This allows the Mu-
seum far greater scope in collecting
its library and memorabilia—etchings,
paintings, costumes, etc.—than any
of the more modern games. The lop-
sided racket used by R. D. Sears in
fact is a light weight copy of those
used in the parent game in which the
ball has a solid core and consequently
in which a far more heavy racket is
required.

The Hall of Fame now houses a
substantial collection of trophies won
by McLoughlin, Johnston, Tilden, Dr.
Dwight, Molla Mallory, Hazel Hotch-
kiss Wightman, and other tennis

champions, as well as many photo-
graphs, books, antique tennis rackets
and other equipment, statuary, and

a unique model "court tennis" court.

So much for what the Hall of
Fame has already acquired. Now for
the future which lies ahead—and it
can indeed be an exciting, interest-
ing, and constructive one. First, it
must be recognized that the NLTHF-
TM belongs to every tennis lover in
America regardless of geographical
location or player ability. Its objec-
tive is the betterment and advance-
ment of the game for the benefit of
ALL. Because ‘it belongs to ALL it is
also the responsibility of ALL to see
that it prospers and to help it carry
out the purposes for which it was
organized.

At the moment much has been
done by a few. The NLTHF-TM has
a permanent home located in the
most ideal surroundings conceivable
—architecturally, traditionally, and
practically. The architecture is as
distinctive and important as it was
when the plans were drawn by the
most distinguished architectural firm
of that era—McKim, Mead and
White. The buildings are there, but
if Tennis is going to hold its head
up with the Halls of Baseball and
Racing there is naturally much yet
to be done in the way of refurbish-
ing and redecoration. With such ar-
chitectural and traditional advantages
the possibilities are limitless; all that
is needed is the support of the great

Copy of 1882
Picture

"Tennis at
Newport Casino"'
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American tennis-playing and tennis-
viewing public.

In 1956 funds were contributed to
add a new room on the second floor
now known as the ''Doubles Room,"
but with the space available there
are many more improvements which
would widen the scope of the Hall of
Fame.

The Hall of Fame has had its shake-
down cruise and is now prepared to
take on any and all of the normal
duties of its calling when funds are
made available. The first and fore-
most of these, of course, is the in-
duction of great players; but there
are many other duties in which indi-
viduals or groups who desire to
memorialize some past friend of ten-
nis can play a part. An auditorium

National Tennis
Hall of Fame
Maurice McLoughlin
Exhibit

for tennis lectures, discussions, and
movies, would be a great addition.
and such a building is actually avail-
able at the moment. Also desirable
for winter and bad-weather tennis is
a covered court, the side walls for
which are standing now between two
of our original buildings; a specific
"Hall of Fame' room, with each in-
ductee represented in an individual
alcove, as in the picture of MclLough-
lin; a "Davis Cup" room.

The tennis "greats" who have al-
ready been inducted into the Tennis
Hall of Fame are listed herein. Those
elected this year will be inducted at
the ceremony which will be held on
August 18, the Saturday of the Hall
of Fame Invitation Tournament at the
Newport Casino.

*My check is enclosed as follows:

Please enroll me as a member of the Tennis Hall of Fame.

(payable to Tennis Hall of Fame)

------------------------

[J Annual Subscriber $10.00 [] Contributing $100
] Annual Club $25.00 [] Life $250
(Name)
(Address)

*Donations are tax-deductible to tﬁs‘ extent allowable by law.
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Travers Block Nears Completion
Historic Travers Block at corner of Bellevue Avenue and year after fire gutted structure, Tenants began moving into

ByT.CURTIS FORBES
Two historic Bellevue Avenue

and the Samuel Pratt House,
are in the process of being
restored by their owners.

Both structures are con-
sidered a great architectural
value and are cited in The
Architectural Heritage of
Newport, Rhode Island, by
Antoinette F. Downing and
Vincent J. Scully Jr.

The Travers Block at
Bellevue Avenue and Memorial
Boulevard was built in 1875 and
designed by Richard Morris
Hunt, one of America's most
renowned architects.

A brick building laced with
nonstructural half-timbers, the
block was virtually destroyed
by fire last Nov. 4.

At first, K & L Real Estate,
Inc., the building's owners,
were at a loss what to do with
the building, which housed
‘several small shops on - the
ground floor.’
:ﬁ:?lmumdhumaf lovers
of § Newport ©

Memorial Boulevard is virtually completely restored almost a

Colored Slate

Historic Samuel Pratt House on Bellevue Avenue opposite
Redwood Library is being restored by real estate and in-
surance firm of Carey, Richmond and Viking. Firm, presently

Historic City Structures Restored

buildings, the Travers Block.

history, . preser-

vationists, and the owners were
to save the historic build._ina.

With a disaster Joan assist
from the Small Business
Administration, the owners
have made the building more
attractive than ever and
restored in detail the exterior.

Changes were made inside to
accommodate modern office
space, one of the major in-
novations being an elevator that
services all three floors.

The major structural task
was to replace the long, pitched
roof. A fire wall divides the
building, which has a new

sprinkler system.
Eighty per complete,
parts of the building are ready

for occupancy and some of the
former shops are in the process
of returning to their original
siles,

Among those returning to the
first floor are the Cheese Shop,
0'Hanley’s and Michel's Beauty
Salon. New tenants will include
Photo World and Njema, a
clothing store.’

House Bei:ﬁgh

TR

o —

Reélored

8 e
(Hopf Phoc

located in building immediately south of project, expects to
move into restored building early next year.

Second floor tenants include
the Federal Social Security
Office; which is renting 2,000
square feet, Metropolitan Life
Insurance and New York Life
Insurance, and a real estate
firm. The owners have a ten-
tative agreement for a third-
floor restaurant, pending ap-
proval of a restawrant and
liquor license.

All lobbies are carpeted and
each floor of the building,
restored by Ferreira Con-
struction Co., of Westport,
Mass,, covers 10,000 square
feet.

Carlton F. Bacon, restoration
superintendent, Richard Long,
architect, and Gerald Connell, a
K & L principa), used pictures of
the building in 1880 and 1890 to
determine the exterior.

“We could not have done it
without the support we received
from so many area residents,”
Connell said during a recent

tour of the building.

Restoration of the Pr
House was Inspired by U
dramatic reasons than that
the Travers Block.

The Pratt House, known
the Bird's Nest Cottage,
‘opposite Redwood Library
is being restored by real esta!
insurance executive Victor |
Andrade for office space,

Andrade purchased
Viking Real estate firm in Jus
1971, housed in a building so
of the Pratt House. A year lat:
he purchased the firm of Car
and Richmond. Last March
bought the Herbert W. Sm
Agency and was pressed |
more office space, so he bou
the modified mansard struct:
with colorful slate shingles.

Built about 1871 by Pratt,
Boston architect, the pi
turesque building will hou
Andrade’s real estate firms
the first floor and the insuran:
company on the second foo

‘Ten layers of paint are beir
removed from the wood ¢
terior of the structure, whis
will be painted in the origin
maroon.

The building’s last use was :
a two-apartment house.

Asked why he undertook t!
project, Andrade said, “'Sellis
houses in Newport is our jol
Since this is typical of Newpo
houses, we decided to restor
it"



Preservatio
This how Travers Block looked in 1870s shortly after it was built

Newport Daily News, Friday, November 10, 1972

at Bellevue Avenue and Bath Road by William Travers for

Travers Land Co. Richard M. Hunt, one of nation’s outstanding
architects, designed structure. Narrow windows on street floor
were replaced years ago by wide display windows for stores
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occupying first floor. In early days, apartments were on second
and third floors. Fire last Saturday night extensively damaged
second and third floors, but left walls standing. Historians,
architects and preservationists are organizing to save structure,
because of its great architectural importance to America.

Architect Prods City To Action

The problems of preservation |
in Newport, with special em-
phasis on the fire<damaged
Travers Block on Bellevue
Avenue, are underscored in a
letter to the Daily News from
Thomas M. Slade of
Washington, D.C. He is ar-
chitectural historian in the
Historic Properties Department
of the National Trust for
Historic Preservation,

He sharply criticizes Newport
for demolishing so many of its
historic buildings and of taking
a “who cares” attitude toward
its architectural heritage. What
is need, he says, is to educate
Newporters in their great
heritage and to involve them in
a creative program for the
development of this city’s
historical and cultural assets.

Slade, a former assistant
professor of architectural
history at the University of
Notre Dame, came here in the
summer of 1970 as architectural
historian - for the Newport
Project of the Historic

American Buildings Survey of

the National Park Service. In

1971, he was editor of the

Newport Project Publication

for the Historic American

Buildings Survey. Last sum-

mer, he worked on a book about

Newport architecture to be

published by the Historic

Properties Department. He is
associate editor of Newsletter of !

the Society of Architectural
Historians,

In his letter, “‘what is the
Future of Newport?", he writes,
“I write this personal letter to
all the residents of Newport as a
very saddened and irate-
American. For the past three
summers I had been privileged
to work in your city studying
and recording its historic ar-
chitecture for the Historic
American Buildings Survey.
During this period I met many

| wonderful people, but it was

your city that my wife and I
came to know and appreciate, It
was with great joy and hopeful

" anticipation that we returned-

each summer to work in
Newport. However, this past
week has been marked by two
telephone calls. Each call has
told of the tragic loss of another
important building to senseless
fire that could have been
prevented.

“First it was the Robert
Stevens house and now the
Travers Block. Two buildings,
two old buildings, who cares
about two buildings? I care and
Newport should care. The
Robert Stevens house of
Thames Street, stood at the
head of Bowen's Wharf. Built
*late in the 18th century, it was
the last building in Newport, in
America, that could tell you
something about your history as
an 18th century seaport. Mr.
Stevens -operated a ship's.
chandlery on Bowen's Wharf'
and built the unusual double

house as a combination
residence upstairs and office

below. Recently, after much '

planning, arrangements had
been concluded to move the
house back further on Bowen's
Wharf from the path of the
widened Thames Street. A
private developer was anxious
to renovate the building for
continued commercial and
residential use. But, most
important, the house and its
wharf were to remain as one,
thus able to illustrate a facet of
Newport's history while serving
as a focal point about which a
renewed Thames Street could
grow; a new street, serving the
nieeds of the present, but ciosely
linked to Newport's past. What
will replace this simple old
building with its beautiful in-
teriors of detailed woodwork
and paneling? What was gained
by the senseless destruction of
this building?

“The Travers Block was built
in 1870 by William R, Travers. A
block of eleven stores with
bachelor apartments upstairs,
it was designed by America’s
leading architect of the day,
Richard Morris Hunt. An in-
novative - building, it was|
similar in its articulation to his |
J.N.A. Griswold house, now the |
Newport Art" *Association |
building, of a few years earlier.
Disgustingly neglected by its]
owners, the Travers Block was
the first element in the finest
group of 19th century suburban-

stores in America. The Travers
Block, Newport Casino, King
Block and Audrain Building
were without parallel. There
was nothing finer anywhere in
our country. Dating 1870, 1881,
1884 and 1902, respectively,
each building made an in-
dividual statement in concert
with its neighbors. These four
buildings were like the in-
dividual movements of sym-
phony, but what now?—What
will replace the Travers? Will
the standing walls that remain
be creatively incorporated into
a refurbished structure? Or if
demolition is required by law
wi'l America’s leading ar-
chitect of today be hired by the
owners of the now burned out
Travers Block? They did not
concern themselves with the!
original building in their
responsibility, why change?
Who cares?

“That is the problem—who
cares? In three short years,
|, 1976, America will celebrate its
200th anniversary, What will
Newport celebrate? During the
past twenty years Newport has ,
demolished more historic
buildings than any other city in
America. Due to circurnstance,
Newport entered the twentieth
century with "the greatest

{ | ;concentration of important 18th

;-and 19th century structures in
" America. Slowly, inexoribately,
has . been

this heritage

e e |
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‘:S‘btuétu‘r’e renovated after N ewport fire

H

By SUE HEWITT
Newport's historic Travers

Building, which was heavily-

damaged by a general alarm
fire a year ago tomorrow, will
open again this month after
over §750,000 in renovations.

Carpenters  restoring  the
wood-and-brick facade of the
three-story building at Memo-
rial Boulevard and fashion-
able Bellevae Avenue, have
followed 1o the last detail the
original designs of its 19th
century  architect, Richard
Morris Hunt. Even the new
barn-red paint job is authen-
i,

But inside, the building will
now sport the 20th Century
conveniences of an elevator, a
sprinkler system, overhead
lighting, and wall-to-wall car-
peting,

Gerald Connell of Middle-
town, a partner in K & L. Real
Iistate Inc. which owns the
building, said "‘only the final
are needed on the
block's nine street-level shops
before the merchants move
in.

O'Hanley’s Gift Shop, a
former tenant, will be the
first to return “sometime this
week, we hope,” Mr. Connell
said. Other former {enants
who will move back this
month are Photo World, the
Cheese  Shop,” and Michael's
Beauty Salon.

Njema will wvacate its
present  Bellevue  Avenue
Clothing Shop for a new loca-
tion in the Travers Building.
A notions and fabric center as
well as a jeweler and a music
store  are also expected to

rent space, Mr. Connell
added.

Though the old building
used its second and third

floors only for storage space,
that area has been subdivided
into offices in the renovated
structure. )

The federal office of the So-
cial Securily Administration,
Metropolitan Life Insurance
Co., New York Lile Insurance
Co., and North East Construc-
tion Co., Lid., of Mas-
sachusetts will all locate on

the second floor ‘'sometime
after the new year,"” Mr. Con-
nell continued.

Richard Long, the Porls-
mouth architect who has over-
seen restoration of the build-
ing, and an undisclosed Provi-
dence law firm will also have
their Newport offices there.

A restaurant and Irish pub
may occupy a portion of the

building’s third floor. The rest
will be subdivided into confer-
ence rooms “‘or finished to
suit” any . would-be tenants,
another K
said.

Restoration of the block has
been accomplished with help
of a $§500,000 disaster loan
from the Small Business Ad-
ministration in addition to
conventional bank loans, Mr.
Connell said.

He said that the real estate
firm also has applied for an
grant from the Historical
Preservation Commission.
The Travers Building, which

& L spokesman

it e

istoriec Travers Bldg. to reopen

shows the use of half-timber’
construction popular in the”
1870s, is entered in the National
Register of Historic Places.



destroyed. This indeed has been
a terrible responsibility, but it
has been ignored by Newport.
In 1976, Americans will flock to
the cities of our Revolutionary
heritage and what will Newport
show them? Yes, the big
monuments (Colony House,
Brick Market, Touro
Synagogue, Redwood Library,
Trinity Church, ete.) still stand,
but what of Newport's
cityscape? There are no new
buildings of superior design
where the old once stood.
Instead a new six-lane highway
will permit them to drive
through the barren dust bowl of
what once was the heart of an
eighteenth century town where
George Washington and other
leaders of America once visited.
A walk along Spring Street to
Trinity Church used to permit
one to look down Church Street
to the harbor, The harbor,
Newport’s greatest treasure, is
no longer visible for there now
sits a hotel in total ignorance of
its relationship to the city. Will
this same mistake be repeated,
or will the Redevelopment
Agency finally realize the ex-
tensive visual damage being
wrought and establish design
criteria and guidelines that
respect the height of the Brick
Market, Trinity Church, and the
historic street patterns.
“There are ways to solve
Newport's problems and yet
respect its historic character.
Education is an important
element. It is a necessary factor
for making decisions. Yet, to
my knowledge, no architect,
architectural historian, planner
or historian is a member of the
Redevopment Agency. I have
seen no attempt by any agency
of the city to educate
Newporters about their city, or
to directly involve them in a
creative program for the future
development of city's historical
and cultural assets. There is no

one historic area or building
that is important in Newport,
Every area of the city, every
street, has its own history. They
are all necessary. Thus, it is
imperative that an attempt be
made to involve as many
members of the community as
possible. Newport's history is
not only its past, but will include
its future. How you as residents
of Newport accept your
responsibility for the treasure
of America’s history will serve
as an example to other com-
munities in our country.
“Today, 18th century fur-
niture made in Newport brings
the highest price for it is ad-
mired by collectors for its
proportions of design and ex-
cellence of craftsmanship.
Examples are on display at the
White House and the State
Department. Foreign
dignitaries are shown Newport
furniture as representative of
America’s advanced state of
civilization in the early
eighteenth century. While these
works are very handsome, in no
way do they illustrate the
heritage of Newport. The past
needs to be part of Newport's
future. Creative integration of
the eighteenth and nineteenth
century architectural heritage
of Newport with outstanding
contemporary design will
permit an  enlightened
presentation of future Newport.
When will the select few
powerful business interests of
Newport begin to work in
cooperation with the residents
to establish a positive direc-
tion? The chapters of Newport's
past are being demolished one-
at-a-time to only be seen again
in  blurred photographic

images. A photographic album '

is no substitute for the living
cityscape of a three-
dimensional Newport."

Newport Daily News, Friday, November 10, 1972
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